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20-1 9 gg;l;;gﬁt; of the Year

March

e SIM Technology continued to launch a series of industry-
specific PAD applicable in areas such as industry,
commerce, education, pension and live broadcast.

April

e The Group entered into cooperation with a new retail
terminal star enterprise in the PRC: launched several
professional scanning PDA equipment and handheld
POS, which were widely applicable in situations such as
receipt and payment in commercial store and ordering in
restaurant.

May

e The Group entered into cooperation with a leading
international electronics enterprise and launched an
intelligent wearable device for religious people, the product
drew excellent response from the market.

e The Group began to research and develop 5G wireless
communication terminal.

June

e The Group received recognition from international
customer for its research and development, design
and production capability in intelligent terminal. By
cooperating with a Japanese brand customer, a children’s
mobile phone customised for a local operator was shipped
successfully.

July

e Successful bulk production of a new generation law
enforcement recording equipment designed and
manufactured by the Group for a leading security
enterprise in the PRC, and the product drew excellent
comments from the market.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

August

e Shanghai Sunrise Simcom in the Group scooped
the “Top 100 Private Manufacturing Enterprises in
Shanghai” award in year 2019 jointly judged by the
Shanghai Enterprise Confederation, Shanghai Enterprise
Association, Shanghai Federation of Economic
Organization and Jiefang Daily.

September

e Shanghai Sunrise Simcom in the Group gladly received
the “Assessment Certificate of Management System for
the Integration of Informatization and Industrialization”
from the MIIT.

October

e Shanghai Simcom in the Group entered into cooperation
with a US customer and successfully launched a naked
eye 3D Pad targeting the education and entertainment
market and took a leading position in the industry.

November

e Shanghai Sunrise Simcom in the Group undertook the
“key research and development program” — internet of
things and smart cities key technology and demonstration
project of the Ministry of Science and Technology of the
People’s Republic of China.

December

e The Beijing research and development company in the
Group successfully developed a split vision AR glasses for
a famous consumer electronics brand in the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders, BERE :

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SIM AABREREAREEBARAT ([ARQF])

Technology Group Limited (“Company”), | am presenting the annual F5((g)g((E22 ) IREANAILEHK
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the BRR(mEIAEE)BEE_2—NWF+=A
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“Year”). =+—HEFE(ARFE]) 22FEERS -

For the Year, the Group achieved a loss attributable to owners of the REE » KEBSREBAAREE AELEERE

Company of HK$76.9 million (2018: profit attributable to owners of the 76,900,000 T (ZE— N\F | XAREA A

Company of HK$238.0 million). The basic loss per share was HK3.11 JE(5 2 H) 5238,000,00058 7T ) © ANFEFRE

cents (2018: the basic earnings per share was HK9.33 cents). NEBAIILAW(ZE—NF . EEEXRE
FA9.334U) o

4 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019



Chairman’s Statement
FEHE
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend to

shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In year 2019, the continuous negative impact of the Sino-US trade
war, fluctuations in foreign exchange markets and the outbreak of the
coronavirus disease (COVID-19) epidemic at the end of the year added
challenges to the already weakened global economy. In Mainland China,
the investment sentiment remained cautious. Some manufacturers
with low capabilities in risk management faced disruption or even
collapse in the supply chain, affecting the production and delivery of
some of the Group’s orders. All of these unfavourable factors presented
unprecedented risks and challenges to the Group and led to difficult

operating conditions in year 2019.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The Group recorded revenue of HK$1,281.5 million in year 2019 with
loss attributable to owners of the Company of HK$76.9 million. Operating
results of the business segments within the Group’s core businesses
were affected to varying extents. Revenue in the handsets and 10T
terminals business increased by around 160% in the second half of
year 2019 against the first half and recorded a profit for the second half-
year. However, the business remained loss-making but with a notably
smaller amount for the whole year. As for the EMS business, the Group’s
adjustment of the processing fees due to the changes of business model
during the Year led to reduction in gross profit when compared with last
year. The Group's intelligent manufacturing business stood out from the
market with its automated testing system product lines. The machine
vision and industrial I0T product lines have not yet achieved the expected
production volume. The Group also continued to make adjustments to its
IOT systems and 020 business and set development directions for these

segments.

Handsets and 10T terminals business

In year 2019, the revenue of the handsets and 10T terminals business
segment amounted to HK$749.6 million, representing a decline of
9.7% against last year. Gross profit was HK$56.6 million, representing
a decrease of 22.8% when compared with last year. Gross profit margin
also shrank by 1.2 percent point year-on-year to 7.6%. During the Year,
the gross profit margin of normal product shipment increased year-on-
year, but the overall gross profit margin decreased slightly due to the
price discount made to historical inventory in the first half of the Year. The
expenses increased significantly compared with year 2018, mainly due to
the impairment treatment of intangible assets formed by the capitalization
of research and development (R&D) expenses in the first half of the Year.
In the second half of year 2019, the delivery of some new projects drove
revenue up by 160% against the first half of year 2019 and the operating
result of this segment showed a V-shaped rebound to record a profit for
the second half-year, substantially offsetting the operational loss recorded

in the first half-year.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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After years of transformation and adjustments, the 10T and industrial
terminals products now account for an important proportion of the
segment’s revenue and profit. The Group designs and produces various
intelligent terminals for customers, including scanning, mobile point-
of-sale, intercom network terminals, encrypted phones and tablets,
augmented reality (AR) glasses and smart watches, among others. These
products have earned the patronage of high-end customers in Europe,
the US and Japan.

During the Year, this business segment recorded a loss mainly due to
three reasons. Firstly, the Group enjoyed no advantage in raw material
procurement costs and processing costs. Compared with consumer
terminals, 10T industrial terminals are characterised by their highly
specialised features, low-volume manufacturing and long product
development time. The segment is highly reliant on a stable and long-term
supply chain and needs massive procurement resources. Besides, as the
segment is not able to benefit from economies of scale, the Group has
little leverage when negotiating with suppliers. The Group has decided
to relocate its supply chain to southern China. However, the efficiency of
such a move remains uncertain as it is still in the early ramp-up stage.
Most of the Group’s terminal products are processed and assembled at
the production base in Qingpu, Shanghai, where the labour cost of non-
technical posts (operators) is HK$30,000 higher per year per person
than the average in other regions. This was the main reason for the surge
in processing costs during the Year. The Group has planned to set up a
new production base in Dongguan and has strived to look for cooperative
partners. To save costs, the Group will outsource the assembly and
packaging processes which account for the higher labour costs as the first
step, as well as conduct automated and intelligent transformation of the

surface mounted technology (SMT) patch and testing process.

Secondly, the Group was unable to deliver sales orders on time due to the
unstable upstream supply chain. China’s real economy encountered big
challenges during the Year, with some of the raw material suppliers facing
disruption in the capital chain, suspension in delivery and even collapse,
thereby seriously affecting the handset supply chain. No guarantee
could be given on delivery schedule and costs of materials amid the
urgent replacement of non-performing suppliers, thus affecting shipment

volume and product costs.

-
Chairman’s Statement™-—"
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S %halrman s Statement

TEWwE

Thirdly, the 10T terminals market is fragmented with no explosive growth
in the Group’s targeted products and markets. Revenue of this business
segment remained at a relatively stable level with no notable growth.
Reviewing the domestic and overseas markets in year 2019, the market
scale of wearable consumer electronic devices including true wireless
stereo (TWS) headphone, smart bracelets and smart watches continued
to expand, with particularly rapid growth in smart consumer hardware
devices such as smart set-top boxes and robots for household use.
Virtual reality (VR)/AR equipment technologies have not been readily
embraced by mass consumers and the related costs of development were
also higher than expected, all of which contributed to limited shipment

volume.

The coronavirus disease (COVID-19) pandemic has been affecting
the world since early 2020. While the final impact of the pandemic on
the world is still unknown, the Group’s operations have already been
negatively affected in year 2020. As the Group’s upstream suppliers and
the Qingpu production base have not been able to resume full capacity
on schedule, the shipment volume of the business segment is expected
to drop substantially in the first half of year 2020. Delay in development
of new projects will also occur as a result of reduced logistical efficiency
and resulting adjustments in planning and strategy. Nevertheless, the
pandemic may also present a positive impact as the government will step
up its investment to stimulate economic growth and all industries will
try harder to reduce their reliance on manual labour. Many industries
and enterprises will increase their investment in robots and online
offices, as well as automated and smart operations, and also speed
up the development of related areas. Such moves will generate more
opportunities for the Group. The handsets and I0T terminals business
remained a cornerstone of the Group. The Group will continue to reap
the success of the transformation of this business segment as it furthers
business expansion in the |OT area in a bid to reshape the industry and

create brighter prospects.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Electronics manufacturing services business

This business segment achieved revenue of HK$93.0 million in year
2019, representing a year-on-year decrease of 83.4%. Gross profit
declined by 11.3% year-on-year to HK$4.4 million. The substantial
decrease of turnover was due to using different standards for revenue
recognition after the changes in the business model. In the first half
of year 2018, the Group’s wireless communication modules segment
mainly sold finished products to overseas markets. The revenue
included material costs, processing costs and profit margin for the
finished products. After the transition of its business model, all of the
materials were provided by customers and the Group was responsible
for processing and manufacturing only. The revenue in the second half
of year 2018 and year 2019 included costs and profit of processing
only. Since the competition across the whole EMS industry has been
intensifying in recent years, the Group has also encountered pricing
pressure from customers. During the Year, the Group also made
a downward adjustment on the processing costs for its important
customers. As a result, gross profit of the EMS business dropped year-on-
year significantly. Concerning different bases, the revenue in year 2018
was much larger than that in year 2019, therefore, the gross profit margin

increased while the gross profit decreased.

In the future, while providing quality service for its existing EMS
customers, the Group will also actively explore new customers and new
processing product categories, especially the development of potential
customers overseas. In addition, the Group will continue to increase
investment to raise the extent of automation and artificial intelligence in
its production in order to reinforce its advantages and stringently control
the quality of its products. In order to cope with higher labour costs, the
Group plans to relocate its assembly and packaging processes to regions
enjoying lower labour costs in the short term and build new production
bases in the mid-to-long-term, with the aim of reducing costs. By doing
so, the Group strives to provide higher quality services to customers while

controlling its costs and boosting its competitiveness.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Internet of things system and online-to-offline business

This business segment still incurred a loss in year 2019. With some of the
businesses divested (the offline automatic vending machine business),
both revenue and expenses of the segment decreased to a large extent
and its gross profit margin dropped markedly. The Group remains
unchanged in its strategic approach of reducing offline operations for
the online and offline operations of vending machines, and it is exploring
other more promising online and offline services proactively and focusing
on markets such as the “Internet of Vehicles.” The Group’s 10T system
and 020 business segment will strengthen cooperation with its terminals
business segment to provide customers with “cloud + terminal” one-stop

solutions.

Intelligent manufacturing business

This business segment achieved revenue of HK$126.5 million in year
2019, representing a year-on-year decrease of 11.2%. Gross profit
declined by 7.8% year-on-year to HK$37.1 million. However, gross
profit margin recorded a year-on-year growth slightly, attributable to the
Group’s continuous effort to control costs and implement a differentiated
pricing strategy. Its greater R&D investment in new product lines was the
main reason for the rise of its current expenditure. Hence, the net profit

dropped significantly despite gross profit remaining basically unchanged.

During the Year, the automated testing system product line registered
an outstanding performance, accounting for most of the revenue and
profit. Owing to the Group’s leading position in terms of market share
and technology, this business segment achieved steady revenue growth
during the year. The Group’s production lines dedicated to 5G handsets
and modules are at the R&D stage and are expected to become mature
and possibly ready for launch to the market in the first half of year 2020.
The Group’s investment in the printed circuit board manufacturing
industry and the glass cover of mobile terminal industry is also becoming

mature and is expected to contribute to growth in both revenue and profit.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Investment has generally become conservative under the influence of the
external economic environment. The COVID-19 pandemic has brought
a negative impact on market demand, especially for SMEs who face
immense pressure on operations and capital, making them cautious with
equipment and technology investments, but there will be opportunities
among these challenges. The manufacturing industry will still continue
to replace labourers with robots. The need for upgrade and reform of
artificial intelligence and automation will be pressing. In particular, after
the COVID-19 pandemic has subsided, labour shortages will further
reduce the dependence of companies on labourers. Also, production
of 5G products will create a new round of demand for upgrades, thus
injecting new momentum into the Group’s automated testing system

product line business.

Looking ahead, the intelligent manufacturing business will remain a key
business development segment for the Group. The Group will increase
its investments in automated testing system product lines to seize new
opportunities in the 5G market and further enhance its strengths and
enlarge its market share. The Group will enhance commercialisation of
existing technologies comprising artificial intelligence (Al), machine vision
product lines and 10T product lines and enlarge its product portfolio to
generate better returns. It will also design and create a new automated

core product to drive new business.

Property development
As at 31 December 2019, “The Riverside Country” (2 e E#k/KER),
in Shenyang City, the PRC, has a total of 1,842 residential units in all its

four phases, of which 1,836 units have been sold.

As at 31 December 2019, “Seven River in Sweet” (E2FEZ), in
Taizhou City, the PRC, has a total of 748 residential units, 9 shops and
22 commercial units completed in all of its two phases, of which 748
residential units,7 shops and 22 commercial units have been sold and

delivered to the buyers.

A substantial amount of the above properties was sold and delivered to
the buyers in year 2018 and only a small amount of properties remaining
was sold and delivered in year 2019, resulting in a huge decrease in
revenue to HK$8.8 million (2018: HK$409.4 million) with a gross profit
margin of 24.0% (2018: -5.2%).
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Property management

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue of property
management was mainly derived from the leasing of SIM Technology
Building Block A and Block B in Shanghai, factory units in Shanghai
and Shenyang and commercial properties in Shenyang. A total area
of approximately 54,000 square meters was leased out. In order to
utilize resources more effectively, the Group is developing the property
management business by leasing out the spare space at its factories and

other buildings.

The revenue of property management for year 2019 amounted to
HK$43.1 million (2018: HK$50.0 million) with a gross profit margin of
97.4% (2018: 93.0%).

Prospects

Despite the impact of Sino-US trade tensions, the Group’s overall
operations gradually improved along with the outstanding performance
of its terminals business in the second half of year 2019 and it appeared
to be on course to record a turnaround in year 2020 but the COVID-19
pandemic since early year 2020 has completely disrupted the upward
trend of its business recovery. In the light of the current situation, the
management expects the Group’s revenue to plummet dramatically in
the first half of year 2020, and may even lead to a loss. As the pandemic
gradually subsides in the second half of the year, business will slowly
pick up. The Group’s goal remains to be becoming profitable in the year.
However, the management realises that certain circumstances such
as adjustment, postponement or even cancellation of existing projects,
rising raw material costs, failure of suppliers to deliver materials on time,
cancellation of orders or requests for price reduction by customers, etc,
are likely. These are the challenges that the Group needs to face in year
2020.
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Year 2020 is destined to be an especially tough year. The COVID-19
pandemic is a “black swan” event and the full impact of the financial
toll remains to be seen. Signs of an imminent economic recession
have already appeared in the form of extremely volatile stock markets.
In the USA for instance, a market wide circuit breaker has already
been triggered four times in March 2020 as at 18 March 2020. The
Group is not immune to such a challenging business environment and
ensuring survival has become its first and foremost priority. Currently,
the management is unable to make an accurate forecast of when the
adverse external effects cited above will pass and when the Group’s
businesses will pick up. Facing such adversity, the Group will strengthen
its capabilities, and double down on efforts to control costs, improve
efficiency, and further develop its competitive businesses and products
while patiently waiting for market recovery and preparing for the next

opportunities.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my cordial appreciation to
all members of the management and the employees for their efforts and
dedication throughout the Year. Finally, | would like to thank the financial
institutions, Shareholders and investors for their continuous support and

confidence in us.

Yeung Man Ying

Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 April 2020
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Management’s Discussion and Analy

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue from handsets and
IOT terminals business, EMS business, 10T system and 020 business
and intelligent manufacturing business (“Core Business”) decreased
by 33.6% to HK$1,229.6 million (2018: HK$1,852.9 million). The
revenue from the sale of residential properties and property management
(together “Non-core Business”) decreased by 88.7% to HK$51.9 million
in year 2019 as compared with that in year 2018 (2018: HK$459.4
million). The total revenue of the Group for the Year, including revenue of
Core Business and Non-core Business, amounted to HK$1,281.5 million
(2018: HK$2,312.2 million).

The gross profit for Core Business of the Group for the Year decreased by
23.8% year-on-year to HK$115.6 million (2018: HK$151.8 million). The
gross profit margin for Core Business increased to 9.4% (2018: 8.2%)
and the gross profit margin for Non-core Business increased to 84.9%
(2018:5.5%) The overall gross profit margin of the Group for the Year was
12.5% (2018: 7.7%).
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As a result of the decrease in revenue in year 2019, an absence of gain
on disposal of wireless communication modules business which was
completed in year 2018, an one-off provision in relation to research
and development expenses already capitalised and a provision on the
entrusted loan receivable, the Group achieved a loss attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$76.9 million (2018: profit attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$238.0 million) for the Year. The basic loss
per share for the Year was HK3.11 cents (2018: the basic earnings per
share was HK9.33 cents).

Research and development expenses

In year 2019, the Group mainly focused on the development of handsets
and 0T terminals business. The number of design and development
team members was 540 in year 2019 (2018: 530). Total R&D expenses
of the Group, which amounted to HK$79.7 million (2018: HK$52.2
million), represented 6.2% (2018: 2.3%) of the Group’s revenue.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for the Year decreased
by 41.0% to HK$67.5 million (2018: HK$114.5 million). The ratio of the
selling and distribution costs over revenue in year 2019 was 5.3% (2018:
4.9%).

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for year 2019 decreased by 12.1%
to HK$106.5 million (2018: HK$121.2 million), representing 8.3%
(2018: 5.2%) of the revenue.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-NE+-A=t-ALEE Hz2—-%

Year ended 31 December 2018
—N\E+ZRA=+—-RIEE

Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin
KA e EFiES YA =7 ER=
HK$'M HK$'M % HK$'M HK$'M %
BEET BEET % BEAT  BBATL %

Handsets and 10T FREMEARRES
terminals business 749.6 56.6 7.6 829.9 73.3 8.8
EMS business BT RUERHERRY 93.0 4.4 4.7 561.6 49 09
10T system and 020 business #EEZ 5 gL %% 260.5 17.5 6.7 3189 333 104

Intelligent manufacturing

business B RUEET 126.5 37.1 29.3 1425 40.3 28.3
Total 5t 1,229.6 115.6 9.4 1,852.9 151.8 8.2

The revenue of this segment decreased year-on-year by 9.7% to
HK$749.6 million (2018: HK$829.9 million) in year 2019. Frequent
factory closures among mobile phone producers caused great damage to
the supply chain of mobile phones. Frequent occurrence of capital chain
ruptures among suppliers led to delays in deliveries and some suppliers
were even forced to shut down. The Group was therefore prevented from
completing some of the orders and realizing revenue from those orders. In
addition, due to the discounted sales for some of the historical inventory
in the first half of year 2019, the gross profit margin dropped slightly.
The overall gross profit margin of this business segment decreased
slightly to 7.6% (2018: 8.8%) for the Year. The revenue of ODM business
contributed to approximately 89% of the revenue of this segment in year
2019 (2018: 88%).
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After the completion of disposal of wireless communication modules
business in the first half of year 2018, the business nature of this segment
has changed from original brand manufacturer (“OBM”) to EMS provider
and the Group no longer bears the R&D and sales expenses of the
modules business. However, the gross profit of the EMS business was
lower than that of the OBM business.

In year 2019, due to the adjustment in business model and change in
revenue recognition method, the revenue of this segment decreased
year-on-year by 83.4% to HK$93.0 million (2018: HK$561.6 million). In
addition, due to fierce competition in the EMS business, the Company
reduced the processing fee of major customers several times, causing the
decrease in gross profit year-on-year to HK$4.4 million (2018: HK$4.9

million).

During year 2019, with some of the businesses divested, both revenue
and gross profit margin of the segment decreased by some extent. The
revenue of this segment was HK$260.5 million (2018: HK$318.9 million)
and the gross profit margin decreased to 6.7% (2018: 10.4%).

During the Year, due to the excellent quality and good reputation of
the Group’s automated testing system products, the Group received
favorable comments and stable number of orders. However, due to the
differentiated pricing strategy implemented during the Year, the segment
revenue decreased. In addition, due to the decentralization of orders
with the majority of orders being in small batches and the continuing
cost control measures of the Company, the segment revenue for the Year
decreased by 11.2% to HK$126.5 million (2018: HK$ 142.5 million)
while the gross profit margin increased to 29.3% (2018: 28.3%).
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$611.7 million (31 December 2018: HK$647.8 million), among
which 66.1% was held in US dollars, 33.8% was held in Renminbi and
the remaining balance was held in Hong Kong dollars, and short-term
deposits of HK$296.4 million (31 December 2018: $Nil), among which
62.1% was held in US dollars and 37.9% was held in Renminbi. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group also had pledged bank deposits of
HK$31.2 million (31 December 2018: HK$57.6 million) in Renminbi for
the purpose of the Group’s Renminbi borrowings. The Group intends to
finance its working capital and capital expenditure plans from such bank
balances. The Group has pledged certain of its assets (including property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, land use rights and notes
receivables) to secure the bank borrowings. The total bank borrowings
of the Group amounted to HK$77.9 million as at 31 December 2019
(31 December 2018: HK$83.9 million), all of which was denominated in
Renminbi. All of the bank borrowings were at floating interest rates and

repayable within one year.
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The turnover period of the inventory, trade and notes receivables, trade
and notes payables of the Group for the Core Business respectively is

presented below:

AEEXTEEB2FE  BRESERLE
% BRNESRARRENBERZ/0T

2019 2018

—E-hEF ZZT-N\F

Days Days

X ZAN

Inventory turnover period FEREE 102 121
Trade and notes receivables turnover period JEWE 5 BR 7N 22 45 A s Y 74 55
Trade and notes payables turnover period JERTE SRR R IR 79 58

In year 2019, due to the significant decrease in average balance of
inventory amount for the Year, the inventory turnover period decreased as

compared to that of year 2018.

The trade and notes receivable turnover period increased for the Year as
compared to that of year 2018 due to the significant decrease in sales for
the Year.

The trade and notes payables turnover period increased for the Year
as compared to that of year 2018 due to the significant decrease in

purchases for the Year.

As at 31 December 2019, the current ratio, calculated as current assets

over current liabilities, was 2.9 times (31 December 2018: 3.1 times).

The Group reckons that the inventory turnover period, trade and notes
receivables turnover period, and trade and notes payables turnover
period help the Group to understand its ability to convert inventory
into cash and sales and cash conversion cycle. Through reviewing the
turnover periods, the Group can improve its operational efficiency. The
current ratio can help the Group to understand its ability to pay short-term

and long-term obligations.
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The Group adopts a prudent approach in its treasury policy. The Group’s
surplus funds are mainly held under fixed and savings deposits in

reputable banks to earn interest income.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are denominated
in US dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables, trade payables,
bank balances and bank borrowings are denominated in US dollars,
therefore exposing the Group to the currency risk of US dollars. As at
31 December 2019, the Group did not use any financial instrument for
hedging purpose but it will consider entering into non-deliverable foreign
exchange forward contracts to eliminate the foreign exchange exposures

in US dollars when necessary.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 2,430,724,300 ordinary

shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

No shares of the Company has been issued during the Year.
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2019 2018

—E-AF —E— )\
HK$’million HK$'million
BEAR BEBTT
Net cash from operating activities REKLLEBH 2R FE 481.4 250.4
Capital expenditure =N (31.8) (45.6)
Development costs paid D FEEAA (104.6) (166.0)
Net (decrease) increase in bank borrowings RITEE Oj ) 1 hnFEE (11.7) 4.4
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE « BENMRIEEIIE
equipment 8.4 5.5
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries MEEHRB AT ZERETA - 536.7
Interest paid S AFF B (2.6) (6.2)
Dividend paid ZAITHRE (25.0) (143.3)
Cash used in acquisition of additional interest AR UEERN B A RSB IMER 2 IR &
of subsidiaries - (8.0)
Cash transferred to non-controlling interest of a A — M B A "l D sE i & 4
subsidiary upon share reduction in registered (T EBBUR R HIE) B
capital of a subsidiary that does not result EMBARIFERERES
in losing control (45.4) -
Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments HERAFEFAEMEEmW S
at FVTOCI ZIRAT B8 508 42.8 17.9
Decrease in other liabilities Hipa@Emd (29.5) (109.8)
Purchase of license BEAE - (26.2)
Purchase of financial asset at FVTPL BERATESFAEBREZERE
E - (25.9)
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI BEERATEFARMZEREZ
AT E (1.1) (7.5)
Repurchase of shares B B A% (7 (27.0) (11.8)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary i —REIE AT 2R &M 58 (18.4) -
Others HAh (1.5) (6.5)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re MREEEE B EINFRE
(including pledged bank deposits and (BIEEERRITER
short-term bank deposit) KRR TR ) 234.0 258.1
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EREIRRAN

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2019, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$2,866.9 million (31 December 2018: HK$2,972.0 million) and the
bank borrowings were HK$77.9 million (31 December 2018: HK$83.9
million). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank

borrowings over total assets, was 2.7% (31 December 2018: 2.8%).

The Group reviews its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According to
its capital plan for the future, the Group tries to maximise revenue for
shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind. Capital structure
is constantly being adjusted according to changes in the operational

environment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisition or

disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant

investment.

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 1,760 (2018:

1,760) employees. The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme for all of its employees in Hong Kong, and
provides its PRC employees with welfare schemes as required by the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. The Group also offers
discretionary bonuses and may grant share options under the share
option scheme of the Company to its employees by reference to individual
performance and the performance of the Group. Total staff costs incurred
by the Group amounted to HK$252.3 million (2018: HK$303.1 million)
during the Year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
human resources department. The Group seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of merit, qualifications and competence of the

employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Board,
having regard to factors including the Group’s operating results,
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management and comparable

market statistics.

The Company adopted a pre-listing share option scheme to recognise and
reward the contribution of certain Directors and employees of the Group
to the growth and development of the Group. After listing, the Company
has adopted another share option scheme, the primary purpose of which
is to motivate the eligible persons referred to in the scheme, which include
executive Directors and employees of the Group, to optimise their future
contributions to the Group and to reward them for their efforts. Details of
the share option schemes of the Company are set out in note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
As stated in the circular of the Company dated 18 January 2018, the

Group intends to apply part of the net proceeds from the Disposal for
purchase of a piece of the land for the Group’s operations centre in

Dongguan, the PRC and the related construction costs.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any plans for material

investment or capital assets during the Year.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any material contingent

liabilities.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has become a pandemic. Major cities in the

PRC have taken emergency measures.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Company have been directed by the local
governments to facilitate the prevention and control measures during
the COVID-19 pandemic, including extending the Chinese New Year
holidays, and adopting safety measures for resuming operation under the

guidance and approval of the local governments.

Further, the Group has implemented prevention and control measures to

ensure the Group’s continued capacity to operate its business.

The Directors will continue to assess the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the Group’s operation and financial performance and
closely monitor the Group’s exposure to the risks and uncertainties in

connection therewith.

4
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We will continue to strive to create long-term value for our customers,
shareholders and employees.

Our target is to make the Company the market leader in handset and 10T
terminals product solutions and services. All employees of the Group are
fully confident in, and are striving for, achieving the target.

We are customer-oriented. We continue to attend to, in a timely manner,
our customers’ needs through continuous innovation in technology and

management.

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from our investors, customers, suppliers, as well as
employees.
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With “making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision,
the Group aims to make the world a better place through our continuous
efforts.

Support from the community is vital to any corporate development, thus
giving back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of
our limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take
up our responsibility, the world will be better because of us.

An organisation established and funded by the employees of the Group
for charity purpose. Sunrise People (the employees of the Group) should
not only be satisfied with material wealth but should also enrich ourselves
spiritually. The Group wishes that more Sunrise People can share
and practice our charitable culture so as to create a better and more
harmonious future together.

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and started
from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EELRREERAR

DIRECTORS

Ms Yeung Man Ying ( “Mrs Wong”)

aged 75, is the chairman of the Company and an executive
Director and a director of Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited.
Mrs Wong is responsible for developing direction and strategies
of the Group. Mrs Wong together with her spouse, Mr Wong Cho
Tung (“Mr Wong”), an executive Director, were the founders
of the Company. Over the years, Mrs Wong and Mr Wong
had established a number of companies which engaged in
the electronics and telecommunications business including
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Ltd. (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”),
one of the Group’s main operating subsidiary which was
established in November 1993. Mrs Wong has over 20 years of
operational and management experience in the electronics and
telecommunications industry. Mrs Wong lectured at the Electrical
Department of the South China University of Technology in 1977.
Mrs Wong has been a guest professor at Tongji University since
2003. Mrs Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics (currently known as Beihang
University), specialising in electrical engineering.

Mr Wong Cho Tung ( “Mr Wong”)

aged 75, is an executive Director and the president of the Group.
Mr Wong is responsible for participating in formulation of the
direction, strategies and be responsible for the development plan
of the new business of the Group. Mr Wong is the chairperson of
Shanghai SIM Technology Limited (“Shanghai SIM Technology”),
a director of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom and SIM Technology HK
Limited (“SIM Technology (HK)"). Mr Wong is also the director
of Info Dynasty Group Limited and Intellipower Investments
Limited, both of which are the substantial Shareholders. Mr
Wong together with his spouse, Mrs Wong, an executive Director,
was the founder of the Company. Mr Wong graduated in 1968
from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics
(currently known as Beihang University), specialising in electrical
engineering. Mr Wong has decades of experience in the
electrical, electronics and telecommunications industry.
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Ms Tang Rongrong ( “Ms Tang”)

aged 66, is an executive Director, vice president of the business
operation headquarter (located in Shanghai, PRC) of the Group
and a director of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, Shenyang SIM
Real Estate Limited, Shanghai Mobile Phone Public Testing
Platform Co., Ltd and Shanghai SIM Technology. Ms Tang has
nearly 20 years of experience in human resources management,
administration and corporate operation. Prior to joining the Group
in 1995, Ms Tang was a physician of JTFEE#EMNTHE— AR
Z2B%T (Jiangxi Ganzhou First People’s Hospital) and the head of
technology and deputy chief physician of &M st El4- &1
#FfT (Nanchang Birth Planning Institute). Since then, Ms Tang
has served as the manager and deputy general manager of the
personnel and administration department of Shanghai Sunrise
Simcom. Ms Tang graduated from 555528 22 EH R 247 (Gannan
Medical College) in 1978.

Mr Liu Jun (“Mr Liu”)

aged 47, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of
the Group. Mr Liu is fully responsible for the overall management
of the Group. Mr Liu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in
electronic engineering from X#AZ (Tianjin University) in
1994 and was awarded a master’s degree in information
technology from B REE 2z (unofficial English translation
being Nanjing Institute of Post and Telecommunications)
(currently known as R EE KZ (Nanjing University of Post
and Telecommunications)) in 1997. Mr Liu has extensive
experience in the field of telecommunication technology and
software programmes development. Prior to joining the Group, Mr
Liu has worked for the mobile research and development centre
of Motorola in Beijing and was responsible for the development
of telecommunication software programmes. Mr Liu has also
worked for China Techfaith Wireless Communication Technology
Limited, a company listed on the NASDAQ of the United States
of America (“US"), from August 2002 to March 2007, in various
positions including as a director, chief operating officer and
executive senior vice president. Mr Liu was appointed as an
executive Director in June 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Mr Liu Hing Hung (“Mr HH Liu”)

aged 57, is an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board and the chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Board. Mr HH Liu is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also a
member of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. Mr
HH Liu now runs a professional accountancy firm in Hong Kong
and has over ten years of experience in accounting, taxation,
auditing and corporate finance. Mr HH Liu is also an independent
non-executive director of Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited
(stock code: 887), a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) from
May 2017. Mr HH Liu was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in September 2008.

Mr Wang Tianmiao

aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr Wang
Tianmiao has been a professor at Beihang University in the
PRC since 1995. Mr Wang Tianmiao was (i) a member of the
Academic Subject Assessment Expert Panel of the Academic
Committee of the State Council of the PRC; (ii) the expert
panel leader of the national “863 Programme” on robotics
technology; (iii) the deputy leader of the Expert Panel Meeting
of the Manufacturing Industry Informatization Project of the
China Automation Association; (iv) a member of the Robotics
Professional Committee of the Ministry of Science and
Technology of the PRC; (v) the honourary department head
at the Graduate School of Robotics of Beihang University; (vi)
a supervisor of each of the major laboratory of the mechanic
industrial service robot and the artificial intelligence and robotics
engineering technology centre of Beihang University; and (vii)
the deputy councilor of the Academic Committee of Beihang
University. Mr Wang Tianmiao’s research areas mainly focus on
advanced robotics technology, and he has achieved outstanding
results in the research development of medical robots, bionic
mechanical fish and embedded intelligent control. Mr Wang
Tianmiao obtained a bachelor’'s degree from Xi'an Jiaotong
University in 1982, a master’s degree from the Northwestern
Polytechnical University in 1987, and a doctoral degree from the
Northwestern Polytechnical University in 1990 in the PRC. From
1990 to 1995, Mr Wang engaged respectively in the postdoctoral
surface mobile robot programme for the State Key Laboratory
of Intelligent Technology and System in Tsinghua University
and the postdoctoral surgical robot programme for the National
Biomimetic Laboratory in Italy. Mr Wang Tianmiao has been an
independent director of Goertek Inc. (FXEAMD AR AF]), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 002241), since April 2016. Mr
Wang Tianmiao has been an independent director of Shanghai
STEP Electric Corporation (L8R EERRMNBRAA])
(stock code: 002527) from June 2017. Mr Wang Tianmiao was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director in April
2017.
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Mr Wu Zhe (previous name Wu Aihu)
(“Mr Wuu)

aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr Wu
has been the professor at Beihang University in the PRC since
October 1993 and the deputy principal at Dongguan University of
Technology in the PRC since 2015. During the period from May
1991 to October 1993, Mr Wu was the lecturer and the associate
professor in aircraft design of Beihang University. From 1997
to 2004, he was the deputy principal of Beihang University. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Wuhan Institute of Construction*
(EUEZEMELT) (currently known as Wuhan University of
Technology) in 1982, a doctoral degree from Harbin Institute
of Architecture* (R B8/ T 2Pt ) (currently known as Harbin
Institute of Technology) in 1988 and a postdoctoral certificate
from Northwestern Polytechnical University in 1991 in the PRC.
Mr Wu was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in April 2017.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Chan Chi Yin (“Ms Chan” ), CPA

aged 41, is the chief financial officer and company secretary
of the Company. Ms Chan joined SIM Technology (HK) on
April 2017 and is responsible for the financial reporting of the
Group. Ms Chan was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) on 28 June 2017 and
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company on 29
June 2018. Ms Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has over ten years of experience
in the field of accounting. Ms Chan obtained a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree with majoring in Accountancy
and a Master of Science Programme in Finance from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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The Directors are pleased to present the Group’s annual report and the

audited consolidated financial statements for the Year (“Report”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss on page 74.

The Board does not recommend the payment of the final dividend to the

Shareholders for the Year.

There was no arrangement with any Shareholder under which he/she/it

has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2019 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 are set out on page 247 of

the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in the investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 15, 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year

are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
During the 12 months ended 31 December 2019, the Company

repurchased 77,686,000 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
and the shares repurchased have been cancelled subsequently. Details

of the repurchases are as follows:

Number of

Month of shares
repurchase repurchased
e A4 BEROEE
’000

Fr

January 2019 —E—-NF—A 9,148
May 2019 —ZE-NFARA 30,386
June 2019 —E-NFRA 10,548
October 2019 “E-nF+A 15,716
November 2019 —ZE—hF+—A 11,888
77,686

Other than the shares repurchased by the Company as disclosed above,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

'K/@.
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Aggregate price

paid

(inclusive of

Price per share related
BRE® expenses)
Highest Lowest [EENENEL
&S RE (BEEEEX)
HK$ HK$ '000
BT BT FB
0.315 0.310 2,883
0.335 0.295 9,706
0.345 0.325 3,606
0.265 0.223 3,764
0.295 0.265 3,407
23,366
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at
31 December 2019 were approximately HK$336,723,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,848,000 and retained
profit of approximately HK$142,875,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)
Ms Tang Rongrong

Mr Liu Jun (Chief executive officer)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wang Tianmiao

Mr Wu Zhe

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management Profile” section of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES
As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the

Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing

Rules”), were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of director Nature of interest

EEnE EEME
Mr Wong Cho Tung Corporate interest (note 1)
FERLE NAiER (Wi 1)
Personal interest
&A=
Total
1y
Ms Yeung Man Ying Corporate interest (note 2)
T3+ NRVER (Wi 2)
Personal interest
A=
Total
R
Mr Liu Jun Personal interest
2E k& &A=

)6l 4
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Approximate

Total number of percentage of

ordinary shares interest in
of the Company the Company
/N EARD B ERE
LEREH BOESL
(note 3)

(B1aE3)

1,209,084,000 49.74%
3,098,000 0.13%
1,212,182,000 49.87%
734,857,000 30.23%
3,418,000 0.14%
738,275,000 30.37%
1,000,000 0.04%
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Notes:

1. Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”) controls more than one-third of the voting
power of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info Dynasty”). Mr Wong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty
in the Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Mr Wong is the sole director
of Intellipower Investments Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited
(“Simcom (BVI)”) is wholly-owned by Mr Wong. Therefore, Mr Wong is deemed
to be interested in all the 454,227,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares held
by Intellipower and Simcom (BVI) respectively in the Company by virtue of Part
XV of the SFO respectively.

2. Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”), the spouse of Mr Wong, controls more than
one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is therefore deemed to
be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO.

3. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued
share capital of 2,430,724,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2019.

As at 31 December 2019, save as disclosed above, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company did not enter into
any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong
Kong)).

Share option schemes
Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options are set out in note 39 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

Brat -

1. FHERKGAE ([ E%4 D) 2% Info Dynasty Group
Limited ([Info Dynasty]) =% — LA EZ2 &4 -
RIBBERPEEHIEXVE - ELRETR B
% Info Dynasty P 2 5545 A 5] 734,857,000 A i
192 #Ezs - AT 54 2 Intellipower Investments
Limited ([Intellipower]) ®E—#E %= 2 Simcom
Limited ([Simcom (BVN)EEXEZEHE - 1R
BES REIEEAIEXVED - T R EWIE AES
Intellipower & Simcom (BVI) B2 A2 7] 5 B
454,227,000 A% & 20,000,000 A% & 15 2 #E 2

2. BXBmE(ERK])  EREZEMB - ZH
Info Dynasty =9 — A EZ #8524 - RIEEH KA
EIEBIZEXVED » i KA AR A% A Info Dynasty
Fifs 23 A2 7] 734,857,000 AR AR 19 2 2 ©

3. BREARBR-_Z-NFt+t-_A=t—RZO%

TR 2,430,724 300 KB A st EAE A RIS A

DL e
REZZ-NAFT-A=1+—0 KR LEXHmKE
EH UEEE  ARAIZEBTHABRE
F 7B TRAR RS AR EE 2 Ik
0~ HERDIUESRT - BEEAREES R
HEIGDIE L2 GLHFNARRATHIFZE
FCffteR - SARBIREE ST RIZA A& AN A BB
Pz Ban sk FFE MM SORR ©

BRBIMT  EAFEN - AARREHIE
REHB R (ERETBEEH622D%
(AR (EFEE) RIDHE 1K) -

BRERE
AREBRE B ZH B RBERE 2 Z 5
BRER A B RARM 39 -



ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Year nor at the
end of the Year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,

or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined in
the Listing Rules), to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the Group was

entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling Shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and there is no contract of
significance in relation to provision of services by the Company or any of

its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Directors nor the controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business apart from the Company’s business,
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with

the business of the Group during the Year.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements did not
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” nor “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any connected

transaction.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong) was and is

in force for the benefit of the Directors.
The Company has also arranged for appropriate liability insurance to

indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of substantial
Shareholders and other persons (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

REREE EEME

Info Dynasty (note 2) Personal interest

(K15E2) ENG 3

Intellipower (note 3) Personal interest

(B15£3) [EPNG: 3

Notes:

1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued

share capital of 2,430,724,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2019.

2. The relationship between Info Dynasty and Mr Wong and the relationship
between Info Dynasty and Mrs Wong is disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares”

above.

3. The relationship between Intellipower and Mr Wong is disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position

in Shares” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, there were no other
substantial Shareholders or persons who had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded

in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out in

note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the five largest customers and suppliers accounted for less

than 30% of the Group’s total sales and purchases respectively.

At no time during the Year did any Director, any close associate of a
Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in any of

the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to retire and, being eligible, shall

offer themselves for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the

preceding three financial years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The fair review, financial key performance indicators and indication
of future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion & Analysis” in this annual report. That

discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.

Principal risks and uncertainties
A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of the

Group. Major risks are summarized below.

1.  Shutdown of upstream supply chain of terminals amidst the
COVID-19 pandemic, together with labor shortage, resulted in
the risk of price hike of supplies, as well as the risk of collapse of
upstream supply chain companies, especially peripheral custom-
made materials supply companies, and interruption of supply:
The COVID-19 pandemic at the beginning of the year 2020 led
to the suspension of production of numerous companies across
the PRC. The movement of people was restricted and traffic was
blocked by the beginning of March 2020. A number of upstream
suppliers ran out of inventory due to the prolonged shutdown
and suspension of production. Due to the extremely strained
isolation, production capacity stagnated and companies began to
announce price hike, which created a trend of increasing costs
for the Group’s downstream handset manufacturers. Furthermore,
the small and medium-sized enterprises in the upstream supply
chain, particularly peripheral custom-made materials supply
companies, have comparatively weaker risk aversion abilities.
Cash flow problems occurred due to the shutdown and production
suspension, resulting in the risk of supply interruption. This will
also interrupt the Group’s production and the identification of
a temporary secondary supply will become necessary, thereby

posing risks relating to the Group’s supply and delivery.

Report of the Directors
EREEWE

£ JE)
ARERBE_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLF
EHHREER - MIERRRBERANRKE
RIBRERAFRD [EEHE] R EREHN
RO —H o A RERAEEEREDN
AERERD ©

FREBRFHBEE
ZHARAEYEARERERFEHEE - =
ZR\E AT o

1. Rim EFHRERTEERNETREER
BHFEIRFE BIMEH FHAHRE)
BRIELE UK LY HREELFEFZ
SHELE FHY R FE 1 5 2 B o B (R A 9 S
B -
il R N
BY2PENAECEEFETIFE 3=
ZZRF=-AVIBERAEBRBER -
ZBFEM o #o L EEBRREE
BIFE BEFCEHERRE MEE
XNENAIREBER SRR E LT
= RREMKRE - EHAKETHE
BRI R IE IR iB S - SN
LSRR/ MBI R SMNEE BUR
HrEdZ - MmFImfTEREEESS - f
REETEE EXReRLE[E - B
BB R ER o BHRbEERAE
SELETE  FERESHHANE -
HER - RAEEHERMHEE o

BRANREBRERAR — T LFFH

43



Report of the Directors
BEREWmE

44

To this end, the Group enhanced its supply chain management
and spent considerable effort to monitor the delivery capabilities
and quality of upstream suppliers. During the Spring Festival,
our supply chain team liaised closely with upstream suppliers in
order to understand their condition in respect of the resumption of
production and personnel availability, and strategically stockpiled
certain common components which were in high demand so
as to cope with the subsequent price hike. Where custom-
made materials suppliers were at risk, such as those with supply
chain located in China’s Hubei Province and were unlikely to
resume production within a short-term, the Group actively sought
secondary supplier to prepare for alternative verification, thereby

minimizing the supply risk of the Group.

Meanwhile, the Company was also exposed to risks of labor
shortage. Traffic was blocked and workers could not return to
work. They were required to undergo self-isolation for 14 days
after returning to work. In addition, the shortage of new recruits
ultimately affected the delivery of orders. The outbreak also
affected the communication and interaction between business
departments and customers. As a result, they were unable to
discuss project requirements in person, and certain orders were

therefore delayed.

Risks related to the expansion of automated intelligent
manufacturing business:

The Group’s focus is on the automatization of the production
line of communication terminals in terms of the automated
intelligent manufacturing business. The Group is familiar with such
modification. However, given that more enterprises are equipping
themselves with automated testing, the Group’s modification
business is shrinking accordingly. The risk of a shrinking business
volume for our automatization business has emerged. Thus, the
Group is expanding its business towards both the upstream and the
downstream of the supply chain of communication terminals. By
offering automatization services to component suppliers, the Group
is expanding its business and diversifying the product line of its
automated products, especially for the product line of industrialized

automatization based on visual identity Artificial Intelligence.
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Risks related to management of receivables from the Internet of
Things operation service:

In year 2020, the Internet of Things vending machine supply chain
business suffered from a nationwide COVID-19 outbreak in its
launch year. People stayed at home due to movement restrictions
and the operation of vending machines in various locations was
halted. All types of enterprises in the entire business chain were

badly affected and business had basically stagnated.

In terms of the Internet of Things operation service, the Group is
engaged in the wholesale and logistics services of beverages and
food. Currently, the Group offers credit for payments for goods
to small and medium automated vending machine operators in
general, and there are risks that such small operators may default
on such credit. While the Group can expect prompt payments
when sales are robust during peak seasons, payments can be slow
or even delayed when sales are sluggish in off seasons. The Group
has a relatively large number of small and medium operators as our

customers which causes risks related to receivables.

In respect of controlling receivables of IOT, the Group has adopted
a quota management system and warning management system,
and requires responsible divisions to maintain responding invoices

properly to control risks to the reasonable limit.

Property leasing: Certain tenants may experience insufficient
cash flow amidst the COVID-19 outbreak and there will be risk of
lease termination

The COVID-19 outbreak in year 2020 has affected various
industries, especially the service industry. Therefore, the
commencement of business of various companies that leased
buildings of the Group was delayed and their results were adversely
impacted. Especially, most of the leased shops on the ground
floor of the Group’s headquarters on Jinzhong Road are restaurant
enterprises and the impact on them is particularly significant. For
small enterprises with weak risk aversion abilities, their cash flow
is prone to shortage and they may go bankrupt. The Group may
therefore lose tenants and rental payments. In addition, the PRC
government has called on leasing companies to reduce rental fees

so as to help small enterprises ride out the storm.

Report of the Directors
EREEWE

WHATE L RIS EW R ERE R B B -

—ToTHEYBEaBEERHERER
BEREHEETHERSRIEHRER
BrER - ARABRBEHE - KAKE
ERF - JSHABEERENZET -
EEEBRFLLOZREEDZERA
T8 - EXEBERS

P A8 8 i RIS R AR S B IR AR
WHLE YR ARTS o BRI A B AL
RETNADEERELEHRERER
AR o EL/ NEE M ERE LS
ERIER - EEHEZHEEE - B
HEEREHENE  BRHgEER
2 BRIASENR/ NEEEEPL
8% - EEMEK —EEBGRIENRR

o
:Iﬁ‘r

R BB & P R IR R e IS - R
ERAEEEENBEEERES - R
LSERABFIE R T HERE - EER
THEAREHE -

YWEHEE AR BHEEREFEHE
FHERLRITTE FHEHENER
&

CECTEOERSEBYET SIS
¥ FRIRRGE SRHEHEREETF
WS ESERTILE - 24£518 - 55
RHECERABRERMOHRITH R
BRI PELREE - HREL/)N
ENARIENS  BeRE S IR
& Est A 0 aEEk AR BAATE A
BN o BINHAT R A B A ERER
EE  HE)/IEEREHRE -

BRANREBRERAR — T LFFH

45



P

o

.‘\‘\_ ‘7//’

)
_

L

46

J

\?
‘\/ﬁeport of the Directors
BEREWmE

Key Relationships
The Group’s success also depends on the support from key relationships

with employees, suppliers and customers.

1. Employees

The Company values every talent and emphasizes that excellent
employees are valuable assets of the Company. The Group
pays attention to self-improvement of staff and gives them a
working environment that is fair, open, sincere, warm and full
of opportunities. The Group’s competitive remuneration system
brings long-term and stable return for its staff and also takes into
account the long-term and stable development of the Company.
The Group determines the remuneration and promotion of its
staff based on their capacity and contribution to the Group.
The Group strives to provide promising career prospects and a
platform for outstanding staff members to utilize their talents fully.
Therefore, the Company not only helps its employees to improve
their knowledge, skills and experience, but also creates conditions
favourable to their wholesome development. To facilitate the proper
allocation and development of high caliber talents, the Company
has set up an employee career development system which focuses
on both management and technical skills. Through this system,
each staff member can seize the opportunity to improve his/
her overall abilities in various ways. The Company aims to create
conducive conditions for talents to shine and grow through career,
and also build solid team with talents.

2. Suppliers

The Company selects and enters into strategic cooperation with
suppliers with good reputation in accordance with the principle
of mutually beneficial cooperation and international standards
such as 1IS09001, 1S014001 and OHSAS18001. We use a strict
social responsibility management system to manage our suppliers,
ensure that the quality of materials provided by the supplies meets
our requirements and their production management systems also
comply with requirements on environment, occupational health
and safety management system as stated in relevant laws and
regulations. We also make cost and delivery plans in advance to
meet delivery demand.
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3. Customers

The Group establishes complete management systems in
compliance with both national and international standards, as well
as well-known clients’ requirements, which cover product quality,
environment, occupational health and safety, information security
and product safety management. Our clients express their positive
feedback on quality, logistics, cost and service through the Group’s
client satisfaction survey conducted every year. Among our clients
all over the world, both new and old well-known clients supervise
and inspect each management system of the Company every year.
Apart from this, the Company also implements Key Performance
Indicator (KPI), internal control scheme, management appraisal
program in every aspect. In order to continuously enhance
management systems of the Company, a specific department has
been set up to supervise operation and pass the results to the
management on a regular basis to review.

Environmental policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of the Group, but
the responsibility of each of us. The Group initiates and strives to minimize
its environmental impact by using water saving facilities, saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. The
Group also operates in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval
from the PRC regulators. The Group also has environment policies to
reduce emission, raise efficiency use of resources and reduce pollution.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Our operations are regulated by Hong Kong and PRC laws.
During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
report, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have significant impact to the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In particular, as the Group’s business involves manufacturing, the
Group’s operation is regulated by environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. During the year under review, the Group did not
have any material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.

On behalf of the Board
Yeung Man Ying
Chairman

Hong Kong

8 April 2020
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The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to
the Shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted
by the Group emphasise a quality Board with sound internal control,

transparency, accountability and independence.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Save as mentioned below, the Company has complied with the code
provisions laid down in the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate
Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during
the Year.

In respect of code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company does not have a nomination committee. At present,
the Company does not consider it necessary to have a nomination
committee as the full Board is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the appointment of new Directors
from time to time to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Company, and the Board as a whole is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and reviewing
the succession plan for the Directors, in particular the chairman of the
Board.

According to the code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general meeting of
the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the committee or
failing this, her duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer

questions at the annual general meeting.
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At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6 June 2019
(“2019 AGM”), Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend due to an unexpected business engagement. Mr Liu Jun,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Group, chaired
the 2019 AGM on behalf of the chairman of the Board pursuant to the
bye-laws of the Company and was available to answer questions. Mr Liu
Hing Hung, an independent non-executive Director and the chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Board and the audit committee of
the Board (“Audit Committee”), was also available at the 2019 AGM to

answer questions from Shareholders.

THE BOARD

Board functions

The Board is responsible for the promotion of success of the Company by
directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and effective manner.
Board members acknowledge their duty to act in good faith, with due
diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its

Shareholders.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

1. setting the Company’s mission and values;

2. formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate
performance;

4. monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members; and

b. ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems

for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.
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Board composition and practices
As at 31 December 2019 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised four executive Directors and three independent non-executive

Directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr Wong Cho Tung (President)

Ms Tang Rongrong

Mr Liu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wang Tianmiao

Mr Wu Zhe

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on

pages 30 to 33 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
connection (including financial, business or family relationship) with each
other as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing

Rules.

During the Year, the roles of the chairman, president and the chief
executive officer were separated in order to reinforce their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility in compliance with the
requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. During the Year, the role of chairman was performed by Ms Yeung
Man Ying who was responsible for developing direction and strategies
of the Group. During the Year, the role of president was performed by
Mr Wong Cho Tung who was responsible for formulating the direction,
strategies and the development plan of the new business of the Group.
During the Year, the role of chief executive officer of the Group was
performed by Mr Liu Jun who, during his tenure, took up the responsibility
of the overall management of the Group’s product and business planning,
including management of product definition, sales, procurement,

production and delivery.
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The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he has met the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the

assessment of independence of non-executive Directors.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management including
the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by the Board
and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board before public

reporting.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors an
opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance with the Bye-
laws. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules and
regulations. Directors have full access to information on the Group and
are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors at the Company’s expense. No request was
made by any Director for such independent professional advice during
the year. The Company Secretary prepares minutes and keeps records
of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings, which

will be available for inspection by Directors upon request.

e
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The Board held four meetings and the Company held one general
meeting in year 2019. The following is the attendance record of each
Director at the Board meetings and the general meeting of the Company
for the Year:

Number of general Number of Board
meeting attended/  meetings attended/

Number of general Number of Board

Name of Director meeting held meetings held
Ms Yeung Man Ying 0/1 4/4
Mr Wong Cho Tung 0/1 4/4
Ms Tang Rongrong 0/1 4/4
Mr Liu Jun 171 4/4
Mr Liu Hing Hung 11 4/4
Mr Wang Tianmiao 01 3/4
Mr Wu Zhe 01 4/4

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board is
responsible for nominating appropriate person, either to fill in casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors for election by

Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

In December 2018, the Company adopted a nomination policy which
sets out the selection criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate as Director. Such criteria include but not limited to academic
background, qualifications, relevant experiences in the industry,
character and integrity of the proposed candidate. Suitable candidate
can be nominated by any Director. The Board should evaluate the
personal profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria as set
out in the nomination policy and undertake adequate due diligence in
respect of each proposed candidate. After comprehensive assessment,
the nomination committee will then make appropriate recommendations
to the Board for approval. All appointments of Directors will ultimately be
based on merit while taking into account the measurable objectives with

regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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As and when circumstances require, the Board will meet to discuss
nomination of new Directors. In considering the suitability of a candidate
for directorship, the Board will adopt an objective criteria, with due regard
to the benefits of diversity, as set out in the board diversity policy of the
Company (“Board Diversity Policy”) as well as the requirements under the

Listing Rules and the nomination policy of the Company.

The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws provides that one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years at each annual general meeting
of the Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who become or were last re-elected Directors on the same day
those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. During
the Year, the Board had in place the Board Diversity Policy in accordance

with the Corporate Governance Code.

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Board takes into account
various elements of diversity including but not limited to age, gender,
cultural and educational background, skills, professional knowledge, and
industry experience in determining the appointment and reappointment
of the Directors and proposed candidates. All Directors appointments are
based on meritocracy and due regard is given to the Board'’s diversity to

ensure the Company can obtain the benefits of such diversity.

During the Year, the Board was satisfied with the diversity of the existing
Board composition and did not, for the time being, set up any measurable

objective regarding board diversity.
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The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis. The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a

regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions in accordance with code provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. During the Year, the Board has reviewed the
policies and practices and compliance by the Company and has reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development of

the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and regulatory
requirements. Further explanation as to how the Company generates
or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
the Company’s objectives is set out under “Chairman’s Statement” from

pages 4 to 13 of this annual report.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company has provided regular updates to the
Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company on a timely basis and on the latest
business development of the Company. The Directors confirmed that they
have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all Directors namely, Ms
Yeung Man Ying, Mr Wong Cho Tung, Ms Tang Rongrong, Mr Liu Jun,
Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao and Mr Wu Zhe, have participated
in continuous professional development by attending seminars/in-house
briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors
such as corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics related to

telecommunications industry.

During the Year, the company secretary of the Company has fully
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15

hours of professional training.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code.
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board
in achieving its goals of providing packages which can attract, retain
and motivate Directors with required qualities for running the Company

successfully.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration: (i) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director and
senior management: (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time. Terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee which have been adopted by the Board are available on the

websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in year 2019 and
had reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management of the Group. The members and attendance of the meeting

are as follows:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 1/1
Mr Wang Tianmiao 1/1
Mr Wu Zhe 11
Mr Wong Cho Tung 1/1

No Director took part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, three of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, being Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang
Tianmiao and Mr Wu Zhe, and one executive Director being Mr Wong Cho
Tung. They have substantial experience in human resources management.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung.

Executive Directors, assisted by the Group’s human resources
department, are responsible for reviewing all relevant remuneration
information and obtaining market conditions in addition to considering
the performance of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and
approval, remuneration packages for Directors and senior management.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of

their own remuneration.
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The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

Directors have completed 12 months of service.

Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options to executive
Directors in accordance with the share option schemes adopted by the

Company.

Each of the executive Directors (except Ms Yeung Man Ying and Mr
Wong Cho Tung) is entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by the
Remuneration Committee by reference to the performance of the Group

and the Director.

Each of Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao and Mr Wu Zhe entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company to serve as an independent
non-executive Director for one year commencing on the date of
appointment and subject to the right of the independent non-executive
Director or the Company to terminate the appointment of the independent
non-executive Director at any time by giving at least one month’s notice

in writing.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has established the Audit Committee with the written

terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent review of
the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group and oversee the audit process and

other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met twice in year 2019 to review with
senior management and the Company’s external auditors the internal and
external audit findings, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and discussed
auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial reporting
matters (including the 2018 annual financial statements and 2019
interim financial statements before recommending them to the Board for

approval).

The following is the attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 2/2
Mr Wang Tianmiao 1/2
Mr Wu Zhe 2/2

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Wang Tianmiao and Mr Wu
Zhe. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung who has

professional qualifications in accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the Year, the
Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the
Company, HK$1.9 million as audit fees and HK$0.4 million as non-audit

fees for reviewing the interim financial report of year 2019.

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 65 to 73 of this

annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review them

at regular intervals.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is designed
to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent and detect fraud
and protect Shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year under review, through
discussions with the management and external auditors, the Board
conducted assessments and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system in various perspectives,
including, among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal control
systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each review covers a

whole financial year.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic risk
management process. The bottom-up approach is supported by key
business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top down approach
reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively identified, prioritised,
and properly addressed by key business units to accomplish the Group’s

objectives.
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The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to the
Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based on the
strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment
and performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism with
comprehensive risk management functions under the authority of the
Board and the guidance of the Audit Committee. It regularly reports its
audit findings and recommendations on internal control to the Audit

Committee and the Board.

During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the Company
continuously optimised job responsibilities and functions of different
departments according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board.
Such audit work covered financial, operation, statutory compliance
and risk management of the Group at all levels and functions, taking
into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness. During the year
under review, the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and material internal controls system and is of the opinion
that the resources for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate and sufficient.
Based on information furnished to it and its own observations, the Board
is satisfied with the present risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and considers them to be effective and adequate. During the
year under review and up to the date of this annual report, nothing has

been found which requires substantial improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure and
regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply with
relevant policies on inside information while notifying the Directors
(who are also the senior management of the Group) and employees the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such information
disclosure from time to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest

information.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Group is responsible for conducting
internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to provide the
Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control systems of
the Group are effective and the risks associated with the achievement of
business objectives are being managed properly. The department also
conducts other projects and investigation work as and when required.
The Directors are satisfied that an effective control system has been
in operation having reviewed the material controls and all other major

components of the internal control system of the Group for the Year.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The Board has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) in

compliance with code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code
with effect from 1 January 2019. Declaration and payment of dividend by
the Company is also subject to the laws of Bermuda, the Byelaws and any

applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company can declare dividends from time
to time. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter alia, the
financial performance of the Group, the Group’s expected working capital
requirements, capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans, retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group, the Group’s liquidity position,
the general economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group, and any other factors that the Board deems

relevant.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time by
the Board and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be proposed

or declared in any given period.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds to
requests for information and queries from the investment community by

the investor relations personnel.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information of the
Group to Shareholders through sending the Shareholders the Company’s
interim and annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports as and
when appropriate and providing additional information to Shareholders in

the “Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.

.K/@.
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hEERRE

Annual general meeting of the Company (“Annual General Meeting”)
provides a good opportunity for communications between the Board and
Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual General
Meeting. Notice of the Annual General Meeting and related papers
are sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and the said notice is also published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and of the Company. The Chairman and Directors (if aplicable),
or the duly appointed delegate will answer questions on the Group’s
business at the Annual General Meeting. External auditors will also attend

the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions

put to the vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.

The poll is conducted by the Company’s share registrar and the results
of the poll will be published on websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. Financial and other information is made available on
the Company’s website and updated regularly. Specific enquiries and
suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in Hong Kong at
Unit 1206, 12th Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun
Tong, Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING/PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

A.  Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting

1. Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to the
Company’s registered office in Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, for the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition.
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The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those Shareholder(s).

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements and the Listing Rules
to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a special general
meeting will not be convened as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at a special general meeting varies according to the

nature of the proposal as follows:

- at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than
ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company,
which cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical
amendment to correct a patent error; and

- at lease fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.
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B.  Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general
meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as Director
1. The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of those Shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholder(s) concerned, can submit a written

requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

2. The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the

Shareholder(s) concerned).

3. The written requisition must be deposited at Unit 1206, 12th Floor,
Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong,
the registered office of the Company in Hong Kong, for the attention
of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution

and not less than one week in the case of any other requisition.

4. The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
Proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the Annual General
Meeting; or (ii) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements and
the Listing Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the Shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, (i)
the proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the
Annual General Meeting; or (ii) a special general meeting will not

be convened as requested.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company did not amend its constitutional

documents.
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
EARNEEERRA A
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM Technology
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 245, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

HRANMREEERATRR
(R BFREZ M H LB BRI F])

=z
=

A ERE (VAT A AP D) B FER IR E 74
E25 AN RAMKEBER AR (VAT RHHE
[ERR D REMBAR(ATAMEIEEE])
MEREMEHER WP BRREEN_F—H
F+A=1T—BHEAUBINRRBEEZ
BlFENGReBER A BRaEMERH
Wk A ERSEHRNGEARNERESR -
URAREMEHRERNTE - BRI EST R
Eo

BFIRA  ZEEEPBEHRRERBKEERES
BHEEL) (ERMBEREER D EEM
hERRT BEEER-_FT-AFt+_A
=Tt BENERAUMBRARBEZE LFEN
HEMBRALFAETRE - YEERER
CRBMEGIDEYI R B R e -

B R R

BB RBECERERTERD ([EFREETER )
EITHE - BRMERZEAN TAENEEDE
s [ZBA B R A VB REBAENR
£ B 5 e — PRI - RIBEIR @ 5TANE
ERHEZEERMAKEESAIBESAD
(I=F8I)) » HMBLR EEE - WERITSE
AR M E B R - FAIAEME - RIMFTES
METBREETENEEHARMNEAER

TRALERE o

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH

65



66

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,

were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as
a key audit matter because of the significant
judgement exercised by management
in determining the appropriate levels of
allowance.

As disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying
amount of inventories is approximately
HK$250,771,000 as at 31 December
2019. The management of the Group
reviews an ageing analysis of inventories
at the end of the reporting period and
makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for use in production or
sale. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such finished goods and
raw materials primarily based on the latest
selling and purchase prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of the reporting period and
makes allowance for obsolete items.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the
valuation of inventories included the
following:

o Obtaining an understanding of
how allowance for inventories is
estimated by the management;

o Testing the ageing analysis of
inventory, on a sample basis, to
goods receipt notes;

o Discussing with the management
and evaluating the basis of obsolete
inventories identified by the
management, based on the current
market conditions, product life cycle
and marketing and promotion plans;

o Assessing the reasonableness
of allowance for inventories with
reference to historical sales records,
current market conditions, product
life cycle, ageing analysis and
subsequent selling and purchase
prices of the inventories; and

o Tracing a selection of inventories
with subsequent selling prices to
sales invoices.
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Key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter because
of the significant judgements required
to determine the fair value of investment
properties.

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s
investment properties amounted to
HK$608,388,000 as at 31 December 2019.
Gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties of HK$12,779,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended.

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was determined by adopting
the valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs, assumptions of
market conditions and judgements based
on the valuation performed by independent
qualified professional valuers. Details of the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 15 in the
consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the
valuation of investment properties included
the following:

° Obtaining the valuation report from
independent qualified professional
valuers and discussing with
management and independent
qualified valuers to understand
the valuation basis, methodology
used and underlying assumptions
applied;

o Evaluating management's process
in respect of reviewing the valuation
performed by independent
qualified professional valuers;

o Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of
independent qualified professional
valuers;

o Challenging the valuation
techniques and reasonableness
of the significant inputs adopted
by the management of the Group
and the independent qualified
professional valuers based on our
knowledge of the property industry;
and

o Performing market research and
analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment
properties resulted from the
valuation was reasonable and
consistent with market trends to our
knowledge.
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Key audit matter
Valuation of trade receivables

We identified impairment assessment of
trade receivables as a key audit matter due
to the involvement of subjective judgement
and management estimates in evaluating
the expected credit losses (“ECL") of the
Group’s trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's
net trade receivables amounting to
approximately HK$275,829,000 and out
of these trade receivables of approximately
HK$51,406,000 were past due.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

o Understanding key controls on how
the management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables;

o Testing the integrity of information
used by management to develop
the ECL model, including trade
receivables ageing analysis as at
31 December 2019, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual
items in the analysis with the
relevant sales agreements, sales
invoices and other supporting
documents; and
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Key audit matter
Valuation of trade receivables (continued)

As disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of
the Group estimates the amount of lifetime
ECL individually for trade receivables with
significant balance or credit impaired,
and the remaining balances are based on
provision matrix through grouping of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns,
after considering internal credit ratings of
trade debtors, ageing, repayment history
and/or past due status of respective trade
receivables. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information. In
addition, trade receivables that are credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
The loss allowance amount of the credit
impaired trade receivables is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows with the consideration of
expected future credit losses.

As disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group recognised an
impairment allowance for trade receivables of
approximately HK$4,797,000 for the year and
the Group's lifetime ECL on trade receivables
as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$28,387,000.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

o Challenging management’s basis
and judgement in determining
credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 December
2019, including their identification
of credit impaired trade receivables,
individual trade debtors
with significant balance, the
reasonableness of management’s
grouping of the remaining trade
debtors into different categories in
the provision matrix, and the basis
of estimated loss rates applied in
each category (with reference to
historical default rates and forward-
looking information).
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of

the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

. HE BEATEFFEAEHEESHR
R B R BB A
i o

s HEESRARELLSTTERNREN
e & o RIBATEDK R ERE -
ERAFHEEEHENBFENERNEAT
HEMN - KAl g Y SERENE
BRERNELERRE - MRUMA
REFEEARNEEMN - B BEEZH
B E P IRBEAE I BFREMBTRE
RHERRE - REAEHNRET R
AEFIRERRIFEBRERR - HMH
fEam e A INMZ AT E B LT EUS &
FHERE o A RARBAIBERAEE
B ERETRERELE -

o FERSMBmEAMNBEIIERLN
BNAR  BIERE - LA)SZZ*’\EM%#E
REBPERMRRZZMEIR

e B axlmﬁﬁgiiﬁiﬁﬁwﬁ#ﬁﬁ
MEMTR  EEMBERE - N
BUBHREERER - BMAE BE
BE A - BEENRT - RAE
ARAAERIEME -

BREMERS  RAIEEER T ENE
FHEiE - RRERH - EARAERSE B8R
PIFERRT R A BRI O (L R AR



We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Chung Chin Cheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

8 April 2020
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Revenue
Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income

Other expenses

Impairment losses under expected credit
loss model, net of reversal

Other gains and losses

Research and development expenses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss) profit for the year
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) earnings per share (HK cents)
Basic

Diluted
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Hiet

42

24

11

12

14

2019 2018
—EB-hEF —E)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
1,281,505 2,312,230
(1,121,865) (2,135,339)
159,640 176,891
36,206 36,084

- (90,499)
(31,084) (13,287)
2,659 483,821
(79,660) (52,240)
(67,453) (114,450)
(106,520) (121,201)
(2,003) 770
(3,282) (6,243)
(91,497) 299,646
16,636 (84,607)
(74,861) 215,039
(76,938) 238,012
2,077 (22,973)
(74,861) 215,039
(3.11) 9.33
(3.11) ©.38




(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expense)
Items that may not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
during the year:
Surplus on transfer of right-of-use assets,
land use rights, property,
plant and equipment
and properties held for sale
to investment properties at fair value
Fair value gain (loss) on investment in equity
instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Deferred tax relating to items that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange difference arising on
translation to presentation currency

Other comprehensive income (expense)

Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year

Total comprehensive (expense) income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

AEE (BR) 5 F

R R EURRE (%)
ERTREHHEE
AR RS IBR

BEREEE - THFER%E -
Y% - BB KRB RIFE
HEMFERERNATE
ARZIREYH 2 Bt

TERNE A EFAHM
EHEWENRATA
2 ATEWE (E518)

BRAEH D EBmMIER
B ZEERIA

BREEZ25|E8EE
ZEERZERR

HAh 2w (F)
RNEERH () WaesR
ORI 2 (Fs) Y
#RE

ZA/NIEZ 2N
TR e

2019 2018
—E-NF & —\%F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TR
(74,861) 215,039
84,486 48,974
15,609 (28,561)
(25,024) (5,104)
(13,308) (59,644)
61,763 (44,335)
(13,098) 170,704
(14,663) 198,170
1,565 (27,466)
(13,098) 170,704
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Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Land use rights

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Finance lease receivables

Interests in associates

Equity instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

Other receivables
Consideration receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Finance lease receivables

Properties held for sale

Trade and notes receivables

Contract assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Consideration receivables

Amount due from an associate

Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Entrusted loan receivable
Pledged bank deposits
Short-term bank deposits
Bank balances and cash
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Hiet

15
16
17
18
20
21
22
19
24

25
28
42

26
19
27
28
28

28
42
28

28

25
23
29
29
29

2019 2018
—EB-hEF —E)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
608,388 479,282
267,712 306,179
55,098 -
- 68,104
116,704 147,950
44,092 44,606
188 328
6,647 3,044
669 39,149
7,412 8,793
4,043 4,796
1,110,953 1,102,231
250,771 372,846
169 432
12,711 41,683
282,462 231,499
11,201 36,353
230,478 423,913
1,857 4,601

- 4,400

4,496 4,496
22,512 18,278
- 25,946
31,226 57,557
296,380 -
611,714 647,776
1,755,977 1,869,780




2019 2018

—E-NEF —FT-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FHBxT FHET
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and notes payables AN N E S 30 224,322 184,822
Contract liabilities AHaE 31 202,255 219,345
Other payables, deposits received Hih ERTBRER
and accruals Bz e Kk BT FRIE 30 54,273 50,498
Other liabilities HEipaE 30 - 29,692
Bank borrowings RITIEE 32 77,936 83,887
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 6,319 =
Tax payable FERI 1A 40,224 43,931
605,329 612,175
Net current assets REBEESE 1,150,648 1,257,605
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBEE 2,261,601 2,359,836
Capital and reserves EARR G
Share capital il 34 243,072 252,025
Reserves s 35 1,849,269 1,907,009
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z&A &% G A JE(5H#EZS 2,092,341 2,159,034
Non-controlling interests JEFEAS FE RS 18,330 63,405
Total equity FERARE 2,110,671 2,222,439
Non-current liabilities JEmBIAE
Lease liabilities HEaRE 33 2,865 =
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFRIERE 22 112,413 98,200
Deferred income REUWA 30 35,652 39,197
150,930 137,397

2,261,601 2,359,836

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 245 were HNFETAB RSB 2 i3 MBS REN —_E_ZF

approved by the Board of Directors on 8 April 2020 and are signed MMANBEESEeHE  WHUTEERERE
on its behalf by:

WONG CHO TUNG LIU JUN
THEE 2=
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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AR ER
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—% "‘**\ B
Attibutable to onners of the Company
ROAREARE
Share
Statutory based  Properties Rssgts — Capitl Non-
Share Share  suphs Other  payment  revaluation  revaluation redemption  Translation  Retained controlling
capital ~~ premium lesene resene Tesere Tesee Tesene lesene resene profits Total  interests Total
e Hip % &k & b3
Bh BEGE  RHRE  RMRE  ARBE  EMEE  EERE  GERE  EERE  REM &if B &if
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
Tkt TR TR TRt TR TR TEr  TEr TR A TR TR TEn
(Nolea) ~ (Noteh)
(e) (o)
At 1 January 2018 NE-NE-R-B 250 8006 S0 gl X6 1087 4% 28 18190 I 217810 l0ndel 22991
Proft (oss) forthe year RERHH (BE) = = = = = = S - - 3B 202 (201 25039
Other comprehensie income KEEEM
(eense for the ear 2EhE(Fx) = - - - B (V| - (BB - (M) 4 )
Tota comprehensie income M 2EhE
(expense) or the year (Bx)eg - - - - - B 24 - (bl 2802 18170 (274600 170704
Stere optons apsedfreted ﬂ%ﬁx%m/ ERY - - - - (I0515) - - - - l0gK - - -
(Gan on partial isposal o equiy SOtERNTET
insruments t FVTOC) J\EVEQE%Z
RETE s = = = = = - (8929) - - 8929 - - -
Disposal o subscares HEWER - - (490 - - - - - - 490 - W) e
Roguiston of addioal neress —— EHBAT
n Subsidiaries Bitg S - - (182) - - - - - - (182 (6149) (7910)
Transerto statory surpls BERET
fesene BHaE - - 1% - - - - - - 1% - - -
Repurchase o ordinary shares BELER B39 (789 - - - - - 3930 - (90 (117%9) - (1178
Dhcend paid Effs = . > = = = - - - (33 (1433) - (133
31 December 2018 A-3-N\E
+2f=1-8 205 8T 312 %282 19231 13957 17184 622 13279 619414 2159034 83406 222439
(Loss) prft o the ear 1R (ER)&A - - - - - - - - - (6%%) (6% 20 (486l
(Ot comprefiensieincome ERE
(expense)for e year SENE(ER) - - - - TR\ W - (127%) - 65 (512 61763
Total comprefensie income TERRENE
(expense) fo the year (Bx)eg - - - - - 6334 1L07 - (127%) (16938 (14663) 1565 (13,098)
Share optionslapsedforfefed ﬂ%ﬁx B/ B - - - - (190) - - - - 190 - - -
(ian on partial isposal o equiy IHERD B
intuments &t FTOC) }\ﬁﬁﬁ%z
RATE UG - - - - - - 670 - - %0 - - -
Desegiteredcfanonhalyoned — ~TEE2EHEAT
subsidary e - - (86) - - - - - - 86 - (L (114
Reducionin egiered caplaling~ ~FE2BHEAT
non-uholly onned stbsidiary SR - - - - - - - - - - - BB (@53
Trensler o Satutory surplus ERBHT
Tesene Bnah - -1 - - - - - - mm - - -
Repurchaseof ocinry hares EEEAR (8953)  (18084) - - - - - 895 - (8% (09 -
Divdend paid Efife - - - - - - - - - (4993 (499) - (499)
Divicend paid o non-controling H-HEADER
Sharcholders ofa subsiary REEzHRE - - - - - - - - - - - (142) (142)
31 December 2019 AENE
TTRSt-R 30 806123 64250 9528 19041 202921 2181 15165 120003 54303 2002341 18330 2110671
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year, the
subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net profit
after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the
reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital). The
reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors
of the relevant subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital.

Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, and the difference between the considerations paid
and the relevant non-controlling interests upon the acquisition of additional
interests in subsidiaries.

Hraz:

(a)

(b)

Ao ARKMBE ([FE ) EZERERZRE - RH
BRI 2 B A R B4 AR IREOFAE 2 Al BB iR
FEME 10% (E R AT BB (RIBEBME R Rl
BARB0% BRI o ZFREESER BRKEREE
BEEMER - HARGHEEMNBARESE RERE
ERBIIE -

REBARABRNMNEEHEXSMERATER LD
METEAES < Bt RENREERKENES
REIMEEIMERES AR IR R M E N ER -
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on write-off of right-of-use assets
Net gain on deregistration of subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of an associate
Dividend income

Impairment loss on financial assets and other

items under expected credit loss model,
net of reversal
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss on goodwill
Write-off of amount due from an associate
Write-off of inventories
Revalution gain on investment in associate
Share of results of associates
Allowance for inventories

Changes in fair values of investment properties

Fair value change on financial assets at
FVTPL
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in properties held for sales

(Increase) decrease in trade and notes receivables
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, deposits

and prepayments
Decrease (increase) in contract assets
Decrease in finance lease receivables
Increase (decrease) in trade and notes payables
Decrease in contract liabilities
Increase in other payables,

deposits received and accruals and

deferred income

Cash generated from operations
Interest received
PRC tax refund (paid), net

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

RETH

BRTiAT (B5HR) i A

SETHIRA fEHERE -
BERA

e R
HEME - BE R
R ER

Mt REEE 2 et
BUHE B 2 B2 e 48
HE— 2 ARz Y
REHA
RHEEEREATZ
TREENRAEMIAR
BEEER - HRED

nE - BERREIRERR

BEEZRERBR
BEZRERR

s e — R D A2 50R

MsHFE
REERRIRE 2 Bih e
ke PNCIE S

FERE

REMFRFHEE
BAHEF ARG EREE
NHEEE

FSHA

BEELEBHI
RERERE
FERD
FEHEMFERD
FEE SRR () W
HEUER - e R
BNFERD (4E10)
ANEERD (B10)
ERREREHD
BB S RF R RE M 5L
AHEERD
AfERER - EES
FERHRR BRI
il

RELKE 2R
B
RO (ER) FREFRFE

REREEH2REFRE

2019 2018
ZE-hF —TN\&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
(91,497) 299,646
3,282 6,243
161,801 208,874
440 2,352
(13) -
(1,144) (519,135)
(1,660) =
- (358)
31,084 13,287
1,315 =
21,072 -
3,706 B
4,400 -
- 71,022
(4,603) -
2,003 (770)
8,075 17,207
(12,779) (7,665)
(4,234) 5,486
(17,458) (7,315)
103,790 88,874
119,786 257,463
6,798 426,360
(60,148) 25,877
195,430 (143,672)
36,153 (18,677)
390 1,896
35,627 (105,618)
(16,545) (256,223)
26,310 35,473
447,591 311,753
17,458 6,408
16,327 (67,809)
481,376 250,352




INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of

— financial assets at FVTPL

- equity instruments at FVTOCI

Purchases of
- financial assets at FVTPL
- equity instruments at FVTOCL

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of license
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary
Development costs paid
Investment in an associate
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Placement of short-term bank deposits
Receipt of consideration receivables
Dividend received
Injection from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
Advance to an associate

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Decrease in other liabilities

Interest paid

Dividend paid

Dividend paid to non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary

Repurchase of shares

Cash transfered to non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary upon share reduction in registered
capital of a subsidiary that does not result in
losing control

Cash used in acquisitions of additional
interests of subsidiaries

Repayment of lease liabilities

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash
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(31,847) (45,573)

- 2,150

42,828 17,851

- (25,914)

(1,142) (7,468)
8,387 5,498

- (26,225)

(18,412) =
(104,643) (165,985)
(4,576) -
(52,722) (101,702)
78,344 71,095
(296,380) -
3,372 -

- 358

- 6,889

42 - 536,691
- (1,200)
(376,791) 266,465
113,112 88,515
(124,804) (84,104)
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(2,636) (6,243)
(24,993) (143,335)
(142) -
(27,037) (11,789)
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- (7,970)

(8,909) =
(150,247) (274,750)
(45,662) 242,067
647,776 417,092
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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GENERAL INFORMATION

—RER

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) with limited liability. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of
the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), as the Directors
consider that it is a more appropriate presentation for a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and for the convenience of the
shareholders.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are disclosed in note 46.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”)

ARRDRBARE-NN—FREE(EE
FRBREZIMRLAERRERIF - K
RAZEMMPER LT BEEMIEEFRZIAD
AER —EAEE

ARBZYEERRARE ([ARKE D) - AiR
BUBHRRABT(ET]) 25 DEES
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P B ER AR M EARRMBIR - BEHREK
NBT2INERRE
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FE P 75T Bl B B 7 3 o5 22 A ([ B
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New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs for the first time in the current year:

FAZR R BT e N T R S R S AU R
E 5T

AR E BN A SR T HT TR
oA RE BT -

IFRS 16 Leases
B B B 75 i 5 2 BI85 1657 HE
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

BRI S mERELZ 8 8% 235,
Amendments to IFRS 9

B B B 745 5 HE BRI SE O 5% 2 45T
Amendments to IAS 19

BIFR & 5T 2ERIZE 1957 2 85T
Amendments to IAS 28

BIFR & 5T 2ERIZE 28 57 2 18R]
Amendments to IFRSs

BB B 75 i 5 MBI 2 1B RT
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Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
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Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
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Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
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Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
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New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (conTINUED)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1

IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in
current year. IFRS 16 superseded IAS 17 Leases (“IAS
17”), and the related interpretation.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not
apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group
has not reassessed contracts which already existed
prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
IFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a
lease.

RAFEREER 2 H T ERM B REENR
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2.1 EIBAEEEEAIE 165 [HE]
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New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (conTINUED)

2.1

IFRS 16 Leases (CONTINUED)

As a lessee

The Group has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal
to the related lease liabilities by applying IFRS 16.C8(b)
(ii) transition. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained profits
and comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under IFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for leases with lease term
ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application;

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
applications; and

iii. used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial application in
determining the lease term for the Group’s leases
with extension and termination options.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRE SRR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2. FERAMETEBIRIBREZER ([
BRE SR ) REEET (&)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (conTINUED)

2.1 IFRS 16 Leases (coNTINUED)
As a lessee (CoNTINUED)
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant
group entities at the date of initial application. The
weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied by the relevant group entities is 5.1% per
annum.

Operating lease commitments disclosed
as at 31 December 2018

Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental
borrowing rates
Less: Recognition exemption — short term leases

Lease liabilities relating to operating leases recognised
upon application of IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019

Analysed as
Current
Non-current

RASFE BG4 Rz T BRI | E AR

HAEHT (8)
2.1 EBRMBHREEAFI6H[HEI(H)
TERZMN (&)

REREMSBEAKCEHEZHEZH
EaERN  AEECRAYIZEABHIR
FARREEER ZIZSEERX - {2
SEEEERAZMEFHEABAZIEE
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At
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2019
»
—ZE-NF
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HK$'000
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P 38 2 48 & 70 & s e 17,314
IR 2 5 B R ATERIR
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B RAEhG —EEHEE (3,538)
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (cCoNTINUED)

2. FERAMETEIRI RS ZER ([ F
BRI E R ) REEET (&)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (conTINUED)

2.1

IFRS 16 Leases (CONTINUED)

As a lessee (coNTINUED)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use
as at 1 January 2019 comprises the following:

Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases
recognised upon application of IFRS 16

Reclassified from land use rights

By class:
Office premises
Warehouses
Land use rights
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New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (conTINUED)

2.1

IFRS 16 Leases (CONTINUED)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment
on transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor
but account for these leases in accordance with IFRS
16 from the date of initial application and comparative
information has not been restated.

Upon application of IFRS 16, new lease contracts
entered into but commence after the date of initial
application relating to the same underlying assets
under existing lease contracts are accounted as if the
existing leases are modified as at 1 January 2019.
The application has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position at 1
January 2019. However, effective 1 January 2019,
lease payments relating to the revised lease term after
modification are recognised as income on straight-line
basis over the extended lease term.

Before application of IFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits received were considered as rights and
obligations under leases to which IAS 17 applied.
Based on the definition of lease payments under
IFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right-of-use assets and were adjusted to reflect
the discounting effect at transition. The application
has insignificant impact on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 January 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (cCoNTINUED)

30

J& 3R] B R B 755 o 5 22 A

= ([E
BRI SR ) REEE (F&

nE )

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (conTINUED)
2.1 IFRS 16 Leases (cONTINUED)
As a lessor (conTINUED)
The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

TR £ B2 3 15 4 202 3 T BB PR B A 3 5 R R R

HAERT (8)
2.1 EBRMBHREEAFI6H[HEI(H)
TERLTA (&)

EHR-_ZF-NF-A—AZKEEMHK
FRRIRKR TR Z SRRIELIATHE -
AXEHTEIABWEBEENA -

Non-current assets FraEE
Right-of-use assefs EREEE
Land use rights TR
Current liabilities fBaE

Lease liabilities (Note) RESEHit)
Non-current liablities o )=1
Lease liabilities (Note) RE&EHiz)

Carrying

Carrying amount amount under
previously IFRS 16
reported at 31 at 1 January
December 2019
2018 BRERE TS
FATR A
—E-N\E £16%
+ZA RZZ-NF
=t+-H Adjustment —A—H
WEzERE HE ZEEE
HKD$'000 HKD$'000 HKD$'000
TATL TiEr TATL

- 79,960 79,960

68,104 (68,104) =

- 4815 4815

- 7,041 7,041

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
December 2019, movements in working capital have been
computed based on opening consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above.

Other than the recognised right-of-use assets and lease

liabilities, the applicaiton of IFRS16 has no material
impact on the retained profits.
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New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 17

B B B 7 5 R R S8 17 5%
Amendments to IFRS 3

BB B T 5 MBI EE 3 5% 2 185 T
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BB B 7 R MBI S8 1058 R BIBR & 5
AEBI|ZE 2857 2 1EET

Amendments to IAS 1

BIpR @ E RIS 158 2 1&R]

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
BIFR & ET2ERIZE 1 5% REIR &5t
E 852 E5]

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
BIRR B S RS HERISE O 5% - BIRR &5t
ZERISE 39 5% Ko BB B s R 45 AR B
ETHR2IEFT

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. 1

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for 2
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

© BR 5 {8 1o AR A B2 3T AT R ARME AT B R B A 3R
HER

AEE AR RA T EBMIE R RERZ
] BRI RS E R R B AEAT

Insurance Contracts!

RigE 4!

Definition of a Business?

¥ ER?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

REERHBENRNEECEMZEEHESEANS

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current®
HBREI ERRENIERE®
Definition of Material*

BERZER?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform#

EE ST ey

R-Z——F— - HARZ&RABRZFEHARE
W o

HWERAHAR T -_TF— A —H kMK
M EEFEHRSRZ RAEBNEBEHREER
A -

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 3 WEETE BBk 2 Bt 2 EE BRI AR o
determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. 4 NIE_EF—-A—H 2 BHENMFEER4
B e
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. 5 R-E-—F— A— B2 BN EEHERE
e

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
IFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned
below, the Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to IFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements in the foreseeable future.
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New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgments. In particular, the
amendments:

o include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating the
information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

° include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was considered
too broad when deciding what information to disclose in
the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all IFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

The New Framework:

° reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights
and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader
than the definition it replaces, but does not change the
distinction between a liability and an equity instrument;

° discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

° states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or expenses
that arise from a change in the current value of an asset
or liability; and

° discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account,
the reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain IFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some IFRSs are still referred to the
previous versions of the framework. These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020, with earlier application permitted. Other than specific
standards which still refer to the previous versions of the
framework, the Group will rely on the New Framework on
its effective date in determining the accounting policies
especially for transactions, events or conditions that are not
otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting periods as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 (since 1
January 2019) or IAS 17 (before application of IFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories
or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Basis of consolidation (coNTINUED)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted,
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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Basis of consolidation (conTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;
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Business combinations (continued)

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in IFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable
terms of the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Business combinations (continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under IFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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Interests in associates (CONTINUED)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date of which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant associate.
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Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Groupperforms;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation in electronic manufacturing services contracts
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer, as in contracts for sale of handsets and 10T
terminals, own-branded products manufacturing, sale of
goods to vending machine customers and franchisee, sale of
intelligent manufacturing products and sale of properties.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, as in contracts for electronic
manufacturing services and procurement agency services, it
recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission
to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging
for the specified goods or services to be provided by the other

party.
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Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of office premises and warehouse that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (conNTINUED)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (coNTINUED)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (conNTINUED)

Lease liabilities (conTINUED)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates followings a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.
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Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (coNTINUED)

Lease liabilities (conTINUED)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease incentives from lessor by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the
modified contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
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Leases (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019) (conTINUED)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered
as integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at amounts
equal to net investments in the leases, measured using the
interest rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct
costs (other than those incurred by manufacturer or dealer
lessors) are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
where primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis in the period in which they become
receivable.
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Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Shares/share options granted to employees and other
providing similar services as employees

The fair value of the share option determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
based payment reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimate,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share based payment reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share based payment reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share based payment are
forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share based
payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Taxation (conTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
asset and the related lease liability, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
asset or the lease liability.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liability, the Group applies HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use asset
and lease liability are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use asset over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liability resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.
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Taxation (conTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in the
income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of
each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely
amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.
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Property, plant and equipment (CoNTINUED)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
(CONTINUED)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” (upon application of IFRS 16) or “land
use rights” (before application of IFRS 16) in the consolidated
statement of financial position,except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant prepaid lease payments
under IAS 17) at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in properties
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.
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Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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Intangible assets (conTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use asset and intangible assets other than goodwill
(CONTINUED)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

M- BERZRE ERAREEREEUINME
FREEZRERRE (&)

AN AREFEREFECKEENEHR
BEREMNTR - MEEZTR - Er#ENE
BERER BN REER  CXEETED
EERReELBL - KARMBTRNDEE
ARG ERER—BOREENK N RSE
EEBRAAR

AU eS8 AN HE (FIRH ER AR ) HER
EBEMEzRSE - RHEEREBER @ A5t
ARREREARABRXBREALRE - F
BT AIRA IR R R E B S YRR RIEER
Al A REFF AR S RAREELRAEZ
BE (SHRSELEM) 2FERR

M—IREE(RRSELEN) 2 EKEHR
EEHSENEREE - AIZREE (B E
HEM) 2REERYREELAEKEE - 5
REREE B EENEERSELEMW
CEBEXMOCEEENS - FEESLR
—EARzReELENEEE(RRE DR
ERERCELBU I CEEELNDEEER
EZREE) BZARcELBL 2 TRE S
# o BEBEGNRRERER

WRBEREBRERRERD - AZAEE (IR
TEABUR—HERSELEN) 2REER
BERA OISR EIERT A BUE - 1EE
mEz EmMENSBBNEFEEEE (KR
TEEEN) R E R AR EE 2 BRE
18 < BREBREL KRR BR R

5
FRBAAR A BRI EME T2 REEA
B o TR AT TR B o AR
R S AR TR F AR
K S A o

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH

119



120

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value is determined based on
price ultimately expected to be realised less applicable selling
expenses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are intially measured in accordance
with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of IFRS
9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Financial instruments (cONTINUED)

Financial assets (cONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

()

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.
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Financial instruments (CoNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the assets revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other
income” line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items, subject to
impairment assessment IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets (including trade
and notes receivables, other receivables, consideration
receivables, entrusted loan receivable, amounts due from an
associate and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
short-term bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances),contract assets and finance lease receivables
which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12 months ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables,
contract assets and finance lease receivables. The ECL
on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances or credit impaired and the remaining
balances are collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items, subject to
impairment assessment IFRS 9 (continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (cONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items, subject to
impairment assessment IFRS 9 (continued)

(1)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 180 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 360 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (conNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items, subject to

impairment assessment IFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items, subject to
impairment assessment IFRS 9 (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a finance lease receivables, the cash flows used
for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the finance lease receivables
in accordance with IFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or
IAS 17 (prior to 1 January 2019).
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Financial instruments (CoNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets and other items, subject to
impairment assessment IFRS 9 (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade receivables, contract assets and finance
lease receivables are each assessed as a
separate group. Amounts due from related
parties, entrusted loan receivable, other
receivables and consideration receivables
are assessed for expected credit losses on an
individual basis);

° Past-due status;

° Nature and size of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, contract assets and consideration
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial assets (coNTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is held for trading.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (conNTINUED)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (conTINUED)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any interest paid on the financial liabilities and is
included in other gains and losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and notes payables, other
payables and accruals, other liabilities and bank borrowings)
are initially measured at fair values and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are critical judgements involving estimations,
the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for use in production or sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials primarily based on the latest
selling and purchase prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at the end of the reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete items. If the market condition was to
deteriorate, resulting in a lower net realisable value for such
finished goods and raw materials, additional allowances may
be required. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of inventories is approximately HK$250,771,000 (2018:
HK$372,846,000). During the year ended 31 December
2019, allowance of inventories of HK$8,075,000 was charged
(2018: HK$17,207,000) to profit or loss.
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Collectability of entrusted loan receivable

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss on
entrusted loan receivable, the Group estimates the future
cash flows of the entrusted loan receivable for impairment
testing purpose. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the entrusted loan
receivable’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise in future financial periods. The carrying value of
entrusted loan receivable at 31 December 2019 was HK$Nil
(2018: HK$25,946,000) (net of accumulated impairment loss
of HK$34,601,000 (2018: HK$8,314,000)).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract assets
The Group calculates ECL for the trade receivables and
contract assets. The provision rates are based on past-due
status of individual debtors or as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The individual assessment
and provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables and contract assets with significant balances and
credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in notes 45 and 28
respectively.
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Estimated impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether development costs included in
intangible assets are individually impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use calculation by reference to
the cash flow projections prepared in accordance with the
signed sales contracts of respective projects. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, an impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of development costs is approximately HK$97,348,000
(2018: HK$121,219,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation of development costs are disclosed in note 21.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst
different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and
certain projects of the Group have not yet finalised their land
appreciation tax calculations and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of land appreciation
and its related income tax provisions. The Group recognised
the LAT based on management’s best estimates. The final
tax outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and the related income tax provisions
in the periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax
authorities.
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Estimated fair value of investment properties

Investment properties were revalued at the end of the
reporting period using income capitalisation approach by
independent qualified professional valuer. Such valuation
was based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making the valuation, the Group’s management has made
estimates concerning rental yield for rental income to be
generated by the investment properties. The assumptions
used are intended to reflect conditions existing at the end
of the reporting period. Where there are any changes in
the assumptions due to the market conditions in the PRC,
the estimate of fair value of investment properties may be
significantly affected. As at 31 December 2019, investment
properties of approximately HK$608,388,000 (2018:
HK$479,282,000) were revalued.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation
to the Group’s investment properties has been measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in IAS 12.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

R REMEZ A TE

REME 2 BEENBENRABILSERE
EEEMMBRABERMES NETER - B
BHDENRE TERRET  ERFRIHEE
t - WAIREREREEFTEEAER - EIFH
HER  AEEERECHRENEFELZ
BeWARBZ B R RIEL GE - AER
ZBRIBRMNBERARLR BN - HE
FRRARBETISHRN LR EA S - SRR
HIREMEZ BT A TEERERVE - N
T-NF+ZA=+—H " #%608,388,000
BT (ZZ—/\£F 1 479,282,000%7T) 2% &
VIEWELR -

REMEZIELERIE
RETEARNTHERNA B ZREMERELZ
EREBIA  ARREFCERAKEZEREY
FHE  UR/AEEZREMETEBRN
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁjﬁﬁa%ﬁ&§%¥%ﬁ%

DRERENZE 2 FHREATE - Bt - N5+
EREEREME EERIAR - ERETEE
BHE2BPREUAFERAGFEZRENE
FREEZ R HIER - ALt - ARAKER
BEMEZREHIACRBEE ST ERE 125
Pz —RIRAIGTE -



(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Segments

G-

Types of goods or services

Sale of handsets and 10T terminals

Electronics manufacturing services

Sale of goods to vending machine
customers and franchisee

Equipment finance lease service

Procurement agency service

Sale of intelligent manufacturing
products

Sale of properties

Property rental

Total

Timing of revenue recognition
Ata paintin time

QOver time

Total

CLETEY]
HETRRIBERLE
STRERBHER
RERREFRITEE
ARERR
EGEEER
RERERH

HERYREER

HENE
e

&t

WARRER
RA-H %

i

() DHFELEFUA

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-R-NEtSR=T-ALE

Electronics
Handsets and  manufacturing 10T

10T terminals services system and Intelligent
business business 020 business  manufacturing Property Property
FRRUER ETRERE  UEBZER business  development  management
KRR HEBER BEEY  SRRERR NERR  WFHEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn Ti#n Ti#gn Ti#n TEn
749,670 - - - - -
- 92,960 - - - -
- - 233,700 - - -
- - 86 - - -
- - 26,703 - - -
- - - 126,487 - -
- - - - 8,823 -
- - - - - 43,076
749,670 92,960 260,489 126,487 8,823 43,076
749,670 - 260,403 126,487 8,823 N/A
TER
- 92,960 - - - N/A
TER
749,670 92,960 260,403 126,487 8,823 N/A
TER
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DIREFLERIMA (&)

(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i)
customers (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BECR-\EtZA=T-ALE

Segments Electronics
28 Handsets and  manufacturing (0])
10T terminals services system and Intelligent
business business 020 business  manufacturing Property Property
FRLER ESTRERE  UEPZLER business  development ~ management
HRER  HEBRY BEEY  SHREER NERR  NEREER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEgn TiEn TiEn
Types of goods or services ERTmEER
Sale of handsets and 10T terminals ~ $5EFi4 R BB S 829,368 - - - - -
Own-branded products BAmERE
manufacturing - 154,112 - - - -
Electronics manufacturing senvices B FSLEMRB AL ER - 407,507 - - - -
Sale of goods o vending machine ~ MEEHEF RiHIE
customers and franchisee BHEEER - - 284,527 - - -
Equipment finance lease service RERERERE - - 294 - - -
Procurement agency service RBRERS - - 34,101 - - -
Sale of inteligent manufacturing HERWEEER
products - - - 142,465 - -
Sale of properties HEME - - - - 409,389 -
Property rental Ei - - - - - 49,967
Total &t 829,868 561,619 318,922 142,465 409,389 49,967
Timing of revenue recognition BARREH
Ata point in time RE-BEY 829,868 499,241 318,628 142,465 409,389 N/A
TEA
Over time Fe - 62,378 - - - N/A
TER
Total &t 829,868 561,619 318,628 142,465 409,389 N/A
TEA
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Geographical markets A

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-NEt-A=T-HLEE

Electronics

Handsets and ~ manufacturing Intelligent
10T terminals services  |OT systemand ~ manufacturing Property Property
business business 020 business business development management
FRRIH B NHRRS 2 MR
ESE R K REEEH EER NERR BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEr TEn TEr TEn
The PRC CalEipNG 282,318 92,960 260,489 126,487 8,823 43,076
Europe B 135,146 - - - - -
United States EE 128,185 - - - - -
Hong Kong F) 5,642 - - - - -
Other Asia countries ~ HfrZsMEIR 198,379 - - - - -
749,670 92,960 260,489 126,487 8,823 43,076

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\&+-A=+—AL%E
Electronics

Handsetsand  manufacturing Intelligent
0T terminals services 0T systemand  manufacturing Property Property
business business 020 business business development management
FH R BFRE MEBEER BHR MEM
Rm £ R REEEH EER NEER BER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAL FAL TAT FAL THL
The PRC e 577,563 458 290 318,922 142,465 409,339 49,967
Europe B 68,604 = = = = =
United States 5] 100,343 - = - = -
Hong Kong B 9,470 103,329 = = = =
Other Asia countries ~ Eft 3B R 73,888 = = = = =
829,868 561,619 318,922 142,465 409,389 49,967
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(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Sale of handsets and |OT terminals, own-branded
products manufacturing, sale of goods to vending
machine customers and franchisee and sale of
intelligent manufacturing products

For the sale of handsets and IOT terminals, own-
branded products manufacturing, sale of goods to
vending machine customers and franchisee and sale
of intelligent manufacturing products, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery). Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of usage, distribution and price to sell the
goods, and has the primary responsibility when on
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit term
is 0-90 days upon delivery.

Electronics manufacturing services

The electronics manufacturing services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced, except for
the sale of certain materials as owned by the Group to
the customer for use in the electronics manufacturing
services, which is recognised at a point in time upon the
transfer of control of the goods to the customer during
the year. The normal credit term is O-15 days.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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(i)

(iii)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
(continued)

Procurement agency service

In the provision of procurement agency service,
revenue is recognised when the agency service has
been completed, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
The normal credit term is 0-90 days.

Sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised at a point
in time when the completed property is transferred to
customers, being at the point that the customer obtains
the control of the completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All sale of handsets and IOT terminals, own-branded
products manufacturing, electronics manufacturing
services, sale of goods to vending machine customers
and franchisee, procurement agency service, sale
of intelligent manufacturing products and sale of
properties are for periods of one year or less.

(i)

(i)

EFEMZEBRIEE (&)
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(iv)  Leases

For operating lease:
Lease payments that are fixed

For finance leases:

Finance income on the net investment in the lease

Total revenue arising from leases

(v) HE
For the
year ended

31 December
2019

HK$'000
FTHET

BRREHE -
ERMEE T 43,076

ERAREHESE -
MEREFEZRMERA 86

HEELE 2 BRA 43,162

RE-F-AF+-A=+—AILEE &

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recognised approximately HK$42,023,000 selling profit
or loss, being the difference between revenue and the
cost of sales, as a manufacturer/dealer lessor.

Finance lease income — equipment
Operating lease income — property

Total revenue arising from leases

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

EEEARNER / RXFBZ2HBEABRL
42,023,000 70 2 $HE & F kB8 - BN A B
SHER AR Z 25 -

For the

year ended

31 December
2018
HE_ZT—)\F
+=—F=+—8
IEFE

HK$'000
FET

REREWA—EME 294
KBRS WA 49,967

HEEEZBRA 50,261



Information reported to the executive Directors, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
the Group was organised into six reportable and operating
segments, being Handsets and internet of things terminals
business (“Handsets and 10T terminals business”),
Electronics manufacturing services business, Internet of
things system and online-to-offline business (“IOT system and
020 business”), Intelligent manufacturing business, Property
development and Property management.

These reportable and operating segments are the basis
of the internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the executive Directors in
order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.
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DEERT BRI FERR
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Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Revenue
External sales

Segment (loss) profit

Other income and other gains
and losses

Share of results of associates

Corporate expenses

Finance costs

Loss before taxation

A
HMEE

AR (BR) &R
AfpRAREBRERBIR
AN
RARx

HERK

AR
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Pk L ONSE S

TRAAEEZAZHNEEDRZWMARE
BT

BE-_E-NF+-A=F+—HILFE

Handsets ~ Electronics
and 10T manufacturing 10T system Intelligent
terminals services and 020  manufacturing Property Property
business husiness business business  development  management  Consolidated
FHR
nEE ETRERE  MEEER BH
HEEl  MEEEE  REEER HEEH NERRE  MFHEER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx TEn Tén Thx TEn Tén TEn
(Note)
()
749,670 92,960 260,489 126,487 8,823 43076 1,281,505
(50,867) 1,448 (13,211) (15,476) (2,928) 37,959 (43,075)
(27,540)
(2,003)
(15,597)
(3,282)
(91,497)



Segment revenue and results (cONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Revenue
External sales

Segment (loss) profit

Other income and other gains
and losses

Share of restlts of associates

Corporate expenses

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

0N
g

PR(BR)EN

EBAREHERER

B BATE R

2B R ()
BE=F—/\F+ A=+ —FIFE

Handsets Electronics
and I0T  manufacturing 0T system Intelligent
terminals services and 020 manufacturing Property Property
business business business business  development  management  Consolidated
FiR
MEE  ETRERE  MBRZR B
Wngk  fEmEE  REERR HERH NEEE  MEREER &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tim TR TiEn T T TiEn
(Note)
i)
829,868 561,619 318,922 142,465 409,339 4997 2,312,230
(4.922) 401,048 (18,765) 983 (27,402) 30318 381,260
(51,619)
710
(24,522)
(6,243)
299,646

Note: The 10T system and 020 business is still in a developing stage.

The revenue of this segment represents the income generated from

equipment finance lease service, sale of goods to vending machine

customers and franchisees and provision of procurement agency

service.

Hiet - DB RSREEEBDENERER - 298
M AEREREBERE R AEERES I
AHRERIHEEm - URBEHREROERBEME
ERUA ©
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Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the profit
earned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of interest income, unallocated exchange gain or loss,
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, fair
value change on financial assets at FVTPL, certain other
income, corporate expenses, share of results of associates,
finance costs and taxation (2018: without allocation of
interest income, unallocated exchange gain or loss, loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment, gain on disposal
of an associate, fair value change on derivative financial
instruments, certain other income, corporate expenses, share
of results of associates, finance costs and taxation). This is the
measure reported to the executive Directors for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segment:

At 31 December 2019

Segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax assets

Interests in associates

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

Amounts due from non-controling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities

Other payables and accruals
Bank borrowings

Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

/\*g §F

0% FERRE

ik ¥

ﬁkﬁﬁéé
NP 5

BATE ARG 2 ERE
ZBATA

RAVEFABG SRAR

EUHBARHERRRSR

EfERER - RERBAHTE

BEASARR
RESOER
RiTkBRAS

RRAE

/\*EE F

AR R U
RTiEE

iR

Rk

= =
RRRE

Handsets
and |0T
terminals
business
FHR
]
RiREH
HK$'000
Tién

657,760

368,890

Electronics
manufacturing
services
business

ETHERY
fHEmER
HK$'000
TR

174,595

39,717

PHEEREE

TREJIAEEZA 2

BLREENBEENNE

ERBENT

R-FE-AF+=A=1+—H

10T system
and 020
business

VLR
REBEER
HK$'000
TER

108,110

17,022

Intelligent
manufacturing
business

Property
development

Property
management  Consolidated
Bra

3 EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR

NEREER e
HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR
174523 17634 631693 1764315
54,382
24,945
44,092

6,647

669
22,512

4,496

5,552
31,226
296,380
611,714

2,866,930

66,156 9,791 7,026 508,602
17,084
71,936
40,224

112,413

756,259
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4REe SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE T NF+A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED) 6. PEER (&

PHEEEREE (E)
R-F—/N\F+=—H=+—H

Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED)
At 31 December 2018

Handsets Electronics
and I0T  manufacturing 0T system Intelligent
terminals Services and 020 manufacturing Property Property
business business business business  development  management  Consolidated
FR
MR STRERE  MBEZER BepRis
fEEls  HEEEE  RESER £ NEEE  MEHEERE )
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thn T Th Thn T Thr Thr
Segment assets NBEE 703,120 154,458 179,853 46,633 511,633 1,990,738
Property, plant and equipment NE - BEREE RN142
Land use rights iR 4123
Deferred tax assets ELHEEE 44606
Entrusted loan receivable EUZHER 25946
Interests in associates N NG 2 3044
Equity instruments at FYTOCI RATETAE 2 ELE
LEATA 39,149
Financial assets at FVTPL BOFETABR 7 EREE 18278
Amounts due fromnon-controllng BB A RS EERIEEZE
shareholders of subsidiaries 4.4%
Amount due from an assaciate LN 4400
Other receivables, deposits and Rl Re RBNFE
prepayments 2,756
Pledged bank deposits BEARIER 57,557
Bank balances and cash BERRES 647776
Consolidated assets RAEE 2972011
Segment liabilities DL 336,631 22,067 44252 25,038 7517 515932
Other payables and accruals AfteftEH Rk A 7622
Bank borrowings HiTEE 83,887
Tax payable ERHE 43931
Deferred tax liabilties EERERE 98200
Consolidated liabiltes feffE 749,572
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Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain property, plant and
equipment, certain right-of-use assets, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, interests in associates, equity instruments at
FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, deferred tax assets,
certain other receivables, deposits and prepayments
and amounts due from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries (2018: certain property, plant and
equipment, certain land use rights, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, entrusted loan
receivable, interests in associates, equity instruments at
FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, deferred tax assets,
certain other receivables, deposits and prepayments
and amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and an associate). Assets used jointly by
operating segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual operating segments; and

° other than liabilities specifically identified for reportable
and operating segments on IOT system and 020
business, Intelligent manufacturing business, Property
development and Property management, the remaining
liabilities jointly consumed by reportable and operating
segments are allocated between Handsets and 10T
terminals business and Electronics manufacturing
services business and corporate liabilities. Corporate
liabilities include certain other payables, accruals, tax
payable, bank borrowings and deferred tax liabilities
(2018: include certain other payables, accruals, tax
payable, bank borrowings and deferred tax liabilities).
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Other segment information Hih 2 EER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—FE-NF+-A=+—HULFE

Handsets ~ Electronics
and 0T manufacturing 10T system Intelligent

terminals senvices and 020  manufacturing Property Property
business business business busingss  development  management  Unallocated  Consolidated
FER

WEE ETRERE  MEEEA B
Ringl g% REERE  HEER S T AR &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TEn T T T TaEn
Amounts included in the measure of  §8HBERFHEEE

segment profit orloss or segment ~ FRAISE
assets:

Additions of property, plantand ~ FENE - BERRE

equipment 8,596 21,026 167 2,058 - - - 31,847
Additions of intangible assets RERTAE 58,925 - - 45718 - - - 104,643
Depreciation of property, plant 1% - BERA B2

and equipment 18,482 9,009 1,424 2431 8 1,571 4543 37,468
Amortisation of infanglble assets B EEES 59,106 - 120 53,931 - - - 113,157
Depreciation of right-of-use assels ~ EFIEEENE 4,012 622 3,669 1,534 - 173 1,166 11,176
Impairment lossess on goodwill BB ZREER 3,706 - - - - - - 3,106
Impairment lossess on propery, 1% - BERREZHESE

plant and equipment 1,315 - - - - - - 1,315

Impairment losses on trade NERTET BUE SRS

receivables recognised inprofit 2 EEHE

or loss 1,039 - - 3,758 - - - 4797
Impaiment losses on entrusted loan - BT BNES

receivable recognised inproftor &3 BIEE B

[oss - - - - - - 26,287 26,287
Allowance of inventories FERE 8,075 - - - - - - 8,075
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,  HENE - BERRE

plant and equipment ER(s) 39 (18) @ 3% 45 - 12 440
Change infair valug of investment~ RENEATESE

properties - - - - - 12,719 - 12,779
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRE SRR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2019
T—NE+-A=+—HILFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 6. 7EER(E)
Other segment information (CONTINUED) Hittp BER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (re-presented) BE—F— )\ F+ - A=+—HIFFEF(&EEZ)
Handsets Electronics
and 0T manufacturing 10T system Inteligent
terminals semvices and 020 manufacturing Property Property
business business business busingss  development  management  Unallocated  Consolidated
FER
MEE ETRERE  MBEER B
S e % REEXR  BERR MRER  MEREER o A

HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$1000
Fin Tin Tin T TiEn T Tin T
Amounts included in the measure of 8 A EERHAEAE

igAER
segment profitor loss or segment ~ FRASE
assefs:

Additions of property, plantand ~~ FEYE - BERSE

equipment 31219 899 7515 766 - - 8 48518
Additions of intangible assets NEBWAE 130933 8493 8 56,633 - - - 196,144
Depreciafion of property, plantand  ¥1% + BB Rita 2 17&

equipment 21829 10,941 3,798 2,389 37 1,798 7,000 4779
Amortisation of infanglole assets ~ EHAEEH 105814 8978 1273 42088 - - - 158,153
Amortisation of land use rights TE RS 4% 707 116 % = 23 1332 2929

Reversal of mpairmentlosses—— MERPREAZ ENERES

on frade receivables recognised 2 HEBEER

in profitor loss (1,098) = = - - - - (1,068)
Impairment losses on enfrusted loan BT BNES

receivable recognised in poftor &3 BEEE

loss - - - - - - 8314 8314
Impairment losses on other RERRETZERER

receivables recognised inprofit B3t A

orloss - - - = - - 3615 3615
Impairment loss on consideration ~ FMERTEA ENRE

recelvable recognised in proft LAEEE

or loss - - - - - - 2456 2456
Allowance of inventories FERE 10547 - - 6,660 - - - 17207
Write-off of inventories HEEE - 71,02 - - - - - 71022
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,  HENE  BERRE

plant and equipment ER(KE) 2334 131 19 8 (145) - 5 235
Change in fair valug of investment ~ RENENTFEES

properties - - - - - 7,665 - 7,665
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Geographical information wEER

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC (country of A& E AR B KRE (FTAER) « BUM ~ £ - &
domicile), Europe, United States, Hong Kong and other Asian BN E AR R ST o

countries.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing BRAEBREINEEP 2 IHBRELEBIA
operations from external customers is presented based on TYIREEAW A B 25 - HEARNEEIER
the location from which the revenue is generated. Information HEEMNEEIIRBEEEMEMIBMNEZY -

about the Group’s non-current assets is presented based on
the geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
Year ended Year ended
REIIBEFEZBWA FEREEE
BETIFE BETIFE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NF —T)N\F —B-hEF —ZT)N\F
FET FHET FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET FHERT FET
The PRC SEipN 814,153 1,956,596 931,198 853,565
Europe BoM 135,146 68,604 - =
United States =35 128,185 100,343 - -
Hong Kong &5 5,642 112,799 - =
Other Asian Countries =Ry (5T 198,379 73,888 - =
1,281,505 2,312,230 931,198 853,565
Note: HiaE -
Non-current assets excluded goodwill, intangible assets, deferred RDEETRIEDE  BREE  ELHBEEE &
tax assets, finance lease receivables, interests in associates, equity WREHRSE  REER Rz Ex  RATEFAHME
instruments at FVTOCI, other receivables and consideration receivables. a2 RAT A - Eh R R EWAE -
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Other income:

Refund of Value Added Tax (“VAT")
(Note 1)

Government grants (Note 2)

Interest income earned on bank
balances

Interest income earned on
consideration and other receivables

Interest income earned on entrusted
loan receivables

Dividend income from equity
instruments at FVTOCI

Dividend income from financial assets
at FVTPL

Other gains and losses:
Impaiment losses:
— Goodwill
— Property, plant and equipment
Write-off of amount due from an
associate
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Gain on write-off of right-of-use assets
Net foreign exchange loss
Changes in fair values of investment
properties
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Fair value change on financial assets
at FVTPL
Gain on disposal of an associate
Others

Hp A -

SE(ER (MHEER ) B
(Bfat 1)

BURIE B WA (Bt 2)

RITEERIREUZ M B A

KRB R E M U R IRBREUZ F S A

EREEEFIRRZ TS HA

BERAFEFARCEERENRATA

Z B EIA
BEAFEFABRSNSREE
ZBRBHA

Hitor 35 ) 518
ERIE
g
—0E - BERRE
W SHFE A — PR & X R SRR

R ENE R R 2
e A E 2 IR

SN T
BEMENTIES

HEHB AT KPS
BATESABREZ SRAEATES

HE—EBE ATz W
Hit

2019 2018
—F-hF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
5,614 8,478
13,134 19,933
16,918 6,408
540 -

- 907

- 216

- 142
36,206 36,084
(3,706) -
(1,315) -
(4,400) -
(440) (2,352)

13 -
(13,931) (46,156)
12,779 7,665
- 519,135
4,234 (5,486)
1,660 -
7,765 11,015
2,659 483,821
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE=—F-NFH=A=+-BLFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

(CONTINUED)

7.

HaWA ~ WK EE (&)

Notes:

(1)

2

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”) (2018:
Shanghai Simcom) is engaged in the business of distribution of
self-developed and produced software and the development of
automated test equipment and software. Under the current PRC
tax regulation, they are entitled to a refund of VAT paid for sales
of self-developed and produced software and the development of
automated test software in the PRC.

The amount includes HK$8,821,000 (2018: HK$7,787,000)
unconditional government grants received during the year ended
31 December 2019, which was granted to encourage the Group’s
research and development activities in the PRC.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group also received government grants of HK$6,986,000 (2018:
HK$9,391,000) towards the cost of development of Handsets
and |0T terminals business (2018: Handsets and IOT terminals
business) in Shanghai and Shenyang. The amount received
is deferred and is transferred to other income to match actual
expenditure used in research and development activities and
HK$4,313,000 (2018: HK$12,146,000) was recognised in the
profit or loss during the year. As at 31 December 2019, an amount
of HK$41,495,000 (2018: HK$43,035,000) remained to be
amortised and is included in other payables (for current portion)
and deferred income (for non-current portion) (Note 30).

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

Bt -

(1)

ARG RRM (LE) BRAR ([ LEFERE])
(ZZF—N\F: LEFBB)NESHETRAER
EEZEMN - AR B BLARME - BT
BRITZHBEER  ETFERBEESTRERE
EZEMT - AR CRARBESIN 2
BEHRAZERY -

HEEEEREE=T—NF+=-A=1+—H1
FEWE| 2 E BT B A 8,821,000/ 7T
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R B EFEES ML
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— J\%F : 43,035,000 47T ) B FIE 13 54 AR B 530
Bat AR A FER R R (FBNEREE D T 5 ) RIEIEU
A (FIEBNERER S 1 = ) (B 30) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT EAN T

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE-_T-NWGF+=-A=+—HLFE
8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER 8. FEHIEEFEEX N 2RERS
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET 18 HIBRE D
OF REVERSAL
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Impairment losses recognised 5B IEAER
(reversed) on: (@) RERSE :
— Trade receivables —ERIE SERFK 4,797 (1,098)
— Consideration receivables — BB - 2,456
— Entrusted loan receivable —EWETER 26,287 8,314
— Other receivables — H A FEURER X - 3,615
31,084 13,287
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. RIEA
2019 2018
—E-hE —ET—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FAET
Interests on bank borrowings IRITEEF B 2,636 6,243
Interests on lease liabilities HEEEMNB 646 -
3,282 6,243
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Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Executive Directors
Ms Yeung Man Ying
Mr Wong Cho Tung
Ms Tang Rongrong
Mr Liu Jun*

Sub-foal

The executive Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs of

UnEs
Y€ an
THARE
ERELL
HERE"

I

the Company and the Group.

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Wu Zhe

Mr Wang Tianmiao

Sub-fotal

The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of the

Company.

Total

BUFHfES
BEHRE
RERE
ImERE

it

st
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ESRERYITEME

REBER EMRARBRARUEPIFTRE 2 A
FEAANBREEREFRATEENIENZ

BemT

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BECR-NETZAZT-RALE

Retirement
henefits
Directors' Salaries and Share-based scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus payments contributions emoluments
BIAEA
20k FeREY 4 DU SRR ane
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tén Tén Tén Tén TEn
(Note 1)
(fit1)
- 397 340 - - 737
- 816 318 - 135 1,269
- 1,213 658 - 135 2,006

FRATEEREAFATENEERANE AR

RARAREEHCER -

156 - - - - 156
156 - - - - 156
156 - - - - 156
468 - - - - 468

468

1,213

PRBIFATEE M T BN K EEE

RAREE -

658 - 135

2474




10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

b & BT R BT 3

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T-AGF+-A=t—ALFE

EX AFYTEREEMS

(&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (CONTINUED)

EEZRERFITENS (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\Ft-A=t-ALE

Retirement
benefits
Directors’ Salaries and Share-based scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus payments contributions emoluments
BINER
ESig N Tt YIS HEJ S ame
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Th Th Th Thr Thr Thr
(Note 1)
(i)
Executive Directors yirEs
Ms Yeung Man Ying Bnt - - _ _ _ _
Mr Wong Cho Tung THRRE = = = = = =
Ms Tang Rongrong ERBAL - 506 362 = = 868
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard (Note 2) REREEWH2) - 1,170 120 - 54 1344
Mr Liu Jun* e - 868 337 136 1341
Sub-total INeF - 2,504 819 - 190 3,583

*

Being the chief executive of the Company.

The executive Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

Independent non-executive Directors BUkHTES

* RERAREFRTE °

LRHTEEREFHTEME T Z@NE AR
NRIPAKEFH CEE -

Mr Liu Hing Hung BRETE 156 = = = = 156
Mr Wu Zhe RELE 156 - - - - 156
Mr Wang Tianmiao THERL 156 - - - _ 1%
Sub-total st 468 - - _ _ 468

The independent non-executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of the
Company.

Total &t 468

2,044

BB IFITER cME T 2N REEE

RAREE -

819

= 190 4021

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH
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Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)
Notes:

(1) Incentive performance bonus for the year was determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance and
duties of Directors and the Group’s operating results.

(2) Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard resigned on 29 September 2018.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one (2018: two)
Director for the year ended 31 December 2019, whose
emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of
the remaining four (2018: three) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and allowances e MoERL
Bonus 1AL
Retirement benefits scheme RIRFEFIETBI R

contributions

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

ESRERIITEME (H)
Bt -

(1) FERAEDHECASHFHZEGLEEESL
REARBBEARAEB 2 QEXEMETE

(2) BREREER-ZT-/N\FAAZTIBEHE-

EEME

(E_T-NFT_A=T—HILEFE 5%
RRFMALTER—R(ZFT—N\F: WH)
Ex EMeREXHE - #fTHA(ZF
—N\F =B) AL ZBEWT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
3,349 2,480
608 325

216 208
4,173 3,013

BEZ WEAE A T BE

2019 2018

—B-hE  ST)\F

Number of Number of

employees employees

EEAH EBEAH

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 T 702 1,000,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %7t 1,500,000 77T 1
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Employees’ emoluments (CONTINUED)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments for both years.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
LAT in the PRC
Overprovisions on PRC LAT

in previous years

Hh B £ S AR (E 7R

Deferred tax income (expense) for
current year (note 22)

Taxation for the year REEHIE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for

both years as the Group has no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong.

EIT is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant districts
of the PRC and taking relevant tax incentives into account.
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Sunrise
Simcom”), Shanghai Simcom and Shenyang SIM Simcom
Technology Limited (“Shenyang SIM Simcom”) are classified
as New and High Technology Enterprise and is entitled to
adopt a tax rate of 15% (2018: 15%). The relevant annual
tax rate used for PRC EIT for the Group’s subsidiaries ranged
from 15% to 25% (2018: 15% to 25%). In respect of capital
gain from the Simcoms Disposal (as defined in note 42(a)),
capital gain for EIT purpose is the difference between the
consideration received from the equity transfer and the net
value of equity of the transferred entities. The tax rate used for
EIT on capital gain is 10%.

B ISR ([REEH])

EEME (B

AEE  AEBEYRAEMNEETKARRH
A X EABE - (ERFBEREMARSE
EESEEINPNE ST S A N PA RN
B RERBBME - KMEFEHEESK
RYRBHREMHE -

MR FE B IR E TR R

RERRERIA WS (FIs0) (Maz22)

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
(13,243) (83,753)
(354) (7,858)
20,808 9,834
7,211 (81,777)
9,425 (2,830)
16,636 (84,607)

RMRAREESTEY BELERTULR - WE
SR EFEIEL BB RIS -

EEMBRN RBANBESRR - HHEA
R 2 IRTREFE - DEREFEEE
MEERAR( LEREREE]) - LEFHE
BRLGEARESEMZARAR (LGRS
BRFR [ SIRMEE] - WHERMA 15%
MBE(ZZ2—N\F : 16%) - REEHEAF
RAZHFBEACEMEHEARFEERENF15%
£25% ZE(ZF—\F : 15%E25%) ° B
AUBHEEEGESE RME42(2)) IS E A MR
s @ EREMSHAGRZER R E R EE
FOWRERAEEEREEFECER -
BAWSRPRAEHAMIHER10% °

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH
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The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant tax laws and regulations
of the PRC, which is charged at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% (2018: 30% to 60%) of the appreciation
value, with certain allowable deductions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as follows:

TR E TR TR B R BB B B AR
ERRPTERIAREMEHED - AR IEREE R
DIREHER K 30% = 60% (ZF—/\F : 30%
£60%)5TH - WAES TR ©

AEEFHBEHG EESBRRP AR ZBREA
(B18) mFE R T

2019 2018
—E-hEF T )\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Loss)profit before taxation AR AT (E18) % (91,497) 299,646
Taxation at the PRC income tax rate B BT H X 25%
of 25% (2018: 25%) (ZF—N\F : 25%) s E 2 Fi1E 22,874 (74,912)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  NA[30Hi 2 B 2 T FS s 2
for tax purpose (13,164) (13,846)
Tax effect of income not taxable BARB WA Z BB E
for tax purpose 17,512 11,508
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERTIBEE 2 RS2 (48,886) (40,497)
Utilisation of tax losses previously BB RER S EE
not recognised 13,768 4,141
Tax effect of deductible temporary KRB O IR E RS =58 F iR
differences not recognised 8,426 (15,924)
Income tax effect on capital gain tax BARWEST 2 TSR & - 35,369
Overprovisions on PRC LAT RIE AP B 4 b I E R ER R
in previous years 20,808 9,834
Income tax on concessionary rate BEEHERFEZFTEH 766 8,072
LAT + I AR (354) (7,858)
Income tax effect on LAT TS ER 2 TSR & (5,114) (494)
Tax credit (charge) for the year AEEHEE L () 16,636 (84,607)
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(Loss) profit for the year is arrived at
after charging (crediting):

Auditor's remuneration

Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales
and services)

Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs

Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

Impairment loss recoginsed in respect
of intangible assets (included in cost
of sales and services)

Amortisation of land use rights

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Allowance of inventories (included in
cost of sales and services)

Write-off of inventories (included in
other expenses) (note 42(a))

Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense (included in cost of sales
and services)

Cost of properties sold
(included in cost of sales and
services)

Cost of manufacturing services
(included in cost of sales and
services)

Staff costs:

Directors’ emoluments (note 10)
Other staff costs
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Less: Amount capitalised in
development costs
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

AEE (BER) BENEMG GEA)

Gl en
A EEE G AHE RIRIEKA)

B EENMERFERAR
B BEAMENER

BB ERR RERE
(FTASHE RARTERA)

T bl PR

W% - BB RRIEITE

B BEEMERFEEKA
B BEMENEE

EREEENE
FE#E
(FTASHE RARTERA)
WEEFE (Bt AEMR) (AiF42(a))

HER RN ZFERA
(FTASHE RARTERA)

EEY AR
(FEASHE RARTEAA)

SUERRFEEVAR A
(FTASHE RARTEAA)

BT :
E=ME (fra 10)
Hth & TR
—T& REAER
—IRE A B 5K

B EEMERFEKA
" BENMENEE

2019 2018
—g-hnE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt Tt
2,300 2,200
113,157 158,153
(830) (1,787)
(112,327) (156,366)
21,072 =
- 2,929
37,468 47,792
(3,430) (5,060)
(27,484) (28,427)
6,554 14,305
11,176 =
8,075 17,207
- 71,022
1,026,564 1,678,326
6,709 430,739
88,592 26,274
2,474 4,021
198,241 250,621
51,590 48,481
252,305 303,123
(68,965) (108,1406)
(22,861) (28,494)
160,479 166,483
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During the current year, a special dividend of HK1 cent
(2018: HK4 cents) per share was declared and paid to the
owners of the Company. The aggregate amount of special
dividends declared and paid in the current year amounted to
HK$24,993,000 (2018: 143,335,000).

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

(Loss) earnings (&8 BF

(Loss) earnings for the purposes of
basic and diluted (loss) earnings
per share ((loss) profit for the year
attributable to the owners
of the Company)

Number of shares BAEE

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted (loss) earnings per share

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
computation of diluted (loss) earnings per share did not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options because the exercise prices of these share options
were higher than the average market price for shares for the
year.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

RAFEE  EEREKNEIHIRESR1E
W= NF:48) FERBEBA °
RAFEEERRKMN ZHFHIBRE ZAER
24,993,000 7t (=& —/\4F : 143,335,000 /%
JT) e

EEVTRERBE_Z-NEFR-_T—N\F
ToA=t—BLFERNRAKRS -

ARBHEE ARG EREANEE (B18) &F
THRAT BB E -

AHEEREANEE (BE) BT
2 (E18) B (AR EHEE A
FEAGNEZ (B518) A1)

AR EESREE (BR) 280
BB IEFHEE

2019 2018
—B-hE  —ENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHTT
(76,938) 238,012
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
'000 '000

F iz A%
2,471,407 2,550,366

BE_E—NFR=FE-NF+ZA=+—H
IFE - FHEESEEE (BR) B Y ERERD
TTEARBN R ARITEZBERE  AAZER
R ITRESNAFERMNHFEHE -



FAIR VALUE
At 1 January 2018

Transfers from property, plant and

equipment
Transfer from land use rights

Surplus on transfer of land use rights
and property, plant and equipment
to investment properties at fair value

Increase in fair value recognised

in profit or loss
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2018

Transfers from property, plant and

equipment

Transfer from right-of-use assets
Transfer from property held for sales

AT
R=B—N\E—A—A
WRANE - R R

I A i
i+ SRR R -
BRRE AR RATE
NEZREWE Bt
WiBH R AT @R

[

E

\

RZB—N\F+-_A=1t—H
EBREWME - BB MR

BEAERAREE
BEAFHFHEEDE

Surplus on transfer of right-of-use assets #&{# FfE & E A R ¥EE -

and property, plant and equipment
to investment properties at fair value
Increase in fair value recognised

in profit or loss
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2019

Unrealised gain on property

valuation included in profit or loss

R EERER AT E
AR ZIEY R 2 Bk
MBI R Z A FEE N

=
i

R-FE-NF+-_HA=t+—H

stABRmZ RERMEMAER S

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium-

term leases in the PRC.

HK$'000

TR

384,949

52,070

11,991

48,974

7,665
(26,367)

479,282
17,567
8,645
15,296

84,486

12,779
(9,667)

608,388

12,779

REBAAH B 2 L E YR TIIRIE T HIEOR

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH
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The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2019 and 2018 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not related to the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the income
capitalisation approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted
at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed based on
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
existing lease and reasonable and supportable assumptions
that represent what knowledgeable willing parties would
assume about rental income for future leases in the light of
current conditions. The rate is determined by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial and industrial properties in Shanghai and
Shenyang. There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. At the end of the
reporting period, the chief financial officer of the Group works
closely with the independent qualified professional valuer to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
the management of the Group.
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FEEREMER_Z-NFR_T-N\F
TZA=+—BZAVE  DAEAEELE
ME 2 B H XA BB EMEIR T E EFT
BERERQRNZAETZHERKESE -

DFETIRBBABRNMOZETE @ Bt - &5F
EMENRENHAEMC 2 TSEES - WiRK
BEBIBEMEMER 2 TSR AREREE - |
SHES HRBEFARRADRE - WARE
MR ERENZBRR(DABEERETHE
BITHER THRKBEE A 2 R&) 1FXHs
Wk RI2E DT LB REGRB THYER
EXHBHZBARETE - AERTTEBESF
EFERAERR -

ERYMEZ ATER  WEZRe REER
BRAEBRAR NMEMR  AEEMBLE
EEBVAEREXRMAEMEAIE - AL
KEFEAENBERT RBARE - HEEZ
RFEHREERES  BRAAKEELEER
HEK R 2 REA -



Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and

unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

As at 31 December 2019

Fair value
hierarchy

DFERRE

Level 3
F=H

Valuation
techniques

HERT

Income
capitalisation
approach

WAER

Fair value

AV
HK$'000
570

608,388

EREATNTERBABBETAVETEZ
&%
TRETEEREMERTHEMAZAERT
KALEEATRZ T BRE ABUE -

R-ZE-NF+=ZA=1+—H

Unobservable inputs

TUBERAHE

(i) Capitalisation rate
() ERfpE

(i) Market rent
(i) TimfHe

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) SERE

Range of
unobservable
inputs

FAEE
BABEHE

5.0%-8.5%

RMB0.51-RMB10.3
per month
per square meter
BRETHK
AREO0SITE
ARE1037T

0%-2%

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
FAEE
BAZESR
ATEZER

A significant increase
in the capitalisation
rate would result in
a significant decrease
in fair value, and vice
versa.

BERMLENERLS
SEYATENEX
BIE - RZ IR

A significant increase
in the market rent
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

mEREnEAES -
EYRFENEX
B R2IA o

A significant increase
in the growth rate
would resultin a
significant increase
in fair value, and
vice versa.

BRENEALE -
LEHATENEA
8 R2IVK -

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH
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Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (continued)
As at 31 December 2018

FREATTEERARIBETAFENEZ
&P (&)
RZE—\F+=ZA=+—H

Range of Relationship of
Fair value Valuation unobservable unobservable
hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs inputs inputs to fair value
FAEE
TABE BAHESH
AVHERE EERS AVE TAEEBAEE BAHEBEE AP EZEE
HK$'000
THET
Level 3 Income 479,282 (i) Capitalisation rate 5.3%-7.0% A significant increase in
F=H capitalisation (i) BRI = the capitalisation
approach rate would result in
WAB A% a significant

(i) Market rent
(i) 5HS

(iii) Growth rate
(iii) R

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged
investment properties having a fair value of approximately
HK$130,806,000 (2018: HK$174,885,000) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
BRNMERMENLS -
SRYNTENEA
B - RZ WA
RMBO.4-RMB8.6 A significant increase in

per month the market rent would
per square meter result in a significant
BAGERX increase in fair value,
ARE0ATE and vice versa.
AR®867TT TEHENEAES -
LEYATEHEA
5% R2IHR -
1.2%-3.2% A significant increase in

the growth rate would
result in a significant
increase in fair value,
and vice versa.
BRENEALE -
SEYATENER
5% R -

HE_ T NER-FT—\F+-_A=+—H
IHFE - HEER @RS = o

AEBEFRERBEEEESRHB L IERIES K
BERRERZNYFRES  HRAXFERN
AERDERARISIEYE -

R-ZE—AE+-_A=+—8  A&EBARQ
¥ 1B #49130,806,000/8 ;o( — T — )\ & :
174,885,000870) 2 I EMEE FHA « 1EA
ANEBATES—ERITRE 2R -



COST

At 1 January 2018

Exchange differences

Additions

Disposals

Transfers to investment properties
Disposal of Subsidiaries

At 31 December 2018
Exchange differences
Additions
Acquired on acquisition
of a subsidiary
Disposals
Transfers to investment properties

At 31 December 2019

DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2018

Exchange differences

Charge for the year

Eliminated on disposals

Transfers to investment properties

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2018
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Transfers to investment properties
Impairment loss recognised
in profit of loss

At 31 December 2019

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

Tl
B
F
HB

AE
YE-FMBLAR LS

HE
SHERENE

R-B-AF+-H=1-H
ERAE

RZF-\§—A-H
ExzE
AR
NHERHH
SRERENZ
HEHBAT

RZZ-\E+ZA=T-H
ExZE

REEMG

R ERHH
BRERENE
RERTRRZAERE

RZB-NF+-H=+-H

REE
RZE-NETZA=1-R

RZE-\E+-A=t-H

Equipment,

furniture
Leasehold and Plant and
improvements fixtures machinery Motor
Buildings HEmE #fE B BER vehicles Total
gF % R&E HE HE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
461,441 5926 274,890 270975 12950 1,026,182
(20,042) (302) (13,49) (14,165) (648) (48,653)
24,668 - 9,708 12976 1,166 48,518
= = (9,247) (25,366) (2,746) (37,359)
(78,098) = = = - (78,09)
= = (27,627) = = (27,627)
387,969 5,624 234,228 244 420 10,722 882,963
(5,610) (88) (4538) (@.211) (152) (14,599)
4314 - 39% 22,826 711 31,847
- - 9948 - - 9948
(11,968) (217) 8728) (7,882) (2.442) (31,237)
(46,324) = = = = (46,324)
328,381 5319 234,906 255,153 8839 832,598
201,127 5012 243123 167,354 10,308 626,924
(9.981) (254) (12,869) (8452) (435) (31,991)
15,840 - 13,029 18,063 860 47,7192
= = (3,476) (23,733) (2,300) (29,509)
(26,028) = = = - (26,028)
= = (10,404) = = (10,404)
180,958 4758 229,403 153232 8433 576,784
(2,652) (74) (4.134) (2,69) (117) (9,675)
14,199 - 6,443 16,119 707 37,468
(1,808) (217) (7,209 (870) (2,145) (12,249)
(28,757) = = = = (28,757)
- - 1,315 - - 1,315
161,940 4,467 225818 165,783 6,878 564,886
166,441 852 9,088 89,370 1,961 267,712
207,011 866 4825 91,188 2,289 306,179
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Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on its cost less
their residual values on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings EF

Leasehold improvements THEYHEEE

z

Equipment, furniture and fixtures %48 - R EES

Plant and machinery R KM 25
Motor vehicles YU

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged buildings
having a carrying value of approximately HK$85,927,000
(2018: HK$204,203,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

At 1 January 2019 R-E-h&—-A—H
Carrying amount FAE

At 31 December 2019 W-E-hE+=-F=+-H

Carrying amount REE

For the year ended 31 BZ-Z-h&+=-A=1+-A
December 2019 LEE

Depreciation charge nEER

RN ERERERYBREER
F 165 % AL 12(EAMER

Expense relating to short-term
leases and other leases with
lease terms end within
12 months of the date of
initial application of IFRS 16

Total cash outflow for leases HEZRE R aE
Additions to right-of-use assets FREEERE
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RS R EMAE AR

ME - BERRETIZERARRERIGEE
WIABAER THIFRITE :

5%

The shorter of the lease terms and 5 years
THEHRESFr8EE

20%-25%

10%-20%

20%

RZEBE-NE+-_A=1+—8B AE£EHEEK
# BR T (B #4985,927,00058 7t ( = ZT — )\ -
204,203,000/870) Z1EF « (EARNEBFTES
—MRERTTREE ZHBIR -

Land use Office
rights Warehouse premises Total
Tl BE  BAEYE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THET TET THT
68,104 11,426 430 79,960
46,151 6,979 1,968 55,098
2,659 5,201 3316 11,176

1915

8,909

6,657




For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of approximately 6 months to approximately 5 years,
but may have termination options as described below. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where
its manufacturing facilities are primarily located and office
buildings. The Group is the registered owner of these property
interests, including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests. The leasehold land components of these owned
properties are presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.

Leases committed
As at 31 December 2019, the Group does not have new
leases that have not yet commenced.

Restriction or covenants on leases

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged right-
of-use assets having a carrying value of approximately
HK$19,504,000 (2018: HK$32,785,000) to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

RREFE  AEEHHEZEARAE BE
EEB 2R - HERNZBEEFHMAM6MEA
EH5F - MR T XAt AR LE - 78 B (E
AIEERER 288N TKAR AR &G
e REEHARFGETIEUEHRE 2 &E
B AEERBANZER - WEFE A RHIT
BRIZHRE -

AN AEERERETEAE (FEBES
EREAEZR) RIRRERT - AEERZ
EyEikn (BEABEEL) 2BREE -
R REZEY EERE - E—SBXNAEHN
Ao ZEBRYMEHET A DT REH A 5E
AN RE T @BILES -

EAHEE
RZE-—NF+_A=+—0  AEEWTER
REARZFEL

HERHRED
R-B—-AE+_-_A=+—8 x£ETHK
7 BR T 18 49 19,504,000 T ( =T — )\ & :
32,785,000/ ) 2 FEAEEE - tEARAKHE
PR —MRERITRIE 2 ER ©
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COST R

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—H—H
Exchange differences EXRZH

Transfers to investment properties BB

At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-N\F+=—HA=+—8H
AMORTISATION o

At 1 January 2018 R=Z—N\F—H—H
Charge for the year AREZHR

Exchange differences fER=R

Transfers to investment properties RSB

At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-N\F+=-HA=+—H
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE

At 31 December 2018 R=ZF—N\F+—A=+—H

The land use rights of the Group are held under medium-term
lease in the PRC and amortised over the term of the lease of
50 years.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged land
use rights having a carrying value of approximately
HK$32,785,000 to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group.
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HK$'000
TAT

111,329
(5,040)
(14,970)

91,319

24,536
2,929
(1,271)
(2,979)

23,215

68,104

AEER P B2 T3 (E AR E T BEAR
B WRS0FHAFHHH

RZE—N\FE+ZA=+—H  AEEDEIMR
BRI %) 32,785,000/ 0.2 TR © 1E4
RNEBFES —RIBITRE ZER



2019 2018

—E-hE —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Current finance lease receivables TRERNARE 2 EW IR 169 432
Non-current finance lease receivables FERENREEM E 7 FEUFIE 188 328
357 760
Leasing arrangements HEZH
Certain of the Group’s storage equipment are leased out REBETHRFHZREIREREHEELE - b7
under finance leases. All leases are denominated in RMB. EHENARE:E st HETHFERA
The average term of finance leases entered into is 4 years 4F(ZZF—)\F :3F) -
(2018: 3 years).
Amounts receivable under finance leases MERE 2 EWFIE
Present
Minimum value of
lease payments lease payments
BEEENRK HEMREE
2019 2018 2019 2018

—B-AEF “FN\F —B-hAE —T)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET  FER TEx

Not later than one year —FEUR 179 501 169 432
Later than one year and —FUERFUAA

not later than five years 198 365 188 328

377 866 357 760

Less: unearned finance B ARBRENELE W N/A N/A

income (20) (106) TEA TEA
Present value of minimum fEUSIEAEFIERE

lease payments receivable 357 760 357 760
Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance RWERR  BRERERENRE 2 BE 2 BiE
leases at the end of the reporting period are estimated at REIEEMETA357,0008 T (ZE—N\F -
HK$357,000 (2018: HK$760,000). 760,000787T) °
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The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract HERZRERB 2 ASHEREOBHE AR

date for the entire lease term. The average effective interest TEKF o FHERFEFNELE22% (ZZF—N
rate is approximately 22% (2018: 24%) per annum. F 1 24%) °
The finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting RIRERR 2 R EH E I &8 B sORE -

period are neither past due nor impaired.

Acquisition
of Kongtop
Industrial
(Shenzhen)
Company
Limited
g
FRHAREZE
7%’ll))
BRAT
HK$'000
FAT
cosT ﬁzzp:
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—H—H -
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary  FEUE— R B A RIEAE 3,831
Exchange adjustment T H R (160)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZT—-hE+=-_A=1+—8H 3,671
IMPAIRMENT ﬁfﬁ
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—H—H =
Impairment loss recognised in the year 4 AR 2 HIEEE 3,706
Exchange adjustment M 5 S B (35)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—H 3,671
CARRYING VALUE REEE

At 31 December 2019 —ET-hF+=-A=+—H -
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For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to an individual cash generating units (CGUs) in the
handsets ad |IOT terminals business segment. The carrying
amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated impairment losses)
allocated to the unit is as follows:

Handsets and IOT — SZ Kongtop

COST

At 1 January 2018
Additions

Exchange differences
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2018
Additions
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2019

AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Exchange differences
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2018

Charge for the year

Exchange differences

Impairment loss recognised in
current year

At 31 December 2019

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

N
RZF-\$—F—H
ME

ERZR

HENB LR

W_B-\F+-A=+—H
RE
Exz®

RZE-NE+-A=1+—H
BERAE
R=Z—/\F—f—H
KEFMR

ExEE

HEMBAT
R_B-\F+-A=+—H
AEFMR

ExEE
KEEWRLABEER
RZE-NE+ZA=+—A

REE
RZZ-h&+-A=+-H

RZZ-\&t-A=+-H

FHe K B A — RY B

SREREME  AECOEETHEDES
BmEB BN —EENREELENCGRE
ELB) - nEEZEMNFHBREE (kR
REPRERER) T

Goodwill

EES

2019

—E-NEF

HK$'000

FAT

Licence  Development Technical Customer

fee costs know-how contracts Total
FAER RN EVE BPEK @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TET TET TET
82,581 1,261,038 71,339 27514 1,442 472
30,159 165,985 - - 196,144
(5,590) (55,152) - - (60,742)
(5,811) (372,172) = = (377,983)
101,339 999,699 71,339 27514 1,199,891
- 104,643 - - 104,643
(1,686) (17,648) = - (19,334)
99,653 1,086,694 71,339 27514 1,285,200
77,688 1,077,166 71,339 27514 1,253,707
6,847 151,306 - - 158,153
(4,116) (48,462) = - (52,578)
(5,811) (301,530) = = (307,341)
74,608 878,480 71,339 27514 1,051,941
6,998 106,159 - - 113,157
(1,309) (16,365) = - (17,674)
- 21,072 - - 21,072
80,297 989,346 71,339 27514 1,168,496
19,356 97,348 - - 116,704
26,731 121,219 - - 147,950

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH
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Licence fee, technical know-how and customer contracts of

the Group were acquired from third parties.

The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following

period:

Licence fee

Development costs
Technical know-how
Customer contracts

1-5 years

9 months-2 years

5-8 years
3 years

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during
the current and prior years.

At 1 January 2018
Exchange differences
Charge to profit or loss
Charge to other
comprehensive income
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2018
Exchange differences
Charge to profit or loss
Charge (credit) to other
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2019

R-F-\&—A-H
EXZE
RE&HR
REfZERETHR

Tl

HEHEAR

pesll]

RZB-N\F+-H=+-H

ExzR
Sl

REMEERETHR GIA)

RZZ-NE+-A=1-H
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AEBZFFAIEE

BE=FHIE -

CHEARMEEFPANEAE

BIVEAEERFHAAR - B EENBERZE
AT HAR# Y

PRI E
IR
HE M

EFAH

LS

9 R E 25

5E8%F
3

AT RRAFEFBEFE - AEBEFFHER

ITERERE (BB EENEHEE -

Write-down of  Impairment of
Revaluation of  Development inventories property,  Revaluation of
equity cost and trade plant and investment
instrument at FVTOCI capitalised receivables equipment properties Total
RATEA FERER
B2 ERE BEAL BREZ 0% EER RENE
RATAES RGN e REAE Efy @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TR TR TR TiEn
(15,552) (19,981) 29,667 14,369 (60,315) (51,812)
(242) 767 (435) (581) 3325 2,834
= (913) = = (1917) (2,830)
7,140 - = = (12,244) (5,104)
- 5783 (2,465) = = 3318
(8,654) (14,344) 26,767 13,788 (71,151) (53,594)
(293) 283 (429) (278) 1,589 872
12,121 567 = (46) (3.217) 9,425
(3901) = = = (21,123) (25,024)
(721) (13494) 26,338 13464 (93,902) (68,321)




The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets BRI EE
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIEAE

At 31 December 2019, other than the deferred tax assets
and liabilities mentioned above, subsidiaries of the Group
had unused tax losses of approximately HK$465,352,000
(2018: HK$592,184,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of those subsidiaries.
Included in unused tax losses was HK$195,544,000 (2018:
HK$161,988,000) that will expire by 2024 (2018: 2023).
Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$1,150,294,000 (2018: HK$1,192,202,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

AT IOt A TS S P VE 2 IBFE B TR SR BT

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
44,092 44,606
(112,413) (98,200)
(68,321) (53,594)

—ANFTZR=+—H KRELMiRE
MBEEENMBESIN  NEBENBERRE RS
FA %% I8 f&5 18 49465,352,0008 ;T ( = F — N\
% 1 592,184,00078 7T ) AT 5 5 R S 7 o
MR & B A R AR AR AR T AT TR - 4
W ERRECHBEE - RBBHREEETE
195,544,0007% 7. ( —=Z — J\ £ : 161,988,000
BILBR T _WE( T N\F: _F_=
F)JEwm o EfbEsE R A o

BIEFBERERE  UHRBERBARN=
T )\F— A — BRGNS IROKREA
BRTEANH o SRE W IEHRER AR A B S
A EVR BB 45 FI A9 E B 2 %8 1,150,294,000 7 7T
(ZZT—/\£F : 1,192,202,0007% 7T ) {E £ iR TE
HIEERE  REARNEE A IEHZEYRER
MREIRE - ARZEGREELRAER
Zﬁjﬁbﬁé@ °
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RIBEE A PSS

Carrying amount receivable based

on maturity set out in the loan HHEIS 2
agreements FEW S IEARE (A
Within one year —FR

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiary, Shanghai Suncom Logistics (“Suncom Logistics”)
had an entrusted loan agreement with Bank of Communications.
Pursuant to the agreement, Suncom Logistics entrusted
an aggregated amount of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$34,601,000) (2018: RMB30,000,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$34,260,000) to a specific
corporate borrower at an interest rate of 10% per annum. Bank
of Communications acted as the trustee of this entrusted loan.
Trustee fee of 0.1% per month is charged. This entrusted loan
has matured in March 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, interest income generated from
entrusted loans amounting approximately HK$907,000 and
recognised as other income.

As at 31 December 2018, the entrusted loan receivable has
been past due. The directors of the Company considered
such entrusted loan receivable as credit impaired. Allowance
for credit losses of HK$8,314,000 was recognised on the
entrusted loan receivable and HK$3,615,000 was recognised
on interest receivable in 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the entrusted loan receivable
has been past due. During the year, the Group has filed
the Application for Enforcement to L& & =M HEE R
AREBT (“Taizhou Hailingqu Renmin Fayuan”) to collect
the outstanding principal and interest receivable from the
lender and the guarantor according to the civil judgment
issued by Taizhou Hailinggu Renmin Fayuan. The Group
has not received any response from the Taizhou Hailingqu
Renmin Fayuan after filing the Application for Enforcement
up to the date of this report. After seeking the legal advice
from PRC lawyer, the Group provided a further provision of
HK$26,287,000 during the year.
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2019 2018

—E-hF —TN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT

- 25,946

KRB NFR=ZF—N\F+=_A=+—H "
AEE2EWNBAR LESERINBASTERA
7] ([ FEHTh ) BABIRITIRTTRI L — 1 & 5T
Btk - BiEZ i - BRETGE—F028
A R 30,000,000 7T (#5574 49 34,601,000 7%
oL) (ZZ—)\F : AR¥ 30,000,000 (HE
R #734,260,000787T) ) 2 FIBERE T —RIEE
NEERA - BERERFFEI0EFE - £
TR RERERTEARAERZZEAT ALK
HO.1%:TEE - ZRERER=Z—N\F=A
B4 -

RZZE-—NF+ZA=1+—0H  xEEE K
REERPATEEM B WAL 907,000 T » I
S ELRER R EAMUA

R-B-N\E+-A=+—08  BRZFTER
BEH - AAREERZERREZTERDH
REERE - EEF1B8#E#8,314,0008 TE
TIERE L EKFER © 3,615,000 LEIE
=T N\FRF ST UARER ©

R-B-AE+-A=+—08  BRZFLTER
BEH - R - AEEC RILERERTMNTERE
@ AREIRZAFIMITHFE - LIRETER
ERMNTEREREARERELHRBHRER
BERARERAREERREERS RFS -
RIEREHITHRBER - BEAREBH -
AN B 18 AR U BT 8RB TN TSR R A RIART
MEEE - AP EEMAEEERE -
NE B R F ANFHE#E — 2 H#26,287,000 %

JG ©



23. ENTRUSTED LOAN RECEIVABLE
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT EAN T

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE T — N “A=t+—HIFE

23. BREFRER (#)

The Group’s entrusted loan receivable is denominated in

RMB, which is the functional currency of the respective group

companies.

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

AEBRKREFTETIGUARKEE - MAR
ERHEEEE QRIS

24. REE QT 2R

Costs of investments in unlisted RIEEMEE AR Z
associates ®E 2 KA
Share of post-acquisition losses DG E R EE
The Group had interests in the following associates:
Form of Principal
business Country of place of Class of
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation share held
EitR EBERIA AfRiER TEEXHE  FRROEN
Beijing Yunyifangyu 10T Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered
Limited (“Beijing Yunyi") capital
FRERHTIRE i il e AR
FRAR(ERES])
LERERENE Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered
BRAR( LERS)) capltal
et e e iR
BRUFMEAERAA Incorporated The PRC The PRC Registered
(TERRAR) caplal
R e hE iER

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHTT
9,476 6,595
(2,829) (3,551)
6,647 3,044

AEBRTIIB L AR R AR

Proportion of Proportion

registered capital of voting

held by the Group power held Principal activities
KB
HRERLH igstes ] IERH

% % % %
2019 2018 2019 018
ZE-pE IS\ ZE-AE ZE)\E

- 4 - 4 Software development
(Note i) (Note i)
- 4 - & npR%
(Kizkii) (Hizzii)
40 40 40 10 Software development
(Note ) (Note i)
40 40 40 0 Bt
(hisk) (hi3k)
40 = 40 - Development of automated
{est equipment in PRC
EREREED R
R

RABMEEBERAR — T NFFH
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Notes:

()

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group incorporated
/8% 5 with registered capital of RMB20,000,000. Initial
capital injection of RMB4,000,000 was made by the Group
upon incorporation. As at 31 December 2019, the Group and
other investors had capital commitment of RMB4,000,000
(equivalent to HK$4,492,000) (2018: RMB4,000,000
(equivalent to HK$4,568,000) and RMB 12,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$13,476,000) (2018: RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$13,704,000)) respectively. The Group’s capital commitment is

set out in note 37.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed
of a 40% interest in Beijing Yunyi to a third party for proceeds
of RMB1. The transaction has not resulted in the recognition of
gain or loss in profit or loss since the carrying amount of the 40%
investment on the date of loss of significant influence is Nil.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group and an
independent third party set up an entity named BB ERE XS
FR /28] in which the Group owned 49% of the equity interests and
accounted for as an associate. The Group invested in JEFEZA
E %4527 by injection of a land and a property with carrying
amount of HK$9,977,000 and HK$10,162,000. As at the date of
incorporation, remeasurement gain on the land and property of
HK$4,603,000 was credited to other gain and losses. Subsequently
on 26 November, 2019, the Group disposed the associate at a
consideration of approximately HK$26,597,000, which was settled
with the other payable to the controlling shareholder of J&R5 2 Z 4
B XA AF]. The transaction has resulted in a gain on disposal
of an associate, amounting to approximately HK$1,660,000.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advance made by the Group.

Summarised financial information of each reporting period is
not disclosed as it is not material to the Group.
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Bt -

()

(ii)

B

BE_FT—AS+t-_A=1+—HALEE &
SEFMERY EERE FMERAARE
20,000,0007T © 7N & B 5 & it 5K <2 B 40 5 0%
B ARM4,000007T R=ZFT—ALFE+=A
=+—B AEEREMBEEENEREED B
A A R ¥ 4,000,000 7T (48 % 74 4,492,000 7T )
(ZZ—N\F: AR%4,0000007T(# 5%
4,568,000/ 7T )) K& A R # 12,000,000 7t ( 48
HR13,476,0008 L) (ZTE—\F: AR
12,000,000 7T (#2578 13,704,000/ 75 ) ) * A%k
B 7 B ANAESEEHAH 37 o

BE_Z-AF+-A=+—HLFE F*&E
A—BFE=NDHELRESHI0% Eam - EEUT
BHRRAREIT dARERZEATZEE A
A0% BENREERT - HULRIAR H I EGH
AR EE T RN SRS 1R o

BE_Z-NAF+-A=+—HLEFE F*&H
H-2BUE=R—HERAEGEEAE
XERARMER  NEBRE TR 49% BHE
VAEREBERRAR - NEBE®IAREES
711439,977,0007% 7T % 10,162,000/ 7T 8 13t 2 )
¥ RENEGEBAEXARAF - NEMAK
SHE - L RMENERE S KRER4,603,000
BLEFARMER - BRR-_F—NF+—A
ZHRA - REBAK(EL 26,597,0008 TTHIE
ZHENTE  WAFESE BAEXEERARE
BRBR A B FE A R SR A - AR HERK
EENE B AR 2 Y E491,660,000/8 7T ©

RAARERETAAAEEERES K

BEARBERRZERAIBRZENLERE

EARS! -
EMEHHMBAREEL K BE - HARLHK
EEMELTER -



25. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE—T—NE+=A=+—RAILFE

25. BAVEFT AHMEE V@ AR

AT

B/ RBRAFEFABENS

MEE

2019 2018
—E-hE  —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Equity instruments at FVTOCI comprise : & A FEt AR A 2 ER R
AT ABIE
Listed equity securities outside REABUIN ETIRAFES (R ATE) - 38,646
Hong Kong, at fair value (note i) (Brati)
Unlisted equity security outside REBAINE E TR A E S 669 503
Hong Kong, at fair value (note ii) (LR TE) (Hati)
Financial assets at FVTPL comprise: BATEFABRNESREER
Listed equity securities in REB EMRAES (RAFE) 22,512 18,278
Hong Kong, at fair value
Notes: Kt
(i) The above listed equity investments represent ordinary shares of 0} Eit ERAIEE IR BB U ETE BN TR

an entity listed outside Hong Kong. These investments are not held
for trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes.
The directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that
recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value
in profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy
of holding these investments for long-term purposes and realising
their performance potential in the long run.

B ZEREWIHHERR - MEARAEEA
MmiEE - AAREFCRERZSRERTER
BAFEFARME2ERGEZEATE  RERZ
BERR  NMEGETERZZREATENEY
B ERARE B R AR A R SR E WA ELE
FERBEBR 2 RIS ©
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179



180

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GRE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HLFE

25. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (conTINUED)

25. AV EF AR M EKER
AIE "RAFEFABRNE
BMEE (H)

Notes: (continued)

(ii) The above unlisted equity security investment represents the
Group's 6% equity interest in a private entity established in
PRC. The directors of the Group have elected to designate this
investment in equity instrument as at FVTOCI.

26. INVENTORIES

Wiz (%)

(i)  EBRSEETRABFREEAEERPBEKILIZ
LEERZ6%IE - AREEEDREHZREA
BERBRATEFAREMEERREBRATA -

Raw materials R
Work in progress P
Finished goods BUpK

27. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

26. F&
2019 2018
—E-hF T )N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
151,950 247,605
32,160 21,623
66,661 103,618
250,771 372,846

27. FEHEWR

The Group’s properties held for sale are all situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.
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The normal credit period given on sale of goods relating
to Handsets and IOT terminals business, Electronics
manufacturing services business and |OT system and 020
business and Intelligent manufacturing business is 0-90 days.
A longer period is granted to a few customers with whom the
Group has a good business relationship and which are in
sound financial condition. There is no credit given to sales of
properties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net
of allowance for credit loss, as well as notes receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the revenue recognition
dates:

Trade receivables JEUNE SRR
0-30 days TFE 30K
31-60 days 31 60X
61-90 days 61 290K
91-180 days 91 £ 180k
Over 180 days HBiE 180K

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE

Trade receivables FEUNE 5 8RR

Notes receivables (Note) FEMERIE (H12E)
0-30 days TE30K
31-60 days 31E60K
61-90 days 61 £ 90K
91-180 days 91E 180K
Over 180 days HBiE 180K

Note: Notes receivables represent the promissory notes issued by banks
received from the customers.

HEE TR ARLIRER - BTRERS
HEBEY  VWHERRLELEBTRE R
EEGERZERZ REEHRTEIK -
DEEAKEA R EFRE B M B RIBE
LEFEERRZEES - WERHEEMRE
FEEH-

AN B S BR (BRI A Z B HIMRE ) /8
WE SRR (HIREEERRE) A REERE
RERBEMEL BRI

2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-N\%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
184,216 131,229
41,753 30,168
15,293 15,054
14,893 24,846
48,061 21,769
304,216 223,066
(28,387) (24,031)
275,829 199,035
726 25,008
1,619 828
55 958
4,009 4,756
224 914
6,633 32,464
282,462 231,499

Bret - BREBRRTPWERRITE L 2 AR

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH

181



182

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. The Group has policy for provision of ECL,
which is based on an evaluation of the collectability and age
analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor with
significant balances or credit impaired and the remaining
balances are grouped based on past due characteristics and
on management’s judgement including creditworthiness, the
past collection history and forward-looking information.

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$51,406,000 (2018: HK$46,030,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$17,724,000 (2018: HK$13,568,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
because there was no historical default of payments by the
respective customers. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.
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EMEMHEPA  AEESTEEETPH
FEERITRETFPNEERE - TFRES
FEAMAK - AREEARR - RESHEEK
B 5 MR B 2 AT E AR A Ah S AR ik D AT
(MERGHIREEE RFRURIZR RS
BB AREREZHE (REEENE B
EERCERAELEN)  BEHEEEE
BiBfEL RS -

R-ZE—hh&E+-_F=+—80 AEEWH
BRESEREHBENRSBHE S
/) BR M 42 1E A51,406,00008 T( —Z & — N\
£ : 46,030,000 7T ) K FE W BR X - @
Hi & fh TR 17,724,000 T( = F — \ F -
13,568,000 7T ) B #1 Hi90 K sk A k18 37 &
WARBEL - AR BEE P W &R 50E
H o AEBUERZSEHIT B EMNERSR -
REBYWERZSEHIT A TR -



As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of
HK$67,755,000 (2018: HK$20,619,000) are denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD”), which are not denominated in
the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 45.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will
be settled within twelve months after the end of reporting
period except for amounts of approximately HK$7,412,000
(2018: HK$8,793,000) due from former subsidiaries of
the Group, which are secured, interest bearing at 7% per
annum, guaranteed by the existing shareholder of the former
subsidiaries, and repayable on 31 December every year from
2019 to 2026. Deposits mainly represented trade deposits
paid to third parties.

The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments:

VAT recoverable AT e ER

Interest receivables FEWFIE,

Deposits paid to suppliers for MEEFEIMAT
purchasing inventories HEEZIES

Receivables from a customer for
purchasing materials on its behalf

Prepayments TR RIA

Other receivables HoAth FE U BR R

Less: Amount not receivable within
one year shown under
non-current assets 2RI

W —&F PR BRI R

W IERENEER TSI
TAR—FR%KE

RZZ—NF+=-A=+—H " 67,755,000%
TT(ZZF—/\%F : 20,619,000/& ) K E 5
BRASIT ([RTT D aHE - WIFLA MBS E R
BRI EREEHE

BE_Z-NF+-_A=t—HLFERKE
SRR BB A BRI FEAS

Hih KRR AEIER - 28 RIERHRER
K+ —ELRNEE HERAEENS
R B RIBEHTA120008 T (=T — )\ F:
8,793,000/ 7t ) BB I - IR F A K T7% 5"
E A BRARRAEREEERIER-Z
—NER-T-_ EEF+-_A=+—HEEZ
BN B FBAINTFE=FZ2BIHES -

INTEBEMERERR  BERBENKEZS
o

2019 2018
—E-NF —T)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
56,235 58,529
5,584 -
84,956 87,203
60,298 260,000
7,645 4,665
23,172 22,309
237,890 432,706
(7,412) (8,793)
230,478 423913
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The following is the breakdown of contract assets:

Sale of intelligent manufacturing
products

Sales of electronics manufacturing
services

Note: The amounts in this columns are after the adjustments from the
application of IFRS 15.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because
the rights are conditioned on (i) the completion of retention
period on the sale of intelligent manufacturing products;
and (ii) the delivery of finished goods on the electronics
manufacturing services. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables when the rights become unconditional. The
Group typically transfers contract assets to trade receivables
within 12 months.

The significant increase in the current year is the result
of the existence of amounts from the sales of electronics
manufacturing services at the end of the year.

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and an associate

Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.

Details of impairment assessment of other financial assets for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 45.
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HEE TRUERBHER

UTRENEEZHA :

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—F-NEF  STNEF
+=-—HA=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Note)

(Ff$3E)

11,076 8,222

125 28,131

11,201 36,353

Bet - ARG 2 BB A RERBIRM RS ENFE
1557 2 35 »

BRHEETREANKERD TR AREHRE
R TEKRBRENENBR - BAZEENI
R (N HE TR EBBEE TR B HEST - R
(i) EFBUERBHERRK MR ES B BN
BT - EREFARSRNE - SNEEER
ERWE SRR - AEE KRR 12EARKE
MEEBRERKEZERK -

RAFERARIEMDARNFERFEHEEFH
EIRTE PTIS SRR ER -

PN F D R R — B A A IR R RR R

BRFRAREER 2R REEREE -

E_T-NFT_A=T—BLFEHEMLS
BB ERBE R EFH BB 45 o



The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB, HK$ and USD. The bank balances
receive variable interest at an average rate of 1% (2018:
1%) per annum. Included in the bank balances and cash,
short-term bank deposits and pledged bank deposits was
an amount of HK$350,708,000 (2018: HK$361,322,000)
denominated in RMB, which is not freely convertible into
other currencies.

The Group’s bank deposits of HK$31,226,000 (2018:
HK$57,557,000) as at 31 December 2019 were pledged to
secure the short-term general banking facilities granted by
banks and discounted bills. The bank deposits will mature on
clearance of the discounted bills.

At 31 December 2019, short-term deposits receive fixed
interest rates range from 2.77% to 3.80% (2018: Nil) per
annum with original maturity over three months.

At 31 December 2019, bank balances and short-term bank
deposits of HK$588,363,000 (2018: HK$342,216,000) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

Trade and notes payables, other payables, deposits received
and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purposes and ongoing costs.

Trade and notes payables

Trade and notes payables (other than for the construction
of properties held for sale) principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period
taken for trade purchases is 30-90 days.

Payables and accrued expenditure on construction of
properties held for sale comprise construction costs and other
project-related expenses which are payable based on project
progress measured by the Group.

REBZRTHEBEBESTEUAARE BT
RETCFHE © RITEBIIBFIRT B - F15
FRREIB(ZT—N\F : 1E) - 1788 K
e RERTFFUAREEBERITTERAAR
E—E A RKESTE 2 FXIE 350,708,000 7% 7T
(== — )\ : 361,322,000 7T) * ZEE
e B RERAH M EE o

REER—_Z-NF+_A=+—B2Z2RTF
31,226,000 % 7t (= F — )\ : 57,557,000
B ETER (EFREGSRITREEHA K
RITRE RAARIE 2 HIR - RITFEFHRA

RARBRHEERIE -

R-ZE-hhE+-A=+—08 " RIHBAE=
EANEZ R FRREBIREFE277ESE
3B0E(ZZE—NF : D) BZEBFE -

R=B—AF+ZA=+—A « RETTHHES
SR1T 443 R 4 HRAR T 17 315 588,363,000 78 7T
(ZZT—N\F : 342,216,000/ 7) * BAFKIA
3 35 SRR MR R A A S

NEZERNRR - HEMERR  E%IR
EREFFRIECRE S MG 2 RENFER
IAR BRI o

ENEZRARREE
ENESERAERER (T EERERIEHEY
R)IEERAREECEFIRESR - EHK
B REEHRIVENOK -

PR FHEHEY X 2 BN R KB A B
BERA R EAD A B AR 2 - ARA
BREAEEFEZBRBEERESN -
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An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and notes payables
at the end of the reporting period is presented based on the
invoice dates for trade payables or date of issuance for notes

payables is as follows:

0-30 days FTE30K
31-60 days 31 260K
61-90 days 61 290K
Over 90 days B0 K
Notes payables BN EE
0-30 days TE30K

AT RRBERRANEE BN ESRARE
BRENBESRACEEANNENER 2%

B AR 2 BRER AT
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
149,035 63,336
19,724 39,466
2,636 51,477
47,858 25,172
219,253 179,451
5,069 5,371
224,322 184,822

As at 31 December 2019, included in the trade and notes
payables, HK$5,980,000 (2018: HK$9,943,000) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

Other payables, deposits received and accruals
The following is the breakdown of other payables, deposits

REIZ-NAF+-A=+—0 " ENESER
R ZBEANBIE AR ITEHE Z 58 5,980,00078
TT(ZFT—/\5F :9,943,000%T) * BHIA
WIARAEBE BRI ERHE -

Hitb AR - BUWIRS R IERT R
AT SEMENERR - EWiRE REFTHIEZ

received and accruals:

Deferred income (note) RIEWA (B122)

Payables on acquisition of property, WHEMIZE - BB K
plant and equipment XAt 2 IR BR R

Payables on licence fee JERTFFR] 8 B

Accruals FERTFIR

VAT payables FERHEET

Other payables E T ERR
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2019 2018
—EB-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
41,495 43,035
2,682 2,945

- 3,934
21,243 17,430
3,083 1,168
21,422 21,183
89,925 89,695




Note: As at 31 December 2019, the Group had deferred income
on government grants amounting to HK$41,495,000 (2018:
HK$43,035,000). Government grants are given to support the
research and development of advanced electronic devices
and technology and used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. These grants are released to income to cover actual
expenditure used in research and development activities or
transferred to profit or loss over useful lives of the related assets.
Included in deferred income on government grants amounting to
HK$35,652,000 (2018: HK$39,197,000) represented the income
that is not expected to be realised to profit or loss within 12 months
of the reporting date based on the depreciation rates of the related
assets and therefore has been presented to non-current liabilities.

Other liabilities

At the close of business on 31 December 2018, a subsidiary
of the Company had an arrangement with a bank in which
approximately HK$29,692,000 of notes receivables issued
by another group entity (the “Issuing Subsidiary”) through
intra-group transactions were discounted to a bank without
recourse. The notes remained payable by the Issuing
Subsidiary and were classified as other liabilities of the Group
at the end of the reporting period.

Sale of handsets and IOT Terminals — $5& F# & W Hi 489 4% 0%
Electronics manufacturing services B FRIERTE
Sale of goods to vending machine RIEBEED RIFFKE

customers and franchisee mEHEEm
Sale of intelligent manufacturing HESEREER
products
Sale of properties HEME

it : RZZE—NAF+=ZA=+—0  X&EEERFE
B A ZIEIEWR A 41,495,000 870 (=T —/\F ¢
43,035,000 7T ) ° BUFIE B WA TI R X F 5
EETFRE R 2 - URKBEYE - BE
RSt o WD EEBETRAREREES 2
ERFA R ERE E 2 SR R85 o I
F338 B A ZEFE A A B4 — 28 35,652,000 75
TE(=Z—/\4 : 39,197,000/ 7T) 2 58 * 1Bi%
HRAEEZNEER  HHABRFETENEER
Bz 12 A ARIEBETEIE - AmME5AIERE
afE -

Hitb & &
RZB-NFT_A=+—"REXKMHE
B ARAIMHEBARE —MRTAILR
BBl Bax—SEEB(RZNER
A BBERARRRERZELNERERY
29,692,000 TT AP TN A58 RAE R 15 0 T BE
BT —MRRT - RMEHR - EAERDER
REMBRARXN  IDBRAREEZHEMLE
&

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
—EB-hF —E—N\F
+=A=+—-A +=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
161,992 177 429
11,063 11,321
5,859 13,134
22,734 14,141
607 3,320
202,255 219,345
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Contract liabilities, that are expected to be settled within
the Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as current
based on the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or
services to the customers.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and
2019, the entire balances are recognised as revenue to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2019
and expected to be recognised during the year ending 31
December 2020, respectively.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Sale of handsets and IOT Terminals/Electronics
manufacturing services/Sale of goods to vending machine
customers and franchisee/Sale of intelligent manufacturing
products

When the Group receives a deposit before the sale of
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start
of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
typically receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of
goods.

Sales of properties

The Group receives a percentage of contract value as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. The percentage are specific to
each contracts based on the location and selling price of
the properties. The deposits result in contract liabilities
being recognised until the customer obtains control of the
completed property.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Secured: BHEA
Bank loans (note i) RITER (A1)
Discounted bills (note i) ,\Eiﬁrﬁﬁ?} (H1azii)

Notes:

0}

(ii)

At the end of the reporting period, the loans include an amount
of HK$4,941,000 (2018: HK$3,947,000) denominated in RMB,
which are the functional currency of the respective group entities.
The loans carry fixed interest rate (2018: fixed interest rate).
All loans are repayable within one year. Pursuant to the loan
agreements, the bank borrowings were secured by investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and land use rights and as disclosed in notes 15, 16, 17 and 18
respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, discounted bills included an amount
of HK$72,995,000 (2018: HK$79,940,000) denominated in
RMB, which was the functional currency of respective entities of
the Group, and were secured by notes receivables. The average
effective interest rates of the discounted bills at 2.88% per annum
(2018: 1.9% per annum). Bills were issued through intra-group
transactions and the relevant group entities discounted the bills to
independent third parties. The bills receivable and payable issued

between group entities were fully eliminated on consolidation.

The discounted bills were secured by pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$31,226,000 as disclosed in note 29.

Bt

(i)

2019 2018

—F-hF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
4,941 3,947
72,995 79,940
77,936 83,887

R|ERR - FRAEFRBEAEEEEERZY
REEBARBHEZERK49410008T(—F
—/\4F : 3,947,000/87T) - BREEFIREE MK
AE(ZE-N\F : BENE) - FERFHEAR
—FREE - RIEER G - RITEETDUERE
ME - ME - BERRE REEEERTWE
FAREVE AR (D BIRBTRE 15 ~ 16 ~ 17 R 18 4%

®)-

—hEFE+-A=+—0 BRREEERE
AHEREEER ZDH E:TM/\EMJ@Z%%E
72,995,000/ 7t ( = & — /\ F : 79,940,000
T WARKRRERER - BBRREZ T
E%i*‘J%%Z.SSE(:Z—)\i CEMELY
B) - ZERBREBEENLRZHT MEH
SEE aﬂﬁm?ﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬁ*"—ﬁ %IEL
P77 2 IR K e RIB N AR & ARRE 2 80K

MR EAM M KE 2 B BRRITERLD
31,226,000 & T EHE R ©
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31 December

2019
—E-NF
+=—HA=+—8H
HK$’000
FHET
Lease liabilities payable: EfHEEaE
Within one year —FR 6,319
Within a period of more than one year —FREMFANHE
but not more than two years 2,152
Within a period of more than two years MFEEZERFEANEARE
but not more than five years 713
9,184
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months B omBBETRR 12 A R EEE
shown under current liabilities 25K (6,319)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months SERBAGRT RN 1218 A B2 HEE
shown under non-current liabilities 2R 2,865
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other IATNEFI RSB BRI EE N E
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities EEHEMHEESLT
are set out below:
HK$’000
FET
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF+=A=1+—~H 79
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:
At 1 January 2018,
31 December 2018 and
31 December 2019

Issued:
At 1 January 2018
Shares repurchased
and cancelled

At 31 December 2018
Shares repurchased

and cancelled

31 December 2019

FIXEEO.1 BT Eilk

TETE
R-ZE-—NF—H—-A1"

—E-N\F+ZA=F+—HEK

—F-hF+=A=+—~
BBHT -

RN—E—-N\F—HF—H
e AEINEE SO

R-F—N\F+-_A=1t—H
v $AEPSEE S )

R-E—hF+-_H=+—H

Number Share
of shares capital
RHEE &S

'000 HK$'000

FI Fib

3,000,000 300,000

2,559,546 255,955
(39,292) (3,930)

2,520,254 252,025
(89,530) (8,953)

2,430,724 243,072
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Properties revaluation reserve

At 1 January 2018
Gain on revaluation of properties and
land use rights

At 31 December 2018
Gain on revaluation of properties and
right-of-use assets

At 31 December 2019

Assets revaluation reserve

At 1 January 2018

Fair value change on investments in
equity instruments at FVTOCI

Gain on partial disposal of equity
instrument at FVTOCI

At 31 December 2018

Fair value change on investments
in equity instruments at FVTOCI

Gain on partial disposal of equity
instrument at FVTOCI

At 31 December 2019
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YIRE G EE

R_ZFE—N\F—H—H
BEMEN L ERE R

RZB—N\F+-_A=1t—H
EnMEREREEE Wt

RZB-—NF+_A=1t—H

BESMRHE

R=ZF—/\F—H—H

BENRAFES AR EERENESTA L

ATEED

#hoy M ERAHER ARt R E YR

2R TR 2 i
R=Z—N\F+=A=+—H
%

AR EATEN AR 2 ERS
BORA T A AT ERE
o

2T A I

R-F-NF+-_A=1t—H

s
HERDFEFT ARG 2R

HK$'000
TAT

102,827

36,730

139,557

63,364

202,921

HK$'000
TAET

47,534

(21,421)

(8,929)

17,184

11,707

(26,710)

2,181



HK$'000

FAT
Translation reserve BE G
At 1 January 2018 R-_E—N\F—H—H 187,950
Exchange differences arising on MEE2Y|EEEENERER
translation to presentation
currency (55,151)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\EFE+=-_A=+—8H 132,799
Exchange differences arising on MEEZ2|EEEFNERER
translation to presentation
currency (12,796)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H 120,003
The Group as lessee AEEERAEA
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—HLEFE &K
made minimum lease payments under operating leases in SERPHAEMEMBELERES M 2&
respect of office premises of approximately HK$13,663,000, K7 € X IB 4 5 13,663,000/8 7T © H & 4
in which approximately HK$2,827,000 were capitalised in 2,827,000 BT ERFAEK AR ERL o
development cost.
The Group had commitments for future minimum lease AEERBETAIBHELCERES 2 R RKEE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall HEREREZHHEWT ¢
due as follows:
2018
—Z=—)\F
HK$'000
FAT
Within one year —FR 8,552
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZENT (BREMFERBEN) 8,762
17,314
Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and MEZFHFEEHEEAME  MBESETEF
rentals are fixed for an average of two years. B AR o
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The Group as lessor AEBERBHBEA
All of the properties held have committed tenants for FrEREzWENBRZTARLYIEREIF -
approximately 4 months to 9 years.

Minimum lease properties receivables on leases are as ERRErRKNSEBEBMNZTBEHLT
follows:
2019
—E-hF
HK$'000
FET

Within one year —FNR 39,373
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFRF(ERMEBREEN) 58,893
After five years A 20,345

118,611
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RMERR - AEBEEBRETH 2 AR &ER
with tenants for the following future minimum lease BB
payments:

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FAT
Within one year —F R 31,866
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFERF(ERMEBRBEN) 59,975
After five years hFE 33,634
125,475
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Expenditure in respect of investment
in an associate contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements (note 24)

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and
regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of
the Group in Hong Kong are required to join the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ salaries and are charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts of HK$51,725,000 (2018:
HK$48,671,000) contributed by the Group to the schemes
and cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

EATHERNEG A BRET
B2 B R —
ZREFZ (KE24)

2019 2018

—F-hF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
4,492 4,568

AEBRBERFEATESA BRI SEMAE
BREERY —HRESFE - MAREENAR
SEEEHAMARESTE - HFZEER
AFHEME—BOLEL  IREBESFE
ZHRBIRET XN ERS R RING - 878
TRTEICEERASENEMEEDFRE
H—BYERZESRHA - KRGESFTEH
RE - AREREIHFB2HEENEE T
B R E-NFRZZE-NFF+ZA=+—
B - WL U2 AT AR AN SR B R R K
FEZ MBI -

AEBERPEZIMBEARERTEZERR
8] 28 —-BFRRERE R EHBFLERRK
RBAETE - B RRIAER T EKRANIEEB D
LebE R R AR M ET ISR - AR BIFLR KR
MEBIZE— B ERELHIEEMHNK -

FA - AKEA B4R 51,725,000 7T
(ZZ—/\F : 48,671,000 7T) * MANEREHE
SRMFZKA - KREAREREFTERAIZ
HEE LE R AR B 2 R BR o
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The Company had two share option schemes, including post-
initial public offering share options scheme (the “Post-IPO
Options”) and new share options scheme (the “New Share
Options”). Post-IPO Options and New Share Options were
adopted on 30 May 2005 and 1 June 2016, respectively. The
major terms and conditions of the two schemes are set out
below:

(A) Post-IPO Options
(i) The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

(i)  The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as the
board of directors may consider appropriate.

(iii)  On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew the
10% general limit of the Post-IPO Options was
duly passed by the shareholders of the Company.
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the Post-
IPO Options must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at 12 December 2008 (i.e. 151,749,000
shares) and in any event the total maximum
number of shares which might be issued or
issuable upon exercise of all outstanding options
should not exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time.

(iv)  The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. No consideration is required to be paid by
the grantee for the grant of options.

(v)  The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.
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(A)

Post-1PO Options (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The life of the Post-IPO Options was effective
until 29 May 2015. No further option can be
granted thereafter but provisions of the Post-IPO
Options shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects.

On 19 July 2013, the Company has granted an
aggregate of 63,000,000 share options under
the Post-IPO Options to eligible participants
thereof, including certain employees and
business partners of the Group (“Grantees”).
The Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe
for an aggregate of 63,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company upon exercise in full.

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding 1
per cent of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number
of shares already issued or to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted
to such grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further
grant exceeding one per cent of the total number
of shares in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in
general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

(A)

BRORBERBRESS (A

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BRARBEERBRETSZFH
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63,000,000/ FAXE E0. 1078 T2
e A o

fisl AR AT 1248 A B3 Pl (R 4%
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EE TR AERAR AR LB
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(B)

New Share Options

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as the
board of directors may consider appropriate.

The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Share Options and any
other scheme of the Group must not exceed
255,789,630 shares, being 10% of shares in
issue on the day which the New Share Options
was approved by the shareholders, unless
approval of the shareholders has been obtained,
and which must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the ordinary shares in issue from time to time.
As at the date of this report, the total number
of ordinary Shares available for issue under the
New Share Options is 255,789,630 shares, which
represents 10.23% of the issued shares as at the
date of this report.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. HK$1 is required to be paid by the grantee
an acceptance of options.

The exercise price of an option must be no less
than the highest of:

° the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

The life of the New Share Options was effective
until 1 June 2026, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the New
Share Options shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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(B)

New Share Options (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding 1
per cent of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number
of shares already issued or to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted
to such grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further
grant exceeding one per cent of the total number
of shares in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in
general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

No share options were granted, exercised lapsed
or cancelled under the New Share Options
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

(B)

HR AR R B (/)

(vii)

(viii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GRE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 Decemt

er 2019

HIEFE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

39. iR 2 (#)

The following table disclose details of the Post-IPO Options
held by the grantee and movements in such holdings:

Category of participants
SEEEH

Directors

iz

Tang Rongrong
FER

(Chan Tat Wing, Richard
ek

LiuJun

-
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Name
of scheme

itHER

PostPO Options
BRDFRER
EhEtE

PostPO Options
HRDFRER
ECaE]

PostPO Options
HRDFRER
ECaE]

PostPO Options
HRDFRER
ECaE]

Post-IP0 Options
HRDRRER
ECaE]

Date of grant
RHAR

8308
2%,

=R

ZthA

392009
5ENE
MA=R

8308
=
=R
ZthA

39,2009
5ENE
MA=R

39,2009
5ENE
nAz8

Exercisable period
fikd
(Notei)
)

1542009-273.2018
“EENEMATER
-y

*

3-/\5=4

o
1542010-29.2019
Z5-ZERATRA
oy

“5-NEnAZR

1542000-273018
ZEENERATEA
2

“5-)\%z8

o
1542010292019
“5-ZFMATHA
2
“E-NENAZR

1542010292019
Z5-2ERATRA
oy

“E-hENAZA

Exercise
price
per share
8}
ik
HKS
T

069

068

089

088

06

TREEAEARBE QAN &L ERE
B E 2 BRI S RS 8

Qutstanding Qutstanding Qutstanding
at  Reallocated it at
1 January upon 31 December 31 December
2018 changeof Forfeited Lapsed 2018 Forfeited Lapsed 2019
RZB-NE  diectorate during dwing  R=Z-NE during dwing  W-E-RE
-f-B  EEgE4 the year theyear t=A=1-A the year theyear t=A=t-R
BAR  ENAR  EARM ERRM HAME  EREM ERRN MAGE
(Noteii)
()
936,000 - (936000 = S - - -
3510000 - - - 3510000 (3510000) = =
1872000 - (1872000) = = = = =
3510000 (3,510000) = = = = = =
936,000 - - - 9000 (936000) = =
10764000 (35100000 (2808,000) - 46000  (4446000) - -




39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B MRS R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HLFE

39. BRERE (F)

Category of participants
SEEEH

Employees of the Group
FREEE

Other participant
EfppiE

Consutants

B

Total
)

Exercisable at the end of the
year

RERTFR

Name
of scheme

R

PostPO Options
BRDFRER
EREE

PostPO Options
BRDFRER
EREE

Post-IP0 Options
BRAFRER

R

PostP0 Options
BRDREER
ERiEiE

Post-IPO Options
ERORRER

BRI

Date of grant
RkAY

283.2008
55\
=

g

392009
35k
MA=HR

197013
5k
tATIA

392009
3EnE
AAZR

197013
5cF

tAthA

Exercisable period
fik8
(Notz1)
()

15.42009-27.3.2018
“EENERATRA
ey

£

= St
I
154201029019
“E-FEMEER
a

x
“Z-hEnAZR
1420151872023

“5-BERATHA
oy

ZRTECRTA
A

1542010292019
5-ZERATHA
oy

E
“Z-NENAZA
1542015187203

“5-1%MmAtHA

HE

“EoCELRT

m =

Exercise
price
per share
8k
ik
HKS
AT

069

068

0346

06

0340

Qutstanding Qutstanding Qutstanding
at  Reallocated it a
1 January upon 31 December 31 December
218 changeof Forfeited Lapsed 2018 Forfeited Lapsed 2019
WZE-N\E  diectorate during duing  R=Z-NF during duing  R=E-h%
-B-A  EZEEE  theyer  theyer tBST-R theyer  theyer TZA=T-R
WAGE  ENAR  FARM ERRM  EAGR ERRR ERRM HAGR
(Note i)
(Wit
122173% - (1L603475)  (673920) - = = =
38360520 - - (13479570) 24880950 (4429330 (461620) -
15,263,000 - - (26630000 12600000 - - 12600000
- 3510000 - - 3510000 (3510000) - -
45,400,000 - - - 4540000 - - 45400000
12064915 - (14411475 (16816490) 90836950 (32385330) (4516200  58000,000

90,836,950 58,000,000
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Notes:

()

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 12 May 2006
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each of the

four calendar years from 1 January 2007.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 13 November
2007 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each
of the four years from 1 April 2008.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 28 March
2008 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of
the four year from 15 April 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 3 September
2009 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of
the four year from 15 April 2010.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 19 July 2013
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the four
year from 15 April 2014.

Chan Tat Wing, Richard resigned as a Director with effect from

29 September 2018 and become an other participant since then.

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share option
reserve. For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no share option expense with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the Group’s share option reserve has been
recognised.
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Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management representing the
Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 10 during the
year was as follows:

Short-term benefits %2 BAE A
Post-employment benefits BER 218

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the Group’s operating results, responsibilities and
performance of individuals and market trends.

FTEEEAB 2R
WAFE - EWE I0FRBERRESHENE
ZEEABMEIT

2019 2018
—E-NF —T)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
2,339 3,831

135 190

2,474 4,021

EXRIBETBRABZHEAFHERESRE
BAEEKLEESE  EAMAEZEEIRER
REMGBERERE
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On 3 April 2019, the Group acquired 100% interest in A R-E—NEFEMNA=H  KEBWEFREE

B Z RV AR AT (unofficial English name being Kongtop CRIDBRAR([FEHI) 100% #xm - REA
Industrial (Shenzhen) Company Limited) (“Kongtop”), for 23,400,00087C - RIAE BN EFHEER - &
the consideration of HK$23,400,000. Kongtop is principally HUHE B 7 o= 2N S B A F 1% N W B A8 AR o 5
engaged in the handsets business and was acquired with the 7 o
objective of improving the Group’s handsets and 10T terminal
business.
Consideration transferred 2EENRE

HK$'000

FHT

Cash =5 23,400
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of RUBEAHREZANEWBEEREGENT :

acquisition are as follows:

HK$'000
FAET
Current assets RBEE
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRE&EBEIER 4,988
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 K H 308 17,340
Inventories VERS 10,854
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y~ BB RS 9,948
Current liabilities i =R i
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R EMFRIA (16,385)
Borrowings BE (5,861)
Tax payable FERI B (84)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings BE (1,231)
19,569
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Goodwill arising on acquisition HKWBELENEE

HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred EEENRE 23,400
Less: recognised amount of identifiable A TR R EEFE EERE R
net assets acquired (19,569)
Goodwill arising on acquisition E U E A 2 PR 3,831
The goodwill arising on acquisition is attributable to the RIS B B A 7 P B 5 R AN £ [ B T 4 % W B 4
anticipated profitability of the handsets and 10T terminal RIE S IRHTEHIB FEE 1] -
business of the Group.
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition EHWEEEZES KLY E5E
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration paid in cash BfReNRE 23,400
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired W TN EEIR S NIRSEEEE &5 (4,988)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—R B AREEZIRS MR8 18,412
Included in the loss for the year there is loss HK$8,458,000 NEEBEBERERAEIINEBELNER
attributable to the additional business generated by Kongtop. 8,458,000/8 7L - A FEWRABIEERHAESE
Revenue for the year includes HK$57,657,000 generated 757,657,000 77T °
from Kongtop.
Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, MEEER T —-NF—A—BxK &%
revenue for the year of the Group would have been 5] AN 4F 2 g A FE A 1,299,081,00078 7T M A
HK$1,299,081,000, and loss for the year of the Group would EEARFEEEDA74,860,00087T c BEEE
have been HK$74,860,000. The pro forma information PHERFARS  WIEMKESZER=_Z—N
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an FMA=HARK  AEBERMAFRARKLS
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group EERMINIBIR - I EHERARIREETEA -

that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 3 April 2019, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.
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(a)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party under which the Group
had conditionally agreed to dispose of two wholly-
owned subsidiaries, namely Shanghai Simcom
Electronic Limited and Simcom Wireless (collectively
referred to as the “Target Companies”) in relation to
Electronics manufacturing services business at a total
consideration of approximately RMB518,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$644,664,000) (the
“Simcoms Disposal”). The Simcoms Disposal was
completed in the year ended 31 December 2018 in
which the Group lost controls in the Target Companies.

Aggregate consideration received: EWERE :
Cash received 2R E

Analysis of aggregate assets and liabilities
over which control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment Y - BB &RE
Intangible assets M EE

Deferred tax assets EIEFIHE B
Inventories 7E

Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 K H M 3RI8
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE
Trade and other payables B E 5 R EAFRIE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE

Net assets disposed of HEEEFE
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(a)

HE—_Z—+tHE+-_HA=+—HItHF
B AEEHE—FZBYE=AFIVES
W& Bt AEBEEKERES
EEREFRERBEEREBNOW
ME2EKBARMIEHE D52 L
BRBETAERARMNMBER(H
BAEMZHAA])  BREAHDARKE
518,000,0007T (FHE 7 #7644,664,00075
) ([ERBEHESE]) - TMaHESE
BREE-_Z—\F+=-A=+—H81
FEZTK  AEBRXEXEHEHAFH
PRSI

HK$’000
TR

644,664

BREZHIENBEERBENDN :

HK$’000
TR

6,241
70,642
1,660
12,783
DIENS
45,742
(56,629)
(5,783)

126,171



(continued)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries:

Considerations
Net assets of the Target
Companies disposal of

Net cash inflow arising
on disposal:

Cash received

Less: Bank balances and
cash disposed of

Deposit received in prior year

SR Rz W

HE
HEZ BREAR
MEEFE

HEELNT
HEWA :

BIRE

B BHE 2T

R EFEREIHES

In 2018, the Group has incurred professional fees of
approximately HK$2,927,000, additional staff bonus
of approximately HK$12,460,000, redundancy cost
of approximately HK$4,090,000 and inventories
write off of approximately HK$71,022,000, which are
included in other expenses. EIT on capital gain from the
Simcoms Disposal was approximately HK$64,395,000.
In the opinion of the directors, these expenses are in

relation to the Simcoms Disposal.

HK$'000
T

644,664

(126,171)

518,493

644,664

(45,742)
(62,419)

536,503

RZZE—NF AEENEEXEA
#92,927,0007% 7T~ BN B T IE AL 4
12,460,000787T * JUERRL AN47 4,090,000
7570 R 17 B MUR 49 71,022,000 8 7T B 5
AEMRAY o BEAEHEFE 2 ERK
HEM RS #64,395000/8 7T « &
ERE ZERXESTNABLEEER
R o
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreements with a
few independent third parties to dispose of the share
capital of certain subsidiaries held by the Group.
The aggregate considerations were HK$12,271,000
in cash. The disposals of the subsidiaries were all
completed in 2018.

The consideration was to be satisfied by cash, of
which in the disposal of Hangzhou Kawo Automation
Technology Co., Limited, Dongguan New Road
Mark Automation Technology Co., Ltd and /&8
HEHESHAR AT (the “three Disposals”), (i)
consideration of approximately HK$2,874,000 was
settled during the year ended 31 December 2018;
(ii) consideration of RMB1,056,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,186,000) was unsettled (2018: consideration
of RMB4,028,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,601,000)) are expected to be settled in 2019;
(iii) annual instalment of RMB600,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$685,000) to be settled at the year
end date of each anniversary year from 2020 to 2026.
Considerations included discounted interest rate of 7%
per annum at initial recognition. As at 31 December
2019, the unsettled consideration of RMB5,256,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,900,000)
(2018: RMB8,228,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$9,397,000)) was recorded as consideration
receivable in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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(b)

BHE—_Z—N\E+-_HA=+—HIt#F
B AEESREEBYE=F AL
EET%E%  HEAEEBFE -G TH B

NI &N i%ﬂﬂ tﬁiilz 271,000
B HEWBARZMR=_T—\F
FERK ©

ERRECHRSEN  EFREER
MEREEBERHIEBR AT - RESHE
ZEELRERMARA R R LGS
EREEHERAR(ZEEE])+
(VR(B#2,874,0008 TREZ=_Z—N\
FHZA=+—HIEFEER: (HRE
A R 1,056,000 7T ( 48 & 71,186,000
BIL) MABN(ZE—NF: REA
R 4,028,000 7T ( 48 5 7 494,601,000
Bor))  BEHR T —NAFE Gil)
FE ‘HH}\E%%OOOOE(*H#E(‘%’J
685,000/ 7)) R T _TFE =

ZAFEERATFNFLEBER - W?‘;
ERVIREREIESE 7% M ERITHE -
R_ZE—NF+—A=+—8  HKE
B A R #5,256,000 7T (18 5 7 49
5900,00087) (ZZE—\F : AR
8,228,000 7t (A5 #79,397,0007 7T ) )
ERER A SRR R NEC s BRI (E -



(continued)

Aggregate considerations
received/receivable:

Cash received

Consideration receivable within
one year

Consideration receivable in more
than one year

Total consideration received/receivable

Analysis of aggregate assets
and liabilities over
which control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Trade and other payables

Net assets disposed of

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries:
Considerations received

and receivables
Net assets disposed of
Non-controlling interests

Net gain on disposal

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

Cash considerations

Less: Bank balances and cash
disposed of

Bl ARE

EWRE
R—FRRKKE

R—FREKRKE

B aR(E

HREEHED
HEERBBENDN

E RS ]
ERETIRE E

rE

FEW R 5 K Bt 5RIR
RITHEBREIRE
N B 5 K BoAth 5RI8

HEEEFE

HEME QR 2 W FE
B FEARAR(E

HEEEFE
FEIE R R R

HE 2 W EFER
HEELENFREWA :

HERE
W BHEZRITERKEES

RANKEBERAR

HK$'000
T

2,874
4,601

4,796

12,271

10,982
805
7,130
17,817
2,686
(23,329)

16,091

12,271
(16,091)
4,462

642

2,874

(2,686)
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The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

ATERBHINARERESRED(BERS
cRETRABCBE
R ERANEENES

NIEHR B E) Zi%fi
&%Eﬁim
Eﬁimbiﬁﬁq] 7] ;tEFjX Q x/i>

BURBRIRE ©

Bank Lease Other Dividend
borrowings liabilities liabilities payable Total
BITEE HESE HttE & ENRE @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR THER TR THERT
At 1 January 2018 RZZT-N\F
—H—H 84,104 = 141,154 = 225,258
Financing cash flows RERETE (1,832) - (109,824) (143,335) (254,991)
Non-cash changes: FHEEH
Foreign exchange GNEE (4,628) - (1,638) - (6,266)
Interest expenses METH 6,243 = = = 6,243
Dividend ) - - - 143,335 143,335
At 31 December 2018 R-—TB—N\E
+-A=t—H 83,887 - 29,692 - 113,579
Financing cash flows BEHLRE (14,328) (8,909) (29,484) (24,993) (77,714)
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ UEE—FEfi B AR 7,092 - - - 7,092
Non-cash changes: FHSES
Foreign exchange HNE (1,351) (172) (208) - (1,731)
New lease entered/lease FUHEE/
modified mEIHRE - 17,619 - - 17,619
Interest expenses MEZH 2,636 646 - - 3,282
Dividend s - - - 24,993 24,993
At 31 December 2019 RZF— jLi
+=R= 77,936 9,184 - - 87,120
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group and
an independent third party set up an entity named &%
HERBEARAA, in which the Group owned 49%
of the equity interests and accounted for as an associate.
The Group invested in B EEZEABEXEGR A A by
injection of a land and a property with carrying amount of
HK$9,977,000 and HK$10,162,000 respectively. As at the
date of incorporation, remeasurement gain on the land and
property of HK$4,603,000 was credited to other gain and
losses. Subsequently on 26 November 2019, the Group
disposed of the associate at a consideration of approximately
HK$26,597,000, which was settled by the other payable to
the controlling shareholder of SESEZERE X BB AF]. The
transaction has resulted in a gain on disposal of an associate,
amounting to approximately HK$1,660,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the purchase
consideration of property, plant and equipment and intangible
asset amounting to HK$2,945,000 and HK$3,934,000
respectively remained unsettled and included in other
payables, deposits received and accruals as at 31 December
2018.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of net debt, which include
the bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits. The management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

HE_Z-NF+T_A=+—HILEEER K&
BE—-2BIE =R AL LERES
REXERAFNER AEERETHES
49% BRIEWVERBE R BIARR - REBE BT
ABREES 5/49,977,000% 7t 1 10,162,000
BTN RYE  REREGESREXE
[RAR « REMAKZAE - ZLRMENE
#at 814,603,000 TE s AR AMBIES
HER-Z-NF+—HA-+7R"A  AEEA
(B4 26,597,000 78 7T H B =& R A] + WA
FEGESABEEAR A THERBIR M HE
ENEREE - ZAXHEMEL T E R
B N A 2 Wz 49 1,660,000 8 7T ©

BHE_Z-/\F+_H=1t—BHILLFE " BE
WE - BEEREBREVEENKRES DR
2,945,000 77T & 3,934,000 B 7T R T - A
B ARZE-—N\FE+TZA=+—HHHME
R - ENIR S RIERTRIES -

EXERER

AEEEEEARAZ ANAEBBILERER L
T BRAEEETSERERNEB AR
BEAERE  WRAKARRWERRSE® - A
SEZEAGREERERFR(HEBRERITE
B)RARAHEAARGEERZ (BREDETR
- fEELRERT)  EEBEHELNGRE
REEEERNRA R EEBENEREZER -
L - NREBRBEBIE - FITHIRAR
BITHEIBRRBEBFEBBENEE
REEZ BERBNAFEANRIFTTE -

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH
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Categories of financial instruments

ST EER

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial assets ERVEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKAY RN S REE 1,337,213 1,256,021
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATEFABERNESHEE 22,512 18,278
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAFEGFAEMEEREARATA 669 39,149
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Amortised cost B8 SR A 356,789 339,397

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and notes receivables and payables, other receivables and
payables, accruals, entrusted loan receivable, amounts due
from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an
associate, consideration receivables, pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, lease
liabilities and bank borrowings (2018: Equity instruments
at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and notes
receivables and payables, other receivables and payables,
accruals, entrusted loan receivable, amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate,
consideration receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, bank borrowings and other liabilities.)
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 36% (2018: 15%) of the Group's sales
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost
12% (2018: 47%) of costs are denominated in the group
entity’s functional currency.
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MR E RN B ZEBUER
AEEZFESHM T ABERATEFTAEM
PHKBEZBATAR - BAFEFABSEZSE
BMEE  BURRENESERRRER - HiE
W KBRS - FERTER - BRETER - &
U B 8 2~ &) Je — PR Bt v R B FE IR AR AR SRR
FEWRE  BERRITER - RHRITER
RITHEBREIRE  HEARURRTEER(Z
T—N\F : RAFEFAEMEERZE ZRA
ITE RAVEFABRZEMEE  EWR
ERNEBESERRER - EbER R ERRR
FEETER  ERETER  ERHBATR—
B A R TR RIA - EIRRE - B
WERITEN - BRITEBRERE  RITEERE
HmEE) ZEEHMIAZFBERBEBIESP
HER o HZE SR T B < [l A K& B R
RZERB 2 BERFNTX - BREETERE
RZERME - AREREE RFA R FIGEE &
i

BEmELE
REEZZMBRARAIIMNEETEE - 48K
BEESNERR - AEBEHEBEHI6% (=F
—N\F 15%) AEEERETERNINGEE
BN EMEEHE  MA12% (ZF— N\ :
47%) KA R AR B BB EEEFHE



Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities
are trade receivables, bank balances and trade payables
and the amounts are disclosed in notes 28, 29 and 30
respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of reporting period are as follows:

usb EH

The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency expose
should the need arise.

HK$'000
FET TR FET TR

B R EE A B R ()

EERR (48)

RRESR  AEBEUSEEEERE
INGEBEHEN T ECREERABE AR
ZHRN - RITHEHKRRENE SRR HAH
SED BIRHIEE28 ~ 29 & 30 R ©

15 ik

RI|ERR - AEREINETHENEREER

BE¥ERENREERT

Assets Liabilities
BE aE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NE —T/\F Z¥-hF —T)\F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

656,118 362,835 5,980 9,943

EREGEEINERR - WA ERERY
BRSNS RS

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2018: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD.
10% (2018: 10%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10% (2018:
10%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit where RMB
weakening 10% against USD for the both years. For a 10%
strength of RMB against USD, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the balances below
would be negative.

Increase in post-tax profit MR 18R A1 AN
Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD
bank balances, receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the

Group at the end of the reporting period.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and notes receivables, contract assets, other receivables,
consideration receivables, entrusted loan receivable, amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an
associate, short-term bank deposits, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of these
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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BB EE I B R ()

BHmRR (48)

HBZES T
TRHFMEINEAEBURARBE R E LA
B/ B2E10% (ZT—/\F : 10%) BREE -
10% (ZT— )\ : 10%) KR &KREIEEATEE(E4N
[EIEXRAI L HIEMAIEED) - MRESER
FEUINESHER R EEEBIEE - WAERSH
[10% (ZZT—N\5F | 10%) EshH ERIFEH
ROMELBEERFE - U THEBERRAR
W 3 S T R A E B2 B 10% MR T 1455 7)1
hne AR N EITTIHE 10%  BREE ST
EHERERARNTE  MESRIESEEE -

2019 2018
—B-hF —TN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
53,756 29,188

Biet - EBRREAEERREPRAERTTHEZ R E
BIRITEEER R R E N FRIUARRITEE 2B

B -

EE/m bR R B E S
AEENEERRERZRABKESERARLE
B AWEE  HMREUERR - BERE - &
WERTEER - UK B A7) K — a2 RI3E
ERBRRFOR - RHIRTER  EERRTE
FARSRITHESR ©

WoB-NER-F-\FT-A=+-8
AREEH T REE TR EMRTADRR
SRHAEMARE L BAEEAR - AREA
BN ARBHORR AFR 2 FREE -



Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed every year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of IFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based
on provision matrix. In this regard, the Directors of the Group
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2019,
five (2018: five) customers amounting to HK$100,159,000
(2018: HK$83,980,000) comprised approximately 36%
(2018: 42%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These
customers are within the same mobile phone technology
industry and wireless communication modules industry in
the PRC. The management closely monitors the subsequent
settlement of the customers. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

B R EE A B R ()

FEmR R B E TG ()
JEW B 5k

SEEREEERR  AREEEECRIK—
AR HEETEERBREERM - K
MERFELA > AEBERAAEHTRFR
FRHABERPHNEREE - WIREPHEER
SR - EPHNRERN DS FETRE - &
SEDAEEMEERRF - UERBEGHES
HEKZKEEE - o AREREFEE
A FE R BB B 75 3R 5 2 RIS O SRS AR IR TR HAME
EBBEEUETEMN SR BB EERRET
e HUNE - AEBEERR - ~EEWE
SRR AR -

AEBEFEEERBRETHNER  BRERR
ETEP -R-_Z-AF+-A=+—8"
FREZH(ZE-N\F: AR)XRPHHIER
100,159,0007% 7t ( =& — /U £ : 83,980,000
BT - AARKRENRKE SERA36% (=F
—N\F :42%) - ZERPURTEREHKE
BEBEAERIMTERBRBEARRITER - B2
ERTINEREZEEPERZEEER - slit
ME  ARREFRRAEEZEERBRER
RIZE o

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Entrusted loan receivable

As at 31 December 2018, the Group invested into one
entrusted loan agreements (details are set out in note 23).
Under the entrusted loan agreement, the Group provided
funding to the loan borrowers through a licensed bank, which
acted as the trustee. The trustee bank does not bear the credit
risk of the entrusted loan receivable. Before entering into the
agreement, the Group assesses the credit quality of the loan
borrower and defines the terms of the loan. The Group has
concentration of risk on the entrusted loan receivable as the
loan is made to one entrusted loan borrower. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group recognised interest
income of HK$907,000 as other income. In the opinion
of the Directors, the credit risk in respect to the entrusted
loan receivable and related interest receivable has impaired
and allowance for impairment loss has been recognised
accordingly during the year.

Bank balances, short-term bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits

The credit risk on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks/financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by external credit-rating agencies.
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BB EE I B R ()

FEmERR B ETE ()
JEWZFEE

RIB-NF+-_A=+—H TEERERN
—MEFEERGHE (FBHNRME23) - Rig
ZREFBH - AEEEBFRRT(ERAR
FEA)AEFERARTRES - ZFERITLE
AERUZAEREERR - REBFTMZ
WA ERMEERERAZEELERZ 1A
REEREFH - AEER—BRAERERA
REEBUZAENR  AMRZEERMEED
B RBE-_T-\F+-A=1t—HLF
B - NEECHERA B U A 907,000/87T - &
ERR - FHERKETE R &AM EKF S
EERBRDRE  AFACHERRRERE
B o

M7/ - HIRITIEA R EB AR T

MR 5T RERINMEEFRRETRIE
ARFZRTT/ CREE  ARRITERZE
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit rating

RSB EETR
Low risk

(EL

Watch list

BRRE

Doubtful

[}

Loss

B

Write-off

fihsa

Description
L

The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not
have any past-due amounts
RHEHMEHRREE - AR REMBEHTE

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually
settle after due date

EBANCERIBEAEER  HRERIBRRETE
C

There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information developed
internally or external resources or overdue by 180 days
or above
FERRBEBRENDINFEREHNENT SR
RIEBEREM - S 180 BeA £

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired
or overdue by 360 days or more

BRERABEHRERRERH60 B £

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
BREERABRBEARARENHES  MASEIEK
Bl IR B IR Al a2

B R EE A B R ()

FEmR R B E TG ()

AEEHNABEERR

Al

Trade receivables/

contract assets/

finance lease receivables
ERE SRS GHEE/
ERRERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired
BN EER
— T EEERE

Lifetime ECL -

not credit-impaired
EanBBEREESR
—LEEERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

EnBREREEER
—VEEERE
Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
FaBHEREESE
—f=ERE

Amount is written off

SRCEME

ERFEBIEATHE

Other financial assets/
other items

HthemEE HiER

12m ECL

12{EAEHREESR

12m ECL

12ERRBEERR

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

EnBHRREERE
~WEEERE
Lifetime ECL -

credit-impaired
FaBREREEER
—EERE

Amount is written off

SR
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets, contract assets and finance lease
receivables which are subject to ECL assessment:

External Internal
Notes credit rating credit rating

Mt HBERFR  ABERRR

Financial assets at amortised cost

REBERAARNEREE
Bank balances and cash 29 A (Aa3-A3) N/A
RITERERE 29 A (Aa3-A3) iR
B (Baa2-Bal) N/A
B (Baa?-Bal) TER
Short-term bank deposits 29 B (Baa2) N/A
RHROER B (Baa2) TEf
Pledged bank deposits 29 B (Baa2-Baa3) N/A
BERRTER 29 B(Baa2-Baa3) A
Trade receivables 28 N/A (Note b)
— goods and services N (KtzEb)
[ EEES 28 Low risk
—BmRR% ERkR
Watch list
BReE
Doubtful
Il
Loss
BE
Notes receivables 28 A (AL-A3) N/A
S5 28 A (A1-A3) TaA
B (Baa2-Bal) N/A
B (Baa2-Bal) TNEA
Other receivables 23,28 N/A (Note a)
E thpElsiE 23,28 TEH (Miza)
N/A Loss
TEm B
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BB EE I B R ()
FEmERR B ETE ()
TRENAERRETHEBEEBRNENHE
BMEE ANBERERBREBENEER

B

2019 2018
“E-hE ZEN\E
Gross carrying  Gross carrying
12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
AR EHANEREERE REAE REEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr T
12m ECL 385,750 409,625
12EAESEESE
12m ECL 225,964 238,151
12 A BHEEEE
611,714 647,776
12m ECL 296,380 -
REAESEESE
12m ECL 31,226 57,557
12fHREHEEEE
Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 55,768 47,139
EnBSRREEEE- (BEEE)
Lifetime ECL (ot credit impaired) 173,759 94,885
EnBRRREEER (TEESRE)
Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 36,281 43,242
EnBREREEEE (DAEERE)
Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 8,010 13,773
EnBSRREEER (TEESRE)
Cred|t impaired 30,398 24,027
EERE
304,216 223,066
12m ECL 1,828 24,196
12{EREHEEEE
12m ECL 4,805 8,268
REAESEEEE
6,633 32,464
12m ECL 81,940 274,950
2R EHEEEE
Credit impaired 3,615 3,615
FERE

85,555 278,565



Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

External Internal
Notes credit rating credit rating
i NPEEFR  ADEETNR
Amount due from an associate 28 N/A (Note a)
JEl—RE & ARFUR 28 TEf (Mizka)
Amounts due from non-controlling 28 N/A (Note a)
shareholders of subsidiaries TER (MizEa)
B AR SRR RS 28
Consideration receivables 42 N/A (Note a)
FERRE 42 TEA (Mizka)
N/A Loss
T BE
Entrusted loan receivable 23 N/A Loss
FERERER 23 TEA BE
Other items
HARH
Finance lease receivables 19 N/A (Note b)
FEURARE 19 TEf (M&ED)
Contract assets 28 N/A (Note b)
BHEE 28 TiEh (D)
Notes:
a. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group

uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition.

B R EE A B R ()

FEmR R B E TG ()

2019 2018
“E-NF —2-)\F
Gross carrying  Gross carrying
12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
LEASEDEREDEERE RESE REEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx TR
12m ECL - 4,400
12EREHEEEE
12m ECL 4,496 4,49
12fHABHEEFE
12m ECL 5,900 9,397
12EREHEEEE
Lifetime ECL (credit impaired) 2,456 2,456
EnASRREEER (TEEERE)
8,356 11,853
Credit impaired 34,601 34,260
RERE
Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 357 760
EaBSRREEER (REER)
Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 11,201 36,353
EnBSRREEEE (REER)
iz

a. BRABEERRERNS - AEEERQHER

AHEEERR BT HRIE R REEM

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes: (continued)

a. (continued)

2019

Other receivables

Consideration receivables

Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

2018

Other receivables

Consideration receivables
Amount due from an associate
Amounts due from non-controlling

shareholders of subsidiaries

JREUSEL At BR 3R

MR E

e P A R
FERRRR R SRR

JRE ML A BR K

FEU KB

JE K — g & A A

RSPt S 2 F)
FEHERRAR R FRIA

b. For trade receivables, finance lease receivables and contract

assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9

to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors

with significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the

Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by

using a provision matrix, grouped by past-due status.
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o
TA

T

B R EER B EEEE (R)

FEmERR B ETE ()

Bt < (&)

()
S
Past due Not past due Total
B b B
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FAERT FAERT
3,615 81,940 85,555
2,456 5,900 8,356
- 4,496 4,496
—T-NF
Past due Not past due Total
B fig ekt “@Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
3,615 274,950 278,565
2,456 9,397 11,853
- 4,400 4,400
- 4,496 4,496

HRERESES BAREEERANEEM
5 ARERRBEEM SRS ERF IR
ARt BEmARERERERNERER - KA
BEAREEERIERRENETAN » K&
ERABZRAMRR D AR B EHEMEEZERE
MIREIERER -



Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes: (continued)

b.

(continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses
debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment for its customers
because these customers consist of a large number of
small customers with common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts
due in accordance with the contractual terms. The following
table provides information about the exposure to credit risk
for trade receivables and contract assets which are assessed
based on provision matrix as at 31 December 2019 within
lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors with significant
outstanding balances or credit impaired with gross carrying
amounts of HK$194,169,000 and HK$27,069,000
(2018:HK$151,900,000 and HK$24,027,000) respectively as
at 31 December 2019 were assessed individually.

B R EE A B R ()

FEmR R B E TG ()

Bz - ()

(%)

ERAKEEERBRERN—BD - AKEER
BB AR RRFEERFAORE  TENZE
BEPBEFEZAEERARREH/NER » KK
BEPRIEA OGEF N PTA B AN -
TREHREBEBUKEZEARAGNEEREFER
BREER  ZEZRUBEZEFRE-_ZT—NF
ToA=+—BA&RBHRRBEEBER(LEE
ERME) AR B BB TRE - AREDHR
“E-NF+ A=+ BAEAERREESR
a5 BEURE R 418 9 Al & 194,169,000 78 7T &
27,069,000 7T (=& —/\4 : 151,900,000 7T
%.24,027,000 77T ) BORT AHETTERIRFE

Gross carrying amount BREAE
2019
—2-NF

Average Trade Contract Finance
loss rate receivables assets lease receivables
=l kS FEWE SRR BHEE EYRERE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FTAET
Current (not past due) BER (R0 HR) 47,481 11,201 357
1-60 days past due HHI1 E60K 0.1% 2,735 - -
61-180 days past due #HI61 = 180K 2.01% 4,760 - -
181-365 days past due #HI 181 2365k 25.95% 792 - -
55,768 11,201 357
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

b.

B R EER B EEEE (R)

FEmERR B ETE ()

(continued) b. (%)
Gross carrying amount (continued) BREAE (H)
2018
=T )\&F

Average Trade Contract Finance
loss rate receivables assets lease receivables
FHEEE R E SRR BHEE EhmERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
Current (not past due) BNER (R EH) 35,470 36,353 760
1-60 days past due #HI1 Z 60K 0.1% 4,079 = =
61-180 days past due #HI61 = 180K 2.1% 5,515 = =
181-365 days past due #Hi 181 2365k 18.8% 2,075 = =
47,139 36,353 760

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
reversed HK$280,000 (2018: HK$527,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables, based on the provision matrix.
Impairment allowance of HK$679,000 and HK$4,398,000
(2018: impairment allowance of HK$1,608,000 and reversal
of impairment allowance of HK$2,179,000) were made on
debtors with significant balances and credit impaired debtors
respectively.
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EETBEXREEB AR FHANELBEEZ
HRfEE WRBALE U BRKALE SR
ESOMEEEHEHRE - ERES T HEN
DM ARERE B EEBANBERERRSE
e

HE_Z-NAFT-A=T—HLEFE &%
58] AR 5% 13 148 R P 3t P M B 5 BR R 8% [ JRh (B B 4
280,000 7T (=% —/\4 : 527,000%7T) + A5
AR BAREHNERRRREERERKERD
B 4F R 18 B¢ 679,000 % 7T K 4,398,0005% 7T
ZZT—)\F : FEEMRE 1,608,000 % 7T KR E
f##E 2,179,000/ ) °



Financial risk management objectives and policies BIEEMREERN B ZEEEK (&)
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) BRI E G ()
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TR ERBEE LR ERE 5 RN L TE
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the RO EmBERTEEESIE 2 #E) -

simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit impaired) (credit impaired) Total
EnEHES EnEHES
FEEE FEFE
(TREERE) (EBHE) “st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET T
As at 1 January 2018 R-ZE-—N\E—F—H 4,000 22,455 26,455
Changes due to financial instruments R=Z—/\&—F—R#ER
recognised as at 1 January 2018: ME T EmBE
— Transfer to credit impaired -BEREEEFR (1,395) 1,395 =
~ Impairment losses recognised -BRERRESE 75 3,309 3,384
— Impairment losses reversed - BERRESE (2,031) (5,982) (8,013)
New financial assets originated RN emEE 3,037 494 3,531
Exchange adjustments i 5 % (193) (1,133) (1,326)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—-\E+=-A=1—H 3,493 20,538 24,031
Changes due to financial instruments RZZ-NE—A—A%&R
recognised as at 1 January 2019: e R T BfEE
— Transfer from credit impaired —-BERAEERE 2,563 (2,563) -
— Transfer to credit impaired -ERZEERE (783) 783 -
— Impairment losses recognised —-BEERREEE 67 14,718 14,785
— Impairment losses reversed -BELRESE (5,112) (8,224) (13,336)
New financial assets originated MEMSREE 3,348 - 3,348
Exchange adjustments TN (70) (371) (441)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-hF+-F=1—H 3,506 24,881 28,387
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs
earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been written
off is subject to enforcement activities.

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for entrusted loan receivable.

As at 1 January 2018 pr—
Changes due to financial instruments pr =S

recognised as at 1 January 2018: ok
— Impairment losses recognised (Note 23) —B#
As at 31 December 2018 pr—
Changes due to financial instruments pr .=

recognised as at 1 January 2019: ok
— Impairment losses recognised (Note 23) — B
As at 31 December 2019 R-=

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

B R EER B EEEE (R)

FEmERR B ETE ()

BEEMBETEBAGREV RS XY EE
ARAT U R - RIS SR B O R R B R
R EBAETEERCETRERFH
(ABRFEERE) - CHMBHEKE S RHE
AR FINEHAITES ©

TRETIC B RURE T E I R B R

12 HhR -
Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)
EmBHEREERSE
(EERHE)
HK$’000
FAT
—\F—H—H -
—N\FE—A—B#ER
BT BRI E :
R EEE (FEE23) 8,314
—N\F+=—_A=+—H 8,314
—NE—A—B#ER
BT AFEEE) -
R EEE (i 23) 26,287
—NWF+=—A=+—H 34,601




Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for other receivables (Note 28).

B R EE A B R ()

FEmR R B E TG ()

TRETI L HE (o FEURRIRLE D FER ) 1R
2 $ifk (PR 28) -

Lifetime ECL

(credit impaired)

+aBAREREEER

(EERE)

HK$’000

FAT

As at 1 January 2018 R=F—\F—H—H =
Changes due to financial instruments RZE—N\F—-H—-H#®R

recognised as at 1 January 2018: M&ah T EFrEEs) :

— Impairment losses recognised —BEERREEE 2,708

New financial assets originated M eREE 907
As at 31 December 2018 and 2019 RZZ-—NFRZZE—NF

+=ZA=+—H 3,615

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for consideration receivables.

TR BRREEHERNEREEZ
K

Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)
SmAMEREEEE

(EERE)

HK$’000

FET

As at 1 January 2018 RZZE—-\F—H—H -

Changes due to financial instruments R_ZE—N\F—H—B#ER

recognised as at 1 January 2018: e Rt T EFTEUEE) :

— Impairment losses recognised (Note 42) — B ERREEE (M 42) 2,456
As at 31 December 2018 and 2019 RIEBE—\R=-_ZE—IF

+=ZA=+—H 2,456

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
bank borrowings amounted to HK$77,936,000 (2018:
HK$83,887,000). All such bank borrowings included a
repayment on demand clause exercisable at any time by
the relevant banks and are classified as current liabilities. In
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements, the aggregate principal and interest cash
outflows amount to HK$77,957,000 (2018: HK$84,012,000).
However, should the relevant banks exercise their rights to
demand immediate repayment, the principal amounts of
these bank borrowings amounting to HK$77,957,000 (2018:
HK$83,887,000) will be repayable on demand. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the Directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.

The Directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of bank
borrowings as discussed above and the short-term liabilities
which are required to be repaid within three months from the
end of the reporting period. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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BB EE I B R ()

REELTmEE

ERRPDECRARTH  AEESERNER
Re kRS EFEREREERER /T RHAIK
FoARNAKEZEMS  URERSRE
KB HE BEEESEERTEEZER
VAREIR T & BREL5E ©

R-_ZE—h&E+-_F=+—8 HI7HEE
Y BR T B 77,936,000/ T ( & — N\ F:
83,887,000/ ) - FTA RITIEEHIE B RTT
ATRMERI R TE IR ZSRER G Bmo
HARBARE RIFEEHZTEEBDE -
N MFBIEE M8 &77,957,000% T

—Z— )\ 4 :84,012,000/87T) ° LA
BRBRITITEEFERAEER  ZFRT
BE 2 AREF77,957,0008 T (- — \4F :
83,887,000/ 7T ) #57BR B EHEE - ZEE|
REBRYFEMRR  RRAREERBRITIK
AT REI T A BB R AR (EE -

ZRIAEBEAER RHRANRRES R (BYE
EXFrEmERITEEERKELFR RS S
RE=EAREERNEIER) 218  EFR
ARBETRARER - AEBBBREERE
HEERRSR YR EERA ENDIH
BEEAEREENGHR KMERRBES
[



Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

B R EE A B R ()

REEZEE (F)

TR AEESBRABENBRTAOIEA -
ZRIBBEAKEAEAXNNEEAMZE
REENAUWRRSRERN - ABMS - M
TREBRERGERORITER - TRiRITEE
TREENNEE RN HHARRFEE
M ERE - RMIFTESRBENZIHAR
MNHIEER B BME

Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average  or less than 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month ~ 1-3 months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 2019
R2019%
Bk AUFRSRE  12A31H
METH= SR1ER 1237 3fEAZLE 185% 2% pd i
% HKS" 000 HKS" 000 HK$" 000 HKS$" 000 HKS" 000 HKS" 000
% ThL T T TER TiEn Tin

2019 “E-NE
Trade and note payables EREFEIREE = 224322 - - - 224322 224322
Other payables and accruals ARSI REER = 45,347 - - - 45347 45,347
Bank borrowings RIS 003 77957 - - - 77957 77936
Lease liabilities &Rk 503 792 1,586 423 2972 9,582 9,184
348,418 1,586 4232 2972 357,208 356,789
Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average  orless than 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month ~ 1-3 months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 2019
R2019%
Bk AERREE 12318
METH= PR1{ER 1238 3EAZLE 185% 2% pd i
% HKS$" 000 HKS$" 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS" 000 HKS$" 000
% T TR TR TER TiEn Thr

2018 2\
Trade and note payables ERBSERNEE - 184,822 - - = 184,822 184 822
Other payables and accruals EENET R ESER - 40,99 - - - 40,996 40,99
Bank borrowings BEE 339 84,012 - - = 84,012 83,887
309,830 = - - 309,830 309,705
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
its certain other receivables and bank borrowings (2018:
entrusted loan receivable, certain other receivables and bank
borrowings).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
(2018: variable-rate bank balances).

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management closely
monitors its exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of
change on market interest rate and will consider hedging
changes in market interest rates should the need arise. A
100 basis points (2018: 100 basis points) change represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a result
of the change of market interest rate is insignificant and thus
variable-rate bank balances are not included in the sensitivity
analysis.
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BB EE I B R ()

FIEEE
REEATERERBREERLE T H bR

R RIBTEEER(ZE— N\ mRER
B BT R RIRITEE) -

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H AKEZEE
RITHEER (ZF—\F  FERITER) AXR
{ﬁ//wﬂzﬁwﬁ °

AR ERE L ER SRR LR - AT
EEERTEL AR ERBTAE 2 FK
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2B E) o 100fEEE (=T —/\F : 1001EHE%)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Price risk

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group is exposed to
other price risk through its listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL and FVTOCI. The Group also invested in certain
unguoted equity securities for long term strategic purposes
which had been designated as FVTOCI.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. If the price of the respective investment in listed
equity securities measured at FVTOCI had been 10% higher/
lower, assuming all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s other comprehensive income (net of tax) for the
year ended 31 December 2019 would increase/decrease
by HK$50,000 (2018: HK$2,898,000). If the prices of the
respective investment in listed equity securities measured at
FVTPL had been 10% (2018: 10%) higher/lower, assuming
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s the post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 would increase/
decrease by HK$1,880,000 (2018: HK$1,526,000).

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

The Group’s equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial
assets and FVTPL are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value, the Group
uses market observable data to the extent it is available.

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The
chief financial officer of the Group works closely with the
qualified external valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The chief financial officer
reports the findings to the board of directors of the Company
at the end of the reporting period to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value.

B R EE A B R ()

EE R
RZE—NER=ZT-N\FE+ZA=+—8"
AEEREZRAFEFABSRIEAFE;A
Hih 2K E 2 EMRAES M4
BRAR AEETAREREEENREST
EIRERAFS  HEREARATFENAR
fh 2 TRES o

BEZ ST

N2 G E DT o AR IR SRS B R AT I 2 AR
NERBEBRET - MRAIRAFEFALMEE
Watrt ez EMBRAELFHNRBIRENER L
O TRER10% @ MA@ SuFT~E - K
EEBRE_T-AFE+-_A=1T—HBILFEH
H b2 mEUEs (BrEIE) 1518005 4> 50,000 7%
(= — \£ : 2,898,000/ 7T) ° MWD
FEF AR E 2 ERAEENERIEE
WER LT T 10% (ZF—)\F : 10%) -
MREETA KB EERTE  AEBHES
T—hE+ - A=+—B It FENBRHEET
15 3% 00 F 4> 1,880,000 7T ( — & — )\ 4F :
1,526,000/87T) °

SMTAZATHEIE
AR ERHERARRNAETTASBEE
ATEZER -

RMBEHEMS - AEERNRAFEFT ARM
2HKEOBA TAREAFHEF ABRNE
BEERATEE - REFTATER - £%
E R AR TIE A BESE

WEZESE LB ARE  AREZES
=T ABERMMEMETRHE - AEEMBEE
FHEINESERGEMBERSEARLAER
ERGREA 2B ABUE - MRS HRE
RAXRRIEZSERIEAER - UHBARF
BEREZRA -
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

BB EE I B R ()

FEBHERERR AT EH B EHEE
AFHE

AEBHHSMAEDR EREMREATE
HE - TREUETRSLRAEATEZS
EERAFER 2 HERTREARE) + )
RBEATETERABRE 2 TRERERA
FEHESEZ AT ERBER(—E=R) 2
AR -

Significant Relationship of
unobservable  unobservable inputs
Fair value s Valuation technique(s) inputs to fair value
Fair value at hierarchy  and key input(s) EXTUER  FURERARE
RUATREZATE AYERE (ERORIEBARE BAHE RAVENRE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
“E-hE —2-)\&
toAzt-R  +2f=t-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T
Financial assets
SHEE
1. Equity instruments at FVTOCI - 38,646 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active markets. NA NA
- listed equity security
BATES AL 2 Ela 2 RATE - E-EEMGTHE 0yl AR
- FiAEs
2. Equity instruments at FVTOCI 669 503 Level 3 Market approach - in this approach, PB multiple An increase in the
- unlisted equity security price to book value (PB multiple) ofagroupof  adjusted net assets,
adjusted with discount for lack of comparable holding all other
marketability was adopted for the  companies in the variables constant
valuation of the ownership of the market inthe  would increase the
investee base on PB multiple of agroup  similar business carrying amount.
of comparable companies in the market
in the similar business.
BATE AL 2 Ela 2 RATE SR TEA-EZNEY RETELA  mHELERS fafEEME 2
— ¥ LiRAES SR EBOAL A AN HEESE BGRe  REFE ERE
R (TRE)  HRRENDNEE AHARMTERE BESAAN
[HER AR ERRETR LR BEEGEMN
BHHEE «
3. Financial assets at FVTPL 22,512 18,278 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active markets. N/A N/A
- listed equity security
BATEAER 2 REE SR EREMETRE 0l oyl
- FiAEs
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Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

SMTAZATFENE ()
FEBHEERERR AT EH B EHEE
AF1E (&)

E=RATFES B LHE

Equity instruments

at FVTOCI

BAFERA

Hiv =AMk

ZRATE

HK$’000

FAT

As at 1 January 2018 R=F—\F—H—H =
Total loss in other comprehensive income Hib2miiss 2 EiEess (2,923)
Purchases BE 3,426
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\EFE+=-A=1+—8H 503
Total gain in other comprehensive income Hip2mkasz Wesia58 166
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hF+=-_A=+—H 669

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of
HK$166,000 gain (2018: HK$2,923,000 loss) relating to
unlisted equity securities classified as equity instruments at
FVTOCI held at the end of the current reporting period and is
reported as changes of “assets revaluation reserve”.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.

H fih 2 H W 25 B HE5 166,00078 7T 2 W (—F
— )\ : 29230008 T2 EE) - i kHkA
RNAHERMRBFERAFEAEARLMEE
W RATAZBRARS:  YE2HR/[EE
EffhEE] <28 -

FEFUFZEEREE L FEGEBZETHE
EREZHMEEZAFE

AEEEREERBRRRASRENN - Bt
NEBHERAEZEREERERBEZRF
B

AEBERERR » RERA MBI R AR H

KRAN Rz EMEER SR BB RAEEE
NFHEMEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BAMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE=—F-NFH=A=+-BLFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

46.

FENBARZFE

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

“E-nE

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up

incorporation/ share capital/

registration registered capital
Name of subsidiary HRAYL /R ERTRAR
WEAREE REREE A/ ERER
SIM Technaology Group (BVI) 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares

Limited British Virgin Islands USD12,233
(BvI") LRR12233%ET

ZTEMETAT=A

EBRAES
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares
REETISXERAA Samoa USD2,002

“MANETZATER  HER2000ET

BEDHS
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom? 9 November 1993 Registered capital
LERERER’ The PRC RMB200,000,000

—hAZET-ANR AR

il AR 2000000007
Shanghai Simcom? 5 December 2002 Registered capital
LERER? The PRC USD5,000,000

“TE-FT-ARA AR

i 5,000000% 7
Shanghai Suncom Logistics Limited! 23 September 2003 Registered capital
LEBRIRETARAR! The PRC USD400,000

S ey = 3 -V

e 400000% T
Simcom International Holdings 2 October 2003 Ordinary share USD1

Limited” BVI LER1ET
ZEESETACA
EBRAES

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

5

AN

A—
N —

—NERZZE-N\FE+-A=F+—AFK

REIZMBRRFBENAT

Proportion of nominal value of

share capital/ registered capital

held by the Company

KDAMERAER/ ERER LA
Directly Indirectly
BR £

2018 2019 2018
-\ ZE-AE 3\

100% - =

- 100% 100%

- 100% 100%

- 100% 100%

= 100% 100%

= - 100%

Principal activities

IEER

Investment holding

RARR

Investment holding

RESR

Manufacturing and Handsets and
|OT terminals business in the PRC and
Property management
ERELEFRRIBELAER
RFREER

Design and development of Handsets
and |0 terminals business and
Electronics manufacturing services
business in the PRC

BN SR RARF R RIEE
PR B RETRERBILES
%

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group's products and
provides logistics services in the PRC

PERE 6 HEREERSE
EmRREEDRRS

Investment holding



46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRE SRR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2019

—E-NFE+=A=+—HILFE

46. TEMB R A 215 (&)

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered capital
Narme of subsidiary AL/ ER BRIRMR
WEAR AR RERES R4 /RER
Suncom International Holdings 12 January 2004 Ordinary share USDL
Limited BYI LRR1%T
ZTEME-ATZH
ARERHS
SIM Technology HK Limited 21 April 2004 Ordinary share HK$1
RABHESERAR Hong Kong LARIAT
“EEMENA=+-A
B
Shanghai Speedcomm Technology 16 November 2005 Registered capital
Limited" The PRC RMB7,500,000
DERUGEIRIERAR —EEREt-AtiE AL
t ARE7 500,000
Max Vision Limited 17 September 2003 Ordinary shares HK$2
ARERAT Hong Kong LEk2ET
ZEEENATHR
&
Max Vision (Shanghai) Limited” 8 December 2003 Registered capital
BERET (L8)ARAR The PRC 1SD200,000
ZEESETCANA AR
w 200,000%7T
Shanghai SIM Technology Limited" 2 August 2006 Registered capital
bR (L) BRAR! The PRC RMBA40,000,000
“ERENAZR AR
i AR 40,000,000

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
FAAFERATE/EREAZILA
Directly Indirectly
B ]
2019 2018 2019 2018

S e

Principal activities

IZER

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
REAR

- - 100% 100%  Provision of administrative services in
Hong Kong
EABREORRS

- - 100% 100% Design and development of Handsets
and [0T terminals business and
Electronics manufacturing services
business in the PRC
BRI SR RREF RS
RERBRET RERGHERRE

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERR

- - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group’s products
and provides logistics services in the
PRC

EPERE e HEREEALE
EmRREDRRS

- - 100% 100% * Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC and property management
TERE TR RARR IR
e

RABMEEBERAR — T NFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#RE M SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

s NF+-A=t+—HALFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

46. TEME DT 2= 1F (#)

Name of subsidiary

HEAFER

Shenyang SIM Technology Limited®
FRER L5 BRAF?

Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited
(HSYREH)Z
RAEE(15)ERAR’

Shenyang SIM Simcom*
IERASER

Shenzhen Simcom Technology
Limited®
MIERERRERAT

Simeom Holdings HK Limited
EAERESGRAA

Shanghai iLove Limited”
PEERERENERAR!

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
SR/ R
AR

25 October 2007

The PRC
ZERYETACTEA
e

8 November 2007

The PRC
BRLEH-AR
e

24 July 2008

The PRC
“$3/FLAT AR
Gl

28 August 2008

The PRC
ZRE\ENAZTN\R
W

22 September 2008
Hong Kong
“EE\ENACTZA
&

21 February 2009

The PRC
“ETNE-A-t4A
el
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Issued and fully paid up
share capitall

registered capital
BETRAR

R4/ ER

Registered capital
USD10,000,000

iHiER
10,000,000 7

Registered capital
USD5,500,000

&R
550000057

Registered capital
RMB30,000,000

Rt
ARE30,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB5,000,000

iHiER
AR5,0000007C

Ordinary share
HKS1
TER AT

Registered capital
USD3,000,000

&R
3,000000%7

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
AARFRRATE EREAZILA
Directly Indirectly
BR [ f3
2019 2018 2019 2018

= S S T

- - 100% 100%

- = 60% 60%

- = 100% 100%

- - 100% 100%

- - 100% 100%

- - 100% 100%

Principal activities

IEER

Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC and property management
PR D RRE REBRRNZ

HEER

Properties development in PRC

EREUENRER

Design and development of handsets and
Electronics manufacturing services
business in the PRC

RPN SR RRETRRE TR
S

Design and development of Electronics
manufacturing services business
inthe PRC

PR R RREE T RER
R

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RESR



46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRE SRR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2019

—E-AFT=A=t—HILFE

46. TEMB R A 215 (&)

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
Narme of subsidiary AL/ ER
HEARER RHRE
Shanghai Xinkang Electronic 5 January 2009
Technology Limited* The PRC
PESRRTHIERAT  “TIAF-AEA
GG
Goldsey Limited 31 January 2008
BtARAR Hong Kong
ZER\F-A=1-H
(o
Smartwireless Technology Limited* 13 February 2007
TREARERERRAR  ThePRC
“ERE-AT=H
el
Shanghai Mobile Phone Public 21 December 2009
Testing Platform Co., Ltd.* The PRC
EEFHBHALRETERR  —SEAFTZA=t-H
G e
Taizhou SIM Real Estate Limited® 7 March 2013
FMRABRARAR’ The PRC
“E-=5=RtR
Giléi
Jiangsu Chenri Investment Limited* 24 April 2013
THRARAERAR! The PRC
ZE-ZEMAZTRA
el

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BETRAR

R4 /RER

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000
HiER
AR 20,000,007

Ordinary shares
HK$18,000,000
L3/ 18,000,00077

Registered capital
RMB20,500,000
AR
AR 20,500,000

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000

iR
ARE20,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000
AR
AR 20,000,007

Registered capital
RMB50,000,000

iER
ARE50,000,0007

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
FAAFERATE/EREAZILA
Directly Indirectly
B ]
2019 2018 2019 2018

S e

Principal activities

IZER

- - 100% 100%  Design and development of Electronics
manufacturing services business
inthe PRC

PR SR AL TRERY
HERRE

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
REAR

- - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
and 10T terminals business in the PRC
ISEERP GRS V)l
B3

87.5% 87.5%  Design and development of Handsets

and 10T terminals business in the PRC
N EERPEEET IS
5%

- - 100% 100%  Properties development in the PRC
Il EnEER

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERR

RABMEEBERAR — T NFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
7 R B R

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HIEFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

46. TEME DT 2= 1F (#)

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
SR/ R
AR

Name of subsidiary

HEAFER

Jiangsu Yunmao Internet of Things 7 June 2013

—E-—E+A-tRA
EEGHE

DA

Technology Limited* The PRC
THERNBENEERAD!
e
Shanghai Wide-Top Financial
Leasing Co., Ltd.! The PRC
LERRRARERRAR!
el
Alpha Apex Limited
Samoa
Shanghai Yunhao Trading Limited* 28 August 2014
LEERESERAR! The PRC
el
Shanghai Yunmao 0T Limited*
LEZEMBENEERAA  ThePRC
el
Shenyang Zhonghong Intel-Tech
Limited* The PRC

ABRLEEMRERAR
HE

“$-HifA

17 July 2013

Z3-=EtATtR

26 October 2012

11 October 2014

28 October 2014

“E-mELATAR

Issued and fully paid up
share capitall

registered capital
BETRAR

R4/ ER

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

iHiER
AR¥10,000,0007C

Registered capital
USD17,000,000

&R
17,000,000

Registered capital
uso1
HER1ET

Registered capital
RMB38,500,000
&R
AR 38,500,000

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

&R
AR10,0000007

Registered capital
RMB30,000,000

Rl
ARE30,000,0007

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
AARFRRATE EREAZILA
Directly Indirectly
BR [ f3

2019 2018 2019
“E-0F T\ ZE-AE %

- - 100%

- - 100%

- = 100%

- - 98.7%

- = 100%

- = 100%

2018
-)\§

100%

100%

100%

98.7%

100%

100%

Principal activities

IEER

Development of internet of things system
and online-to-offline equipment in the
PRC

EPERINERZIRESRE

Finance lease service in the PRC

EhERIRATRERS

Investment holding

RARR

Procurement and trading of snacks in the
PRC

EhEUETREERES

Trading of snacks in the PRC
EEftETRES

Development of internet of things system
and online-to-offline equipment in the
PRC

EPEREIRRZIREERE



46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRE SRR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2019

—E-AFT=A=t—HILFE

46. TEMB R A 215 (&)

Name of subsidiary

i) PG

Shanghai Simcom System Limited

FERENARER(LE)
ARAR!

Guandong Chentuo Robot
Technology Co., Limited*
BRRARSEARZERAA

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
SR/ R
RERES

17 March 2014

The PRC
“E-MEZA++A
HE

11 March 2015

The PRC
“E-1%=A1-H
HE

Shenyang Jingxingcheng Automation 24 August 2015

Technology Co., Limited?®
IEREHAE DI RNERAA?

Hefei Yunhao Trade Co., Limited®
SRERESERAT

Hangzhou Yunyou Trade Co.,
Limited
WHNEEBSERAR!

Shenzhen Yunding Vending
Operators Co., Limited*

MIMELEHEERELHR
27!

The PRC
“F-RENAZHER
E

19 December 2014

The PRC
ZE-WEFZATAR
GG

3 November 2015

The PRC
ZE-RET-A=H
e

16 January 2015

The PRC
Z2-1E-ATA
hE

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BECE I

R/ HRER

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000
AR
AR 20,000,007

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000
HHER
AR 10,000,007
Registered capital
RMB10,000,000
a2y
ARE10,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB1,500,000
AR
AR 15000007

Registered capital
RMB2,000,000

iR
AR2,0000007

Registered capital
RMB7,000,000

ER
ARE7,000,0007

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/ registered capital
held by the Company
ARAFERATE/EREAZLA
Directly Indirectly
B ]
2019 2018 2019 2018

S e

Principal activities

IZER

- - 100% 100%  Building design and construction of
smart home in the PRC
AR RRERI R

- - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC

EERRARIRRE

- - 60% 60%  Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
ERERE RS RARE

- - - 51% Trading of snacks in the PRC
EEtsTRES

- - 100% 100%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
EREFEERES

- - 70% 70% Trading of snacks in the PRC
EREEZRES

RABMEEBERAR — T NFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#RE M SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

—ZT— BIEFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

46. TEME DT 2= 1F (#)

Proportion of nominal value of

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital FARFERAEE/ SRER LA
Name of subsidiary HRRL/E BECE Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEAR AR RERMH A/ ERER E# B IEEH
2019 2018 2019 2018
Z2-nF C2-\F ZB-nF R
Shanghai Bachen Intelligent 14 Qctober 2015 Registered capital - = 100% 100% Trading of snacks in the PRC
Technology Co,, Limitedt The PRC RMB5,500,000 EHENETRES
HEERERRTERAR! ZT-RETATRE EfEA
HE AR 55000007
Shanghai Jizhi Automation 29 September 2014 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of internet of things system
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC RMB20,000,000 and online-fo-offline equipment in the
LREERBIMEERAR —F-BEAAZTAR AR PRC
e AR 20,0000007C EPERIERRZIRESRE
Shanghai Pami Intelligent 14 March 2016 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited The PRC RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
LEEREERRRRAA ZENEZRTER O EER ERERE BRI
T ARE10,000,0007
Guangdong Chengshida Automation 21 April 2016 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
Technology Co., Limited* The PRC RMB10,000,000 equipment in the PRC
ERREZEBIARARLA —F-AEFRA-T-H &L ErERZEDLRERE
T ARE10,000,0007
Wuhan Yunbang Supply Chain 30 June 2016 Registered capital - = - 100%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co,, Limite? The PRC RMB2,000,000 AHERETRE
RESMEREEERAG —F~ErAZTR #ftER
H AR¥ 2,000,007
Ningbo Yunjing Supply Chain 24 June 2016 Registered capital - = 51% 51%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co., Limited* The PRC RMB2,000,000 ErEREERES
ERESMEREEERAD 35 ACTEA  RER
H AR 2,000,007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T—NE+-A=t—HIEE
46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. T EM B D F ZF1E (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)
Proportion of nominal value of
Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capital/ registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital AARFERAEE/ SRER 2 LA
Name of subsidiary HRAYL /R EETRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEARER AERLH R/ HHER =43 B TTER

2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-AF 3\ ZE-RE ZT)\F

Fujiansheng Yunxiang Supply Chain 3 August 2016 Registered capital - = 100% 100%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
Management Co,, Limited* ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 ErEitETRE5
RRAZAMREERARAA 3N EN\A=R HER
e AR10,000,0007
Kongtop Industrial (Shenzhen) 25 December 2003 Registered capital - = 100% - Design and development of handsets and
Co., Limited® “EE=F+-A-THA  USD3,000,000 0T terminals business in the PRC
FREX (R BRAR® AR KPR R AR A
3,000,000%7T B
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L Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE") registered in the

PRC.
2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC.
9 Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC.
4 Domestic Company registered in the PRC.
g The Company was de-registered at 5 November 2019.
o The Company was de-registered at 11 December 2019.
U The Company was de-registered at 19 November 2019.
3 The Company was acquired at 3 April 2019.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Handsets and
|IOT terminals business, Electronics manufacturing services
business, 10T system and 020 business, Intelligent
manufacturing business, Property development and Property
Management. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

Principal place of

Principal activities of business
FEXK TEEEME
Handset and 10T terminals business PRC

FHE B ek A AR TS R
Electronics manufacturing services business PRC

B RERGHERER H

|0T system and 020 business PRC

B AR R B 2T R
Intelligent manufacturing business PRC
BRALEET i
Property development PRC
MEERE hE
Property management PRC
MEREEIE R

240 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

! FEHEEMZIIEBEDRE -

2 EHEFEMzHIIaEDRE -

3 BERENETEEM NI BERE

4 EHEFEMz2RERE -

s ZRARRZE—NF+—ARRBUKREM -

e ZRRRZE—AF+=A+—REUHRM
7 ZRARRZE—NAF+— AT NRBUHREM
8 ZARRZE—LFMA = RIS -

I EAEAAT P B R B AR F R AEF E R
i A (R A B E S

ZEMBRRIARBAONZHE FHE I AR
mER  BETRERBHERER  WHBHAER
FIIBEFET DRSS MEZEREY
¥HEEE - ZEWMB R ZEBESH5Im
T:

Number of subsidiaries

MEARHE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
7 8
1 2
8 11
7 7
2 2
4 8




The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TREHAER Eﬁ@%ﬁﬁij@ﬁ Mg 2

subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling 2 EWBR A
interests:

Place of Proportion of

incorporation ownership interests Profit (loss)

and principal and voting rights held by allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests controlling interests

FERESME PEEFERESZ
WEAR AR IRRIREEEENS FRRRERREELA &H (8) it FERES
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

ZE-AE —3-\E “E-AE —3-\E ZE-AE “3-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tén i Tén T
SYRE PRC 40% 40% 5,041 (18,122) 13,564 53,942
BHE% e
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests 4,766 9,463
A ERER  BAITEANEAR
18,330 63,405
Summarised financial information for the years ended AEEREEAFERESZHBARRES
31 December 2019 and 2018 in respect of the Group’s —E-NEERZE-NF+-A=t+—HLF
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is EZMEERBEIT o TXATEzHEER
set out below. The summarised financial information below BMETARELEBRNARIFEH -

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total equity

Revenue
Expenses
Income tax refund

Profit (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive expense
for the year

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive expense
for the year attributable to
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Other comprehensive expense
for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year attributable to
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net cash (outflow) inflow

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

FRBEE
mMBEE
FRBAE
mBAE

REIPTSH

AER N (E518R)
AEFEEMPEF S

AEEEEYE (FRx) B8

TR IBREEARF RN (B1R)

-RABEERZHEEA
- RREZE 2 IR s

AERRF (B51R)
T & IR A A
2EME
CBHEBEIHAA

- BAEEZ IR
AR RERS
OSBRI EERE
W2k (BI% ) MR
_BAEEEAA

- BHEE IR

AEE2EEEWE (FX)

REFBABHSRANFE
BMEEBAERSRHFE

Be ORb) RAFHE

SYRE

RAEH

2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THIT
15,797 80
23,410 143,385
(41) -
(5,256) (8,610)
33,910 134,855
7,610 186,123
(7,660) (238,445)
12,653 7,017
12,603 (45,305)
(284) (7,439)
12,319 (52,744)
7,562 (27,183)
5,041 (18,122)
12,603 (45,305)
(170) (4,463)
(114) (2,976)
(284) (7,439)
7,392 (31,646)
4,927 (21,098)
12,319 (52,744)
15,248 51,494
(62,368) =
(47,120) 51,494




Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables

Bank balances

Financial assets at FVTPL

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

Net current (liabilities) assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
R—REMNBRRZRE
JE W B8 A R IR

RBEE

H Aty FE YRR

RITHEER
BAVEFABGZSRMEE

REAE
AN IEPNCIE/
H b R RRR N R SRR

wE (B EEFR
HEERRBAE

BAXR#E
[LEN
G

S

2019 2018

—2-hF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THT
179,803 179,803
1,250,048 1,262,621
1,429,851 1,442,424
519 2,418

859 23,780
22,512 18,278
23,890 44,476
31,751 11,806
1,866 1,239
33,617 13,045
(9,727) 31,431
1,420,124 1,473,855
243,072 252,025
1,177,052 1,221,830
1,420,124 1,473,855

RANMREBRERAR — T JLFFH
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Movement in the Company’s reserves

At 1 January 2018 RZE-\§-A-H
Profit and total comprehensive A& 55|

income for the year FENEER
Dividend paid ERRE

Share options lapsed RN
Repurchase of ordinary shares  FEEI&&E

At 31 December 2018 RZE—\F

+=A=1+-8

Loss and total comprehensive AEEEERZE

income for the year W%
Dividend paid EffRE

Share options lapsed BREXY
Repurchase of ordinary shares BB Z&f%

At 31 December 2019 W-ZE-n&F
+-A=1+-H

The outbreak of COVID-19 has become a pandemic.

AATEEEE

Capital Share (Accumulated

Share redemption option Special  loss)/retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total

(R3tER)/
RtEE EXBERE  BRERS RRlRE REEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TR FHR TR TR TR
832,066 2,282 29,746 193,848 (98,466) 959,476
- - - - 413,548 413,548
- - - - (143,335) (143,335)
- - (10,515) = 10,515 -
(7,859) 3,930 - - (3,930) (7,859)
824,207 6,212 19,231 193,848 178,332 1,221,830
- - - - (1,701) (1,701)
- - - - (24,993) (24,993)
- - (190) - 190 -
(18,084) 8,953 - - (8,953) (18,084)
806,123 15,165 19,041 193,848 142,875 1,177,052
Maijor BT E A ([COVID-19]) 31 B HIMF IR 38

cities in the PRC have taken emergency measures.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Company have been directed
by the local governments to facilitate the prevention and
control measures during the COVID-19 pandemic, including
extending the Chinese New Year holidays, and adopting safety
measures for resuming operation under the guidance and

approval of the local governments.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

RBRHERBEEA - PEEZRRMHHEHRR

Z2IEH

RABHFEME QB CIZEESBATIER -
{23 COVID-19 Ay TERS FNIE HIlHE i (R IR K 2

B E/RA) - 3
RAZEHERRREE -

I £ & IR AT B9 45
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48. EVENT AFTER THE PERIOD END DATE
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HLFE

8. Hik AR EIE (M)

Further, the Group has implemented prevention and control
measures to ensure the Group’s continued capacity to operate
its business.

The Directors will continue to assess the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on the Group’s operation and financial
performance and closely monitor the Group’s exposure to the
risks and uncertainties in connection therewith.

o - AEE (BEETEMBAR) D EER
I AN b - RERA S B EK S X6
5 o

RABESZ B FHERTECOVID- 198 RN B &8

REMBRANTE YR YEBANKE MR
BRI TRARRE 2 R R AR X o

RABMEEBERAR — T NFFH
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Location

1 B

Block A, SIM Technology Building,
No. 633 Jinzhong Road,
Changning District,

Shanghai, the PRC

R PERERSHEK 633 5
EARHI A A

Block B, SIM Technology Building,
No. 633 Jinzhong Road,
Changning District,

Shanghai, the PRC

HE FERER K633 5t
EARAEBE

An industrial complex located at
No. 888 Shengli Road,

Qingpu District,

Shanghai,

the PRC

FR G R R B 1 888 55
M—ETERE

An industrial complex, located at
No. 37 Shenbei Road,

Shenbei New District,

Shenyang,

Liaoning Province,

the PRC

FEIEERES LR
WLAbEE 37 SRR — A T E =

Shop 32, Block 1,

The Riverside Country,

location at No. 32

Shenbei Road,

Shenbei New District, Shenyang,
Liaoning Province, the PRC
PEEZ R &S TR

PRIERE 32 SR ETHMOKES L 8 325 Al

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2019

Group’s effective
interest in the
properties
AEERYEH
ZERER

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

Approximate gross
floor area

BB EEEE
(sg. m)
(FAXK)

8,661

11,262

16,256

15,429

2,279

Usage

k=S

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[EES

Industrial

T

Industrial

T

Commercial

[HE

Category of
lease

HAER

Medium-term
lease

REITRAY

Medium-term
lease

REIRAY

Medium-term
lease

AR A

Medium-term
lease

T AR Y

Medium-term
lease

AR AY



RESULTS
Revenue

Profit (loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ES
LN

BRI (BR)
B

KERE (BR)

AT AL :
AREEAA
IR R

BERAHE
BEE

BaE

RYNSIE 2PN 3

FE R

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+-BLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“Z-RHF “ERE “EtF “E-N\E —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT FTHT THL
3,197,289 2,724,390 3,258,517 2,312,230 1,281,505
89,650 96,500 138,796 299,646 (91,497)
(19,775) (22,067) (36,190) (84,607) 16,636
69,875 74,433 102,606 215,039 (74,861)
64,645 77,278 111,651 238,012 (76,938)
5,230 (2,845) (9,045) (22,973) 2,077
69,875 74,433 102,606 215,039 (74,861)
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“2-0F —ERF S o3 —E-)N\F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET FET T
3,396,089 3,479,800 3,630,405 2,972,011 2,866,930
(1,397,705) (1,347,253) (1,407,114) (749,572) (756,259)
1,998,384 2,132,547 2,223,291 2,222,439 2,110,671
1,895,779 2,026,746 2,121,810 2,159,034 2,092,341
102,605 105,801 101,481 63,405 18,330
1,998,384 2,132,547 2,223,291 2,222 439 2,110,671
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